
PERKASIE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Agenda for Council Meeting of June 16, 2025 

1. Meeting Convenes – Council Meeting Room – 7:00 PM
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
3. Attendance
4. Proclamation:  Parks & Recreation Month – Mayor Hollenbach
5. Audit Presentation:  Styer Associates
6. Public Forum
7. President's Remarks
8. Approval of Minutes

A. Council, May 19, 2025
B. Committee, June 2, 2025

9. Correspondence and Reports
A. Mayor's Report
B. Taxes Collected
C. Budget Status
D. Engineer's Report
E. Planning Commission Report
F. Zoning Hearing Board Report
G. Police Report
H. Fire Department Report
I. Perkasie Regional Authority Report
J. Pennridge Wastewater Treatment Authority Report

10. Unfinished Business
11. New Business

A. Public Works Committee Items
1. Superintendent’s Report
2. Consider Resolution #2025-33 – Handicap Parking Spot for 250 N. 3rd Street

B. Public Utility Committee Items
1. Superintendent’s Report
2. Installed Capacity Update

C. Planning and Zoning Committee Items
1. Code Enforcement Administrator’s Report
2. Discuss Planning Commission Recommendations for Potential Amendments to

Code of Ordinances pertaining to the Keeping of Chickens & Roadside Stands
3. Constitution Square Update

D. Park and Recreation Committee Items
1. Park and Recreation Director Report
2. Consider Park Event Application – Grow a Pair 5K

E. Personnel and Policy Committee Items
1. Accept Resignation of Electric Department Employee
2. Accept Resignation of Crossing Guard
3. Accept Resignation of Part-Time Events Assistant
4. Consider Hiring of As-Needed Events Assistant
5. Consider Hiring of Part-Time Events Assistant



6. Consider New Timeclock Policy
F. Finance Committee Items

1. Payment of the Bills
2. Consider Hiring of Firm for Engineering & Technical Assistance with Substation
3. Consider Purchase of Additional Toters
4. Discuss Possible Acquisition of 200 South Main Street

G. Economic Development Committee Items
1. Community & Economic Development Report

H. Public Safety Committee Items
I. Historical Committee Items

12. Other New Business
13. Report from Youth Councilors
14. Public Forum
15. Press Forum
16. Executive Session – Matters of Personnel & Real Estate
17. Adjournment

**Next Meeting:  Monday, July 21, 2025 – 7:00 PM** 

Perkasie Borough Council agendas are available via e-mail in advance of the meetings.  Please send any 
agenda requests to: admin@perkasieborough.org.  The agendas and Perkasie Borough Council 
meeting packets are both available on the Borough’s website at www.perkasieborough.org.  



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
620 West Chestnut Street Phone: (215) 257-5065 
PO Box 96 Fax:  (215) 257-6875 
Perkasie, PA 18944-0096   

A Proclamation to Declare July 
as Parks and Recreation Month 

WHEREAS, the Perkasie Borough Council recognizes that the parks and recreation field is a 
diverse and comprehensive system that improves personal, social, environmental and economic 
health; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough Council recognizes the importance and benefits of park and 
recreation services that enrich the lives of its citizens, and help make this community a 
desirable place to live, work and visit; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough Council supports the skilled work of park and recreation 
professionals to strengthen community cohesion and resiliency, connect people with nature and 
each other, and provide and promote opportunities for healthful living, social equity and 
environmental sustainability; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough Council values the essential services that parks and recreation 
professionals and volunteers perform to provide recreational and developmental enrichment 
for our children, youth, adults and older adults; and to ensure our parks and recreational 
spaces are clean, safe, inclusive, welcoming and ready to use. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that I, Jeff Hollenbach, do hereby proclaim the month of 
July, 2025 as Parks and Recreation Month in Perkasie Borough. 

 Mayor Jeff Hollenbach 
      June 16, 2025 



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2024



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S

Page

Independent Auditors' Report. 1  -  3

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Government  Wide F inanc ia l  S ta tements :

4  -  1 3

Statement  of  Net  Posi t ion 14

Sta temen t  o f  Ac t i v i t i e s 1

Fund  F inanc ia l  S ta temen ts :

Balance Sheet -  Governmental  Funds 16

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Governmental Funds 17

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Activities 18

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund 1

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Net Position - Proprietary Fund 2

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 21

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 2 2

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 23

Notes to Financial Statements 2 4  -  5 9

Supplementary Information:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 6 0

Note to Budgetary Comparison Schedule. 6 1

Schedules of Changes in Net Pension Liability 6 2  -  6 3

Schedules of Employer Contributions - Pension Plan 6 4  -  6 5



S A
A Professional Corporation

S T Y E R  A S S O C I A T E S
C E R T I F I E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S

20 South School Lane

P.O. Box 64080

Souderton, PA 18964

Phone: 215-723-0974 · Fax: 215-723-1013

Webs i te :  www.s tye rcpa .com

Gregory S. Ede, CPA

Timothy N. Clemmer, CPA

R. David Styer, CPA
1949-2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS '  REPORT

To the Borough Council
Borough of Perkasie

Perkasie, Pennsylvania

Opinions

We have audi ted the accompanying f inancial  statements of  the governmental  act iv i t ies,  the

business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the

Borough of Perkasie as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes to the

f inancial  statements, which col lect ively comprise the Borough's basic f inancial  statements as
listed in the table of contents.

accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

States of  Amer ica.  Our  responsib i l i t ies under  those standards are fur ther  descr ibed in  the

requ i red to  be independent  o f  the Borough o f  Perkas ie ,  and to  meet  our  o ther  e th ica l

for our audit opinions.

Responsibi l i t ies of  Management for the Financial  Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and

for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation

due to fraud or error.

-  1  -

Member of the American Institute of C.P.A.'s, Pennsylvania Institute of C.P.A.'s.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are

conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Borough
of Perkasie's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.

Auditors'  Responsibi l i t ies for the Audit  of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditors' report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but

is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one result ing from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if

there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit .

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Perkasie's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Borough of Perkasie's ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

-  2 -



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedules of changes
in net pension liability, and schedules of employer contributions - pension plan on pages 4
through 13 and 60 through 65 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be

an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the

required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained

during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Souderton, Pennsylvania

June 3, 2025

S T Y E R  A S S O C I A T E S

Cert i f ied Publ ic  Accountants

t y p

-  3  -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E ,  P E N N S Y L A N I A

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

December 31, 2024

FB O
R O
U G
H PERKASIE

808

PA

As management of  the Borough of  Perkasie,  we of fer  readers of  the

Borough of Perkasie's f inancial  statements this narrat ive overview and

analysis of the financial activities of the Borough for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024. Professional standards require the inclusion of certain

comparative information in the Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) found in pages 4 through 13. The MD&A is to be read in

conjunction with the Borough's financial statements on the remaining pages.

T H E  F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S

As of December 31, 2024, the Borough of Perkasie's Government-wide assets exceeded
its liabilities by $22,535,425 (net position). Of this amount, $4,540,860 (unrestricted net
position) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and

creditors. Total cash increased by $ 110,486.

. The Borough's Government-wide net position increased from 2023 by $ 1,261,266 -
pg.15.

As of December 31, 2024, the Borough of Perkasie's Total Governmental Funds reported
an ending fund balance of $2,505,840. Of this amount, $1,226,371 (unassigned fund
balance-pg.16) is available for spending at the government's discretion. The unassigned

general fund balance is 13.3% of total General Fund expenditures.

As of December 31, 2024, the Borough of Perkasie's Proprietary Fund reported an
ending net position of $3,362,426. Of this amount, $1,902,456 (unrestricted net position-
pg.19), is available for spending at the government's discretion. The unrestricted net

position is 29.3% of the Proprietary Fund total operating expenses.

O V E R V I E W  O F  T H E  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

The Borough's annual financial report consists of several sections. The MD&A is intended to

serve as a synopsis of the Borough of Perkasie's f inancial performance for the year. The

Borough of Perkasie's year-end Financial Statements, beginning on page 14, are comprised of
five components: 1) Government-Wide Financial Statements, 2) Governmental Fund Financial

Statements, 3) Notes to the Financial Statements, 4) Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General
Fund, and 5) Pension Plan Liability & Contribution Schedules.

Government-Wide Financial  Statements -The Government-Wide Financial  Statements (pgs

14,15) are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Borough of Perkasie's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business that utilizes full accrual accounting.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Borough of Perkasie's assets

and liabilities with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases

or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Borough is improving or deteriorating.

-  4  -



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE,  PENNSYLANIA

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S
December 31, 2024

The Statement of Activit ies presents information showing how the Borough's net posit ion
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement, of some items that will only result in

cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both Government-Wide Financial Statements distinguish functions of the Borough of Perkasie

that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental fund activities of the Borough

include General Government, Public Safety, Refuse Collection, Capital Projects, Public Works,
and Parks and Recreation. Electric distribution is the business-type (proprietary) activity of the
Borough.

The Government-Wide financial statements include only the Borough of Perkasie. There are no

other organizations or agencies whose financial statements should be combined and presented
with the financial statements of the Borough.

Fund Financial Statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain

control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Borough of Perkasie, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All the funds of the Borough of
Perkasie are governmental, proprietary or fiduciary (escrow) funds.

Governmenta l  Fund F inanc ia l  S ta tements  -  Governmenta l  funds  are  used to  account  fo r

essentially the same functions reported as governmental activit ies in the government-wide

f inancial statements. However, unl ike the government-wide f inancial statements, governmental

fund financial statements (pgs 16,17) focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as the balance of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year
(modified accrual accounting). Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's

near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term

f inancing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund

statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Borough of Perkasie maintains 8 individual governmental funds (General Fund, Capital
Fund, State Liquid Fuels Fund, Fire Protection Fund, Road Improvement Fund, Menlo Aquatics
Fund, Refuse Fund and American Recovery Plan Fund). The Governmental Fund Balance Sheet

(pg 16) and Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances (pg 17) contain three columns and a total column. The General Fund column includes

- 5 -



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE,  PENNSYLANIA

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

December 31, 2024

the General Fund, the Menlo Aquatics Fund, the Refuse Fund and the American Recovery Plan

Fund. The Capital Fund column is self-explanatory. The Other Governmental Funds column

includes the Fire Protection Fund, the Road Improvement Fund and the State Liquid Fuels Fund.
Only the General Fund and Capital Projects Funds are to be considered major governmental
f u n d s .

The Reconciliation, on page 18, details the difference between the net change in fund balances

on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, on page 17, and the
Statement of Activities on page 15.

The Borough of Perkasie adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of its funds. A budgetary
comparison schedule has been provided as required supplementary information for the General

Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget on page 60.

Proprietary Fund - The Borough maintains one type of proprietary fund; an enterprise fund.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the

government-wide financial statements. The Borough of Perkasie uses an enterprise fund to
account for its Electric distribution activities.

Proprietary fund statements (pgs 19-21) provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. The Propriety Fund financial statements provide

separate information for the Electric Fund which is also considered a major fund of the Borough
of Perkasie.

Notes to the f inancial statements - The notes provide addit ional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide, governmental fund

and proprietary fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on
pages 24 through 59 of this report.

In 2022, The Borough implemented GASBS No. 87, The Lease Standard. The reporting of
lease receivables is presented in Note 4 of the financial statements.

Government-Wide Financia l  Analys is  (See Table 1)

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's

f inancial position. In the case of the Borough of Perkasie, assets exceeded liabilit ies by
$22,535,425 at the close of 2024.

Infrastructure assets of the governmental activities are included within this report. The capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, infrastructure, and equipment) of the governmental

activities of the Borough of Perkasie less outstanding debt equal $16,089,359. The majority of
the outstanding debt of the governmental activities funds was incurred for the aquatics center
c o n s t r u c t i o n .

- 6 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E ,  P E N N S Y L A N I A

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

December 31, 2024

The largest portion of the governmental activities' net position of $19,172,999 (83.9 percent)
reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, improvements, machinery and
equipment) less depreciation and any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The Borough of Perkasie uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;

consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Borough of
Perkasie's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Table 1 - Borough of Perkasie's Net Position-Gov't Wide

Governmenta l  Act iv i t ies Business-type Activities

Assets:

Current  assets

Capital assets

Deferred Outflows

Total assets 22,950,358

Long-term debt

Other liabilit ies

Tota l  l iab i l i t ies

Deferred Inflows

Net Posi t ion:

Invested in capital

16,089,359 15,624,029assets, net of debt

Restr ic ted 445,236

Unrestr icted 2,638,404

Total net position $

2024

3 , 7 3 9 , 0 9 3  $

1,805,906

2,599,513

257,084

2,856,597

920,762

19,172,999 $

2023

3,968,827

17,405,359 17,328,030

2,777,721

24,074,578

4,163,596

115,831

4,279,427

1,435,709

239,471

2,495,942

18,359,442 $

2024

$ 2 , 5 5 0 , 5 6 6  $

1,459,970

4,250,521

2,712

881,640

884,352

3,743

1,459,970

2023

2,065,366

1,461,421

239,985 369,118

3,895,905

205,707

767,996

973,703

7,485

1,461,421

1,902,456

3 , 3 6 2 , 4 2 6  $

1,453,296

2,914,717

Total

2024

$ 6,289,659 $ 6,034,193

18,865,329 18,789,451

2,045,891 3,146,839

27,200,879

2,602,225 4,369,303

1,138,724

3,740,949 5,253,130

924,505

17,549,329

445,236

4,540,860

$  2 2 , 5 3 5 , 4 2 5  $ 21,274,159

2023

27,970,483

883,827

1,443,194

17,085,450

239,471

3,949,238

The balance of the total unrestricted net position, in Table 1, of $4,540,860 may be used to meet
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the 2024 fiscal year, the Borough of Perkasie reported an increase in net position of
$ 1,261,266 as indicated on page 15.

Table 2 highlights the Borough's revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2024. These two components are subtracted to yield the change in net position.

Revenue is further divided into two major components: Program Revenue and General Revenue.
Program revenue is defined as charges for sales and services, and operating grants and
contributions. General revenue includes taxes, investment income and other unrestricted revenue
s o u r c e s .

- 7 -



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE,  PENNSYLANIA
M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

December 31, 2024

Table 2 - Borough of Perkasie's Changes in Net Position-Gov't Wide

Revenues

P r o g r a m

C h a r g e s  f o r

Governmental

Activities

2 0 2 2 0 2

$ 3,533,93 $ 3,264,66

1,489,8

B u s i n e s s -
Activities

2024 202
$ 9,509,26 $ 8,774,950

Tota

2024 2023

$ 13,043,196 $
G r a n t s  a n d

G e n e r a l

1,466,0 44,04 39,28 1,510,0 1,529,09

P r o p e r t y

EI Tax, LST & other 2,233,08

O t h e r  g e n e r a l 273,46

T o t a l

Expense

G e n e r a l 1,011,82

P u b l i c 3,998,50
Refuse collection

P u b l i c 1,102 ,
R e c r e a t i o n  a n d 1,476,82 1,821,3

Employee benefits
Miscellaneou 96,81

Interest on long-term

Electri

T o t a l

Inc/(Dec) in net postn b4 (1,836,4
Transfer 2,650,00

Changes in  net 813,55

Net position - beginning of 18,359,44

Net position - end of

862,05

8,368,56

854,22 -

2,263,5

314,5

8,186,81

796,91

1,702,4 2,216,2

18 ,9

1,028,6

3,935,0

735,30

993,5

10,05

23,70
-

10,763,75

(2,576,9
2,664,80

87,85

18,271,58

10,205,01

$ 19,172,999

-

34,673

9,587,9

-

-
-

-

-

-

-

6,490,26

6,490,2

3,097,71

(2,650,00

447,7

2,914,71

$ $ 3,362,42

-

-

3 6 , 1

8,850,39

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 18,91 23,70

6,318,95

6,318,95

2,531,44

(2,664,8

(133,35

3,048,07

862,05

2,233,0

308 ,1

17,956,54

1,011,8

3,998,5

796 ,9

1,102,8

1,476,82

1,702,4

96,81 10,05

6,490,26 6,318,95

16,695,2

1,261,2
-

1,261,2
21,274,15 21,319,65

854,22

2,263,54

350,72

17,037,21

1,028,6

3,935,0
735,30

993,50

1,821,3

2,216,2

17,082,7

(45,50

(45,50

$ 2,914,717 $ $ 21,274,159

Table 3 below discloses the cost of services for Governmental Activities. The total cost of

services column contains all costs related to the programs and the net cost column shows the

total costs not covered by program revenues. The net costs are costs that must be covered by

local taxes or other general revenue or transfers.

-  8  -



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE,  PENNSYLANIA

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S
December 31, 2024

Table 3 - Borough of Perkasie's Government Wide Activities

Total Cost of Services T o t a l  N e t  ( C o s t ) / R e v e n u e

P r o g r a m s

G e n e r a l  G o v e r n m e n t $ 1,011,824

Publ ic Safety 3,998,502
796 ,910R e f u s e  C o l l e c t i o n 7 3 5 , 3 0 5

Publ ic  Works 1,102,831

Recreat ion and Conservat ion 1,476,824

Employee Benefits and Ins. 1,702,401

M isce l l aneous 96 ,81
Interest  on Long Term Debt 1 8 , 9 1 4

T o t a l $

2 0 2 4 2 0 2 3

$ 1,028,635
3 ,935 ,024

993 ,505

1,821,325

2 ,216 ,205

10,056
2 3 , 7 0 4 (18,914) (23 ,704)

10,205,016 $ 10,763,759

2 0 2 4

$ (309,950) $ (380,625)
(2,273,622)

421,505

(772 ,464)

(754,400 (877,412)

(1,400,406) (1,952,439)
(96,810) (10,056)

$  ( 5 , 2 0 5 , 0 6 1 )  $ (6,009,279)

2 0 2 3

(2,300,855)

268,048

(732,236)

The net cost of services is 51.0% of the total cost of services in 2024. This reflects the reliance

on taxes and other revenue sources to fund the cost of services.

G o v e r n m e n t a l  A c t i v i t i e s

The largest sources of governmental activities revenue, reflected on the Statement of Activities

on page 15, were derived from charges for services at 42% followed by earned income tax, local

services tax and real estate transfer tax at 27%, and grants and contributions at 18% as shown in

Chart 1. Property Taxes were 10% of total revenue sources and other general revenues make up
the remaining 3 %.

· Property tax millage for 2024 is 9.25 mills. One and one-half mills, approved by voter
referendum, is dedicated to the Perkasie Volunteer Fire Company specifically for the
purchase, debt service, and maintenance of fire equipment. An additional three mills

were approved by Council specifically for Road Improvements.

. Real estate transfer taxes collected for 2024 increased sl ightly by 1.7% and earned

income taxes col lected decreased by 1.9%. The overal l  decrease of both taxes was

$32,602 (1.5%).

- 9 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E ,  P E N N S Y L A N I A

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

December 31, 2024

Revenues  by  Sou rce  -  Gove rnmen ta l  Ac t i v i t i es
Char t  1

Earned Inc Tax,  LST,

o t h e r

2 7 %

Othe r

3%
1

Charges for services
42%

Property taxes
1 0 %

Gran ts  and  con t r i bu t i ons

1 8 %

As shown on Chart 2 and in the Statement of Activities on page 15, 39% of the Borough's

expenditures are for public safety, 19% for public works including refuse and recycling
collection, 17% for employee benefits, 14% for parks and recreation, and 11% for general
government and miscellaneous. The revenue sources in the graph below are from Charges for
Services and Grants.

$4,500,000

$4,000,000

$3,500,000

$3,000,000

$2,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$500 ,000

$

G

e

n  G

e  o

r  v

a

Expenses and Program Revenues-Government Wide Activit ies
Chart 2

P S

u  a

b f

e

t

c  y

C

R  o

e 1

f

u e

S C

e t

n

P

W
U

b

i
k

S
C

E x p e n s e s

R e v e n u e s

P
B

a

r
e

R p
n

k  e
f

S  C 0
i

y
t

& e
S

e

n  D

t e

b

o  t

n

-  10 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E ,  P E N N S Y L A N I A

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

December 31, 2024

Prop r i e ta r y  Fund /E lec t r i c  En te rp r i se

The Borough of Perkasie's proprietary fund provides the same type of information presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Business-Type Act iv i t ies

Revenues of the Borough's business-type activities increased by 8.3% ($8,850,396 in 2023
compared to $9,587,976 in 2024) and expenses increased by 2.7%. The increase in revenue was

due to an electric rate increase that was approved as part of the 2024 budget. Expenses related to
the purchase of electric materials and equipment and salaries and benefits had the largest impact

on the increase in operating expenses. The business-type activities' ending net position of
$3,362,426 reflected an increase in net position of $447,709. Reflected in the ending fund
balance/net position are transfers in the amount of $2,650,004 from the business type fund to the
governmental funds.

G o v e r n m e n t a l  F u n d s - A c t i v i t i e s

The focus of the Borough of Perkasie's governmental funds is to provide information on near-

term inf lows, outf lows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in

assessing the Borough of Perkasie's f inancing requirements. Unrestricted fund balance may

serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

As of December 31, 2024, the Borough of Perkasie's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $2,505,840, an increase of $ 87,982 in comparison with the prior year.
Reflected in the ending fund balances are transfers in the amount of $2,650,004 from the
business type fund to the governmental funds.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Borough of Perkasie. As of December 31,

2024, the total fund balance of the General Fund was $1,513,821 of which $80,128 was non-

spendable for prepaid expenses & inventory. The unassigned fund balance of $1,226,371
represents approximately 13.3% of the total General Fund expenditures for 2024-pg. 16,17.

General Fund Budget Comparison Highl ights

During the year, revenues were .9% higher than budget with expenses 2.4% higher than budget.
The net change in the fund balance, after recognizing operating transfers, reflects an unfavorable
difference of $215,401 versus the budget as reflected on page 60.

Real estate taxes, earned income taxes, real estate transfer taxes and local services tax remained a

major source of revenue for the borough. These taxes combined totaled $2,675,969 in 2024, as
reflected on page 17.

- 11 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E ,  P E N N S Y L A N I A

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

December 31, 2024

C A P I T A L  A S S E T  A N D  D E B T  A D M I N I S T R A T I O N

Capita l  Assets (Table 4)

The Borough of Perkasie's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type

activities as of December 31, 2024, amounts to $18,865,329 net of accumulated depreciation.

This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, building improvements, park facilities,
infrastructure, vehicles and equipment. The increase in investment in capital assets for the

current fiscal year was a total of $75,878, including depreciation. Depreciation of $1,344,345
was offset by net asset additions of $1,420,223.

Table 4 - Borough of Perkasie's Capital Assets

G o v e r n m e n t a l

A c t i v i t i e s

Business Type
A c t i v i t i e s T o t a l

L a n d $ 4,568,939

Buildings 8,765,305

Equipment 10,219,909

Vehic les 2,010,087

I n f r a s t r u c t u r e 11,373,296

Accum Depr (19,532,177)

T o t a l s $ 17,405,359

2 0 2 4 2 0 2 3

$ 4,568 ,939 $

8,765,305

9,512,553

1,959,337

10,900,646

(18,378,750)

$  17 ,328 ,030

2 0 2 4

134,211

339,663

3,334,744

940,844

662,447

(3,951,939)

2 0 2 3

$ 134,211 $
339,663

3,303,248

940,844
662,447

(3,918,992)

2 0 2 4

4,703,150 $ 4,703,150
9,104,968 9,104,968

13,554,653

2,950,931

12,035,743 11,563,093

(23,484,116) (22,297,742)

$  1 , 4 5 9 , 9 7 0 $ 1,461,421 £ $ 18,865,329

Major capital asset events that occurred during the year included the following:

Road reconstruction with adjoining curb & sidewalk replacements
Skate Park Upgrades

Purchase of a new Self Contained Leafer and Bandit Chipper
Continued to replace electric meters

2 0 2 3

12,815,80
2,900 ,181

$ 18,789,451

Additional information on the Borough's capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this report.

Long-term Liabi l i t ies (Table 5)

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Borough of Perkasie had total long-term liabilities
outstanding of $2,602,224 entirely backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

-  12 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E ,  P E N N S Y L A N I A

M A N A G E M E N T ' S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

December 31, 2024

Table 5 - Outstanding Long-term Liabilities

2024 202 2 0 2 2 0 202 202

General Obligation $  1 , 3 1 6 , 0 0 0  $

Pension Liab-Non- $

P e n s i o n  L i a b - $ $ $

Lease $

C o m p e d $
T o t

5,03 $ 382,02 $

$

110,1 $ 77,3 $

$ 2,599,513 $ 4,163,596

$ - $

2 , 7 1 $ $ 7,74

- $ $

$ $

19,82 $ 18,4 $ $ 9 5 , 7

$ 22,539 $ 224,108

$ 1,316,000 1,704,0

$ 587,73

$ 2,000,
$ - $

129,94

$ 2,622,052 $ 4,387,7

More detailed information about the Borough's long-term liabilities is presented in Note 10 of
the financial statements.

R E Q U E S T S  F O R  I N F O R M A T I O N

This f inancial report is designed to provide cit izens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
credi tors wi th a general  overv iew of  the Borough's f inances and to show the Borough's

accountabil i ty for the money it  receives. If  you have questions about this report or need

additional financial information, please contact the Borough Manager or Finance Director, 620
West Chestnut Street, Perkasie, Pennsylvania 18944.

General information relating to the Borough of Perkasie, Pennsylvania, can be found at the
Borough's website, http://www.perkasieborough.org.

-  13 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

S T A T E M E N T  O F  N E T  P O S I T I O N

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

G o v e r n m e n t a l

Activit ies
Business-Type

A c t i v i t i e s

A S S E T S

Cash

Receivables 1,034,331 748,521

277,74

1,782,852
In te rna l  ba lances (372,569) (94,820)

Prepaid expenses 66,498

Capital Assets:
L a n d 4,568,939

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 1 2 , 8 3 6 , 4 2 0

Total Capital Assets 17,405,359

Total Assets 2 1 , 1 4 4 , 4 5 2

$ 2,997,203

D E F E R R E D  O U T F L O W S  O F  R E S O U R C E S

Deferred amounts related to pensions 1 , 8 0 5 , 9 0 6 239,985

T O T A L  A S S E T S  A N D  D E F E R R E D

OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 22,950,358

L I A B I L I T I E S

Accounts payable $ 108,38 $ 500,015 $ 608,397

Accrued expenses 148,702 46,111 194,81
Customer deposits

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
T o t a l  L i a b i l i t i e s 2,856,597

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 99,873

Deferred amounts related to leases 447,386 447,386

Deferred revenues 3 7 3 , 5 0 3

Tota l  Defer red  In f lows o f  Resources 9 2 0 , 7 6 2

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt .. 16,089,359

445,236

Tota l  Ne t  Pos i t i on 1 9 , 1 7 2 , 9 9 9

T O T A L  L I A B I L I T I E S ,  D E F E R R E D

INFLOWS OF  RESOURCES,  AND
N E T  P O S I T I O N

403,00
2 , 1 9 6 , 5 1 3

$  22 .950 ,358

$ 1 ,190 ,250

15,985

318,061

134,211 4,703,15
1 ,325 ,759 14,162,179

1,459,970 18,865,329

4 , 0 1 0 , 5 3 6

$ 4,250,52

335,514

2,712

884,35 3,740,949

3,743

3,743

1,459,970

1 ,902 ,456 4,540,860Unres t r i c ted 2 , 6 3 8 , 4 0 4

3,362 ,426

$ 4,250,521

T o t a l

$ 4,187,453

82,483

Inventor ies 13,630 331,691

25,154,988

2 , 0 4 5 , 8 9 1

$  2 7 , 2 0 0 , 8 7 9

335,514

Long term l iabi l i t ies:

403,00
2 ,199 ,224

103,616

3 7 3 , 5 0 3

924 ,505

17,549,329

445,236Rest r ic ted

22,535,425

$_27,200,879

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.)

-  14 -



$

C h a r g e s  f o r

S e r v i c e s

P u b l i c  s a f e t y

O p e r a t i n g

4 6 , 5 0 0

$

T y p e

$

$  ( 3 0 9 , 9 5 0 )

1 4 0 , 8 9 2

M i s c e l l a n e o u s .

N e t  P o s i t i o n  -  B e g i n n i n g

( 5 , 2 0 5 , 0 6 1 )

0



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

B A L A N C E  S H E E T  -  G O V E R N M E N T A L  F U N D S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Cash

ASSETS

R e c e i v a b l e s :

T a x e s 262,733 1,968 264,701
G r a n t s 12,888 12 ,888

O t h e r 109,873

Prepaid expenses 66,498

I nven to r ies 13,630

Due from other funds 167,090

T O T A L  A S S E T S $  1 .941 ,347

Genera
$ 1,308,635 $ 1,433,935 $ 254,633

Capital

Projects
Fund

O t h e r

G o v e r n m e n t a l

F u n d s

44,203

46 ,135

$ 1 .524,273 $ 256,601 $ 3,722,221

L I A B I L I T I E S ,  D E F E R R E D  I N F L O W S  O F

R E S O U R C E S ,  A N D  F U N D  B A L A N C E S

Liab i l i t ies :

Accounts payable $ 79,278 $ 14 ,258

Accrued expenses 132,05
Due to other funds 1 6 7 , 7 4 8

Total Liabilities

D e f e r r e d  I n f l o w s  o f  R e s o u r c e s :

379,081 445,109

Deferred revenue

F u n d  B a l a n c e s :

Nonspendable

Restricted for:

State liquid fuels funds 10,843

Fire protection 9,213

Road improvements 217,857

Police K-9 and Upper Bucks Consortium .. 207,322 207,32
Assigned for:

Capital expenditures 754,106 754,106

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances 1,513,821

T O T A L  L I A B I L I T I E S ,  D E F E R R E D

I N F L O W S  O F  R E S O U R C E S ,  A N D
F U N D  B A L A N C E S $  1 , 9 4 1 , 3 4 7 $ 1,524,273 $ 256,601

16,647

4 1 4 , 2 0 4

$ 14,846 $

4 8 , 4 4 5 325 ,058

80,128

3,842

18,688 842,878

0

217,857

1,226,37
7 5 4 , 1 0 6 2 3 7 , 9 1 3

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Other long term assets are not available to pay current period expenses 602,666

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the
governmental  funds.

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and leases are not reported
in the governmental funds.

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net Position of Governmental Activities $
(2,599,513

Total
G o v e r n m e n t a l

F u n d s

2,997,203$

154,076

66,498

13,630

2 1 3 , 2 2 5

108,382

148,702

5 8 5 , 7 9 4

3 7 3 , 5 0 3

80,128

10,843

9,213

1,226,371

2 ,505 ,840

17,405,359

1,805,906

(547,259)

1 9 , 1 7 2 , 9 9 9

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.)

-  16 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

S T A T E M E N T  O F  R E V E N U E S ,  E X P E N D I T U R E S ,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

G O V E R N M E N T A L  F U N D S

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2024

General

O t h e r

G o v e r n m e n t a l  G o v e r n m e n t a l

F u n d s Fund

T o t a l

R e v e n u e s :

Taxes, penalties and interest ..... $ 2,675,969

Intergovernmental  revenues 765,741

Charges for services 3,231,526

Total Revenues 7,203,143 489,165

Expend i tu res :

Genera l  government 899,940

Public safety 3,677,436

Pub l i c  works 538,404

Recreat ion and conservat ion 1,038,265

Debt service - principal
-  i n te res t

Capital outlays 223,726

Employee benefits 1,871,29

Total Expenditures 9,194,809

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (1,991,666) (1,037,593)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating transfers in 2,105,004

Operating transfers out. (340,000)

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses) 1,765,004 1 ,136 ,395

Capital
Projects

F u n d

$ $ 419,177 $ 3,095,146
Franchise taxes 140,892

22,878 7,528

426,287 1,439,017

33,000

Misce l l aneous  revenues 22,748 7 , 0 0 0

388,000

18,914 18,914

1,119,844

1 , 5 2 6 , 7 5 8

1,136,395

Net Change in Fund Balances. . . . (226,662)
F U N D  B A L A N C E S - B E G I N N I N G 1,740,483
F U N D  B A L A N C E S - E N D I N G . ...... $ 1,513,821 $ 7 5 4 , 1 0 6

98,802

6 5 5 , 3 0 4

246,989

673,694

141,698

64,759

2 0 6 , 4 5 7

467 ,237

(251,395)

(251,395) 2,650,004

2 1 5 , 8 4 2

22,071

$ 237,913

140,892

Permits, fines and licenses 168,590 168,590

Interest and rents 197,677 228,083

3,264,526

29,748

8,366,002

899,940

3,819,134

797,47Refuse collection. 797,478

603,163

1,038,265

388,000

1,343,570

1,871,292

Insurance and other expenses. 148,268 148,268

10,928,024

(2,562,022)

3,241,399

(591,395)

87,982

2 , 4 1 7 , 8 5 8

$ 2,505,840

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.)

-  17 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

R E C O N C I L I A T I O N  O F  T H E  S T A T E M E N T  O F  R E V E N U E S ,  E X P E N D I T U R E S ,

A N D  C H A N G E S  I N  F U N D  B A L A N C E S  O F  G O V E R N M E N T A L  A C T I V I T I E S

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 87,982

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those

assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays ($1,247,076) exceeded depreciation
($1,169,747) in the current period. 77,329

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
available current financial resources are not reported
in the funds. 2,566

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities

do not require the use of current financial resources

and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. 257,680

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the

governmental funds, but the payment reduces long term

liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 813,557

3 8 8 , 0 0 0

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.)

-  18  -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

S T A T E M E N T  O F  N E T  P O S I T I O N

P R O P R I E T A R Y  F U N D

DECEMBER 31, 2024

A S S E T S

C u r r e n t  A s s e t s :

Cash

Total  Current  Assets 2,713,175

Non Current  Assets :

Capital assets:
Land

Bui ld ings 339,663

Equipment 3,334,744

I n f r a s t r u c t u r e 662,447

V e h i c l e s 9 4 0 , 8 4 4

Less accumulated depreciation (3,951,939
Total Non Current Assets 1 , 4 5 9 , 9 7 0

T o t a l  A s s e t s 4 , 1 7 3 , 1 4 5

D E F E R R E D  O U T F L O W S  O F  R E S O U R C E S

Deferred amounts related to pensions 2 3 9 , 9 8 5

T O T A L  A S S E T S  A N D  D E F E R R E D  O U T F L O W S

O F  R E S O U R C E S $ 4 ,413 ,130

Current  L iab i l i t ies :

L I A B I L I T I E S

Accounts payable $ 500,01
Accrued expenses 46,111

Customer deposits 335,51
Due to other funds 1 6 2 , 6 0 9

Total  Current Liabi l i t ies

Noncur ren t  L iab i l i t ies :

1 , 0 4 4 , 2 4 9

Net pension liability 2,712
Total Liabilities 1,046,96

D E F E R R E D  I N F L O W S  O F  R E S O U R C E S

Deferred amounts related to pensions 3 ,743

N E T  P O S I T I O N

Invested in capital assets 1,459,970
1 , 9 0 2 , 4 5 6U n r e s t r i c t e d

Tota l  Net  Posi t ion

E l e c t r i c

E n t e r p r i s e

$ 1,190,25
Receivables 748,521

I nven to ry 318 ,061

P r e p a i d 15,985

Due from other funds 440 ,358

134,211

3,362,426

T O T A L  L I A B I L I T I E S ,  D E F E R R E D  I N F L O W S  O F  R E S O U R C E S ,

$ 4 ,413 ,130A N D  N E T  P O S I T I O N

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.)

-  19 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

S T A T E M E N T  O F  R E V E N U E S ,  E X P E N S E S ,  A N D  C H A N G E S  I N  N E T  P O S I T I O N
P R O P R I E T A R Y  F U N D

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Operat ing  Revenues:

Charges for services $ 9,321,541
Other revenue. 187,721

Total Operating Revenues 9,509,262

Operat ing Expenses:

Purchase of power. 4,645,088

Operating expenses 1,398,205
General and administrative 269,499

Depreciation expense 1 7 4 , 5 9 8

Total Operating Expenses 6,487,390

Operating Income 3 , 0 2 1 , 8 7 2

Nonopera t ing  Revenues and (Expenses) :

Interest  revenue 34,673

Intergovernmental revenues 44 ,04
Interest expense (2,873

Total Nonoperating Revenues and (Expenses) 75 ,84

Income Before Operating Transfers 3,097,713

Operating Transfers:
Operating transfers out. (2,650,004)

Change in Net Position 447,709

T O T A L  N E T  P O S I T I O N  -  B E G I N N I N G 2 , 9 1 4 , 7 1 7

T O T A L  N E T  P O S I T I O N  -  E N D I N G $ 3 , 3 6 2 , 4 2 6

E l e c t r i c

Enterp r i se

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.)

- 20 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

S T A T E M E N T  O F  C A S H  F L O W S
P R O P R I E T A R Y  F U N D

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2024

Cash Flows From Operat ing Act iv i t ies:

Cash received from customers $ 9,304,984

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (5,540,303)

Cash payments to employees for services (783,842)

Other operating revenue .. 171 ,122

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 3,151,961

Cash F lows From Noncapi ta l  F inanc ing Act iv i t ies :

Net receipts (payments) under interfund loans (195,853)

Intergovernmental revenues 44,041

Transfers to other funds (2,650,004)

Net Cash Used By Noncapital Financing Activities (2,801,816)

Cash Flows From Capital  and Related Financing Act iv i t ies:

Payments for purchase of property, plant, and equipment. (173,147)
Payments for interest expense. (2 ,873)

Net Cash Used By Capital and Related Financing Activities (176,020

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
I n t e r e s t  r e v e n u e 3 4 , 6 7 3

N E T  I N C R E A S E  I N  C A S H 208,798

C A S H  -  B E G I N N I N G 981,452

C A S H  -  E N D I N G $ 1 ,190 ,250

Reconci l ia t ion of  Operat ing Income To Net  Cash

Provided By Operat ing Act iv i t ies:

Operating income. $ 3,021,872

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense. 174,598

(Increase) decrease
Receivables (40,543)

Inventory .. (37,433)

Prepaid expenses (2,573
Deferred outflows of resources 129,133

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable. 86 ,807

Accrued expenses 10,037

C u s t o m e r 16,800

Net pension liability (202,995)
Deferred inf lows of resources (3,742

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 3,151,961

Electric

Enterpr ise

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.)

- 21 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

S T A T E M E N T  O F  F I D U C I A R Y  N E T  P O S I T I O N

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

ASSETS

Custodial
F u n d

Cash

Due from other funds 94,820

$ 6,045

Due from developers 36,720

T O T A L  A S S E T S $ 1 3 7 , 5 8 5

NET POSIT ION

Res t r i c ted  fo r :

Developers and individuals $ 1 3 7 , 5 8 5

T O T A L  N E T  P O S I T I O N $ 1 3 7 , 5 8 5

(The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.)

-  22



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

S T A T E M E N T  O F  C H A N G E S  I N  F I D U C I A R Y  N E T  P O S I T I O N

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

A d d i t i o n s :

Cont r ibu t ions :

Developers and individuals
I n t e res t

T O T A L  A D D I T I O N S 1 5 9 , 6 4 0

D e d u c t i o n s :

Professional fees 125,87
Administrat ive fees 3,772

Return of  contr ibut ions 445,087

T O T A L  D E D U C T I O N S 5 7 4 , 7 3 6

N E T  D E C R E A S E (415,096)

N E T  P O S I T I O N  -  B E G I N N I N G  O F  Y E A R 552,681

N E T  P O S I T I O N  -  E N D  O F  Y E A R $ 137,585

C u s t o d i a l

Fund

$ 159,348
292

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.

- 23 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 1  -  Summary o f  S ign i f icant  Account ing Pol ic ies :

The summary of signif icant accounting policies of the Borough is presented to assist in
understanding the Borough's f inancial statements. The f inancial statements and notes are

representations of the Borough's management, who is responsible for their integrity and
objectivity. These accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the
f inancial statements.

The Borough of Perkasie is a municipal corporation incorporated under Article II of the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Municipal Code Act of 1966, as amended. The Borough
operates under a Council - Manager form of government and provides such services as are
authorized by its charter to advance the welfare, health, comfort, safety and convenience of the
Borough and its inhabitants.

Reporting Entity:

The f inancial  statements of the Borough of Perkasie include al l  government act iv i t ies,

organizat ions and funct ions for which the Borough exercises signi f icant oversight
responsibility. The criteria considered in determining governmental activities to be reported

within the Borough's financial statements include the degree of oversight responsibility
exercised by the Borough Council over a government organization, activity or function, the
Borough's accountability for the activity's fiscal matters, its scope of public service and the
nature of any special financing relationships which may exist between the Borough and a given
government activity. There are no agencies or organizations that require reporting in the
Borough's financial statements.

Therefore, the Borough's municipal services, which include public safety (police and fire),
public works, sanitat ion, health and human services, culture and recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services, are included in the

accompanying financial statements. In addition, the Borough owns and operates an enterprise
activity, an electric utility which is included in the accompanying financial statements.

Related Organization - The Borough of Perkasie's Council  appoints al l  members to the

governing board of the Perkasie Regional Authority, an operating authority. The Perkasie

Regional Authority provides water and sewer service to the residents of the Borough.

The Borough of Perkasie is not financially accountable for the Perkasie Regional Authority;
therefore, the provisions have not been met regarding component units. The Perkasie Regional
Authority is not included in the financial statements of the Borough of Perkasie.

-  24  -
1



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 1 - Summary of Signif icant Accounting Pol icies (Continued):

Signif icant Accounting Pol icies:

The financial statements of the Borough have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles general ly accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as appl ied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
primary standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The Borough's significant accounting policies are described below.

Basic Financial  Statements -  Government-Wide Statements:

The Borough's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the
Borough as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Borough's major funds).
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activit ies as

governmental or business-type. The Borough's police and fire protection, parks and recreation,
public works, and general administrative services are classified as governmental activities. The

Borough's electric service is classified as a business-type activity.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type

activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reported on
a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables

as well as long term debt and obligations. The Borough's net position is reported in three parts
- invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net
posit ion.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
Borough's funct ions and business-type act iv i t ies (pol ice, f i re,  publ ic works, etc.) .  The

functions are also supported by general government revenues (property, earned income taxes,
certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of

Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues,
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function

(police, public works, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-
specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column
reflects capital-specific grants.

-  25 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

D E C E M B E R  3 1 ,  2 0 2 4

Note 1 -  Summary of  Signi f icant  Account ing Pol ic ies (Cont inued):

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Statements (Continued):

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue

(property, earned income taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).

The Borough does not allocate indirect costs.

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Borough as an entity and the
change in the Borough's net position resulting from the current year's activities.

Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements:

The financial transactions of the Borough are reported in individual fund financial statements.

Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The
various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The following fund types are used by the Borough:

1. Governmental Funds - The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund

statements) is upon determination of f inancial posit ion (sources, uses, and balances of

financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the
governmental funds of the Borough:

a. General fund is the general operating fund of the Borough. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. Capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the

acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
business-type/proprietary funds).

c. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources

(other than capital projects) that are legally or administratively restricted expenditures
for specified purposes.

The three special revenue funds are not major funds of the Borough. The activity relating to
these funds is shown in the other governmental funds column on the fund financial statements.

-  26 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 1 -  Summary of  Signi f icant  Account ing Pol ic ies (Cont inued):

Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements (Continued):

2. Proprietary Funds - The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of
operating income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally
accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private

sector. The following is a description of the proprietary fund of the Borough:

a. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt

that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements
that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and
charges, or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover
similar costs.

3. Fiduciary Funds -  The funds are used to report  assets held in a t rustee or custodial

capacity for others and, therefore, are not available to support Borough programs.

a. Custodial fund is used to account for funds posted by developers who have projects in
progress in the Borough and for funds received for security deposits from tenants in the

Borough Hall building. The developers' funds are used to pay legal, engineering, and

administrative costs incurred by the Borough relating to those projects. The security
deposits will be returned to the tenants when they vacate their rental space less any
charges for damages or rent.

Basis of Accounting:

Basis of account ing refers to the point at  which revenues or expenditures/expenses are

recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of

the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual  -  Both governmental  and business-type act iv i t ies in the government-wide

financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are

recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual - The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the

modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,

revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available.
"Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end.
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting

when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal
and interest on general obligation long term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

- 27 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 1 - Summary of Signif icant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The Borough has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits,
money markets, and certificates of deposit. Additionally, funds pooled in the Pennsylvania

Local Government Investment Trust (PLGIT) and the Pennsylvania Treasurer's Invest program
are treated as a cash equivalent because the Borough can deposit or withdraw cash at any time
without prior notice or penalty.

Accounts Receivable - Electric Fund:

The following procedures are followed regarding the accounts receivable due to the Borough

from electric customers. Accounts 1-30 days past due are mailed a first past due statement with

penalty and shut off notice. Accounts 31-40 days past due are mailed a second past due
statement with penalty and final shut off notice. Accounts 41 days past due are notified that

electric will be shut off between April 15 and November 1 as allowed by law. Yellow tags are
placed on doors 5 days before shut off. Red tags are placed on door on shut off date and then
power is shut off. Properties associated with accounts closed and not paid are liened with

collection made when property is sold. Rental property owners are charged after sending 3
notices, and the property is liened if the owner does not pay after 20 days.

Budge t :

The Borough Council adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgets reflected
in the financial statements.

1. Beginning at least 30 days prior to adoption of the budget, a proposed budget for the
ensuing year shall be prepared in a manner designated by Council. The proposed budget
shall be kept on file with the borough secretary and made available for public inspection
for a period of 10 days.

2. Notice that the proposed budget is available for inspection must be published in a
newspaper of general circulation in the Borough and conspicuously posted during the
10-day period noted in item 1.

3. After 10 days, Council shall adopt the budget no later than December 31 and file it with
the Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development.

4. Annual budgets are generally adopted for the general, highway aid, capital
improvement, and electric funds.

5. For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at the end of each year.

- 28 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 1 -  Summary of  Signi f icant  Account ing Pol ic ies (Cont inued):

Budget (Continued):

6. The budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

7. The budget was not amended during 2024.

Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources

related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the

Borough of Perkasie's Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS) plans (Plans) and
additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the

same basis as they are reported by PMRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Deferred Revenue:

The Borough reports deferred revenue on its balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a

potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition
in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the Borough
before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met,
or when the Borough has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is
removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Operating Revenues and Expenses:

The Borough's proprietary fund distinguishes between operating and nonoperating revenues
and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses of the Borough's electric fund consist of

charges for services and the costs of providing those services, including depreciation and
excluding interest cost. All other revenues and expenses are reported as nonoperating.

Developers Funds:

The Borough requires developers to deposit escrow funds to pay legal and engineering fees
incurred by the Borough on their behalf.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of f inancial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that af fect the reported amounts of  assets and l iabi l i t ies and disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
es t imates .

-  29 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 1 - Summary of Signif icant Accounting Pol icies (Continued):

Date of  Management Evaluat ion of  Subsequent Events:

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 3, 2025, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 2  -  Depos i ts  and Investments :

Pennsylvania statutes provide for investment of Governmental Funds into certain authorized

investment types including U.S. Treasury bil ls, other short-term U.S. and Pennsylvania

government obligations, insured or collateralized time deposits and certificates of deposit, and
qualifying commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, negotiable certificates of deposit, and
insured bank deposit reciprocal arrangements. The statutes do not prescribe regulations related
to demand deposits; however, they do allow the pooling of Governmental Funds for investment
purposes.

The Borough does not have a formal deposit and investment policy but adheres to state statutes
and prudent business practice. Governmental Funds' amounts are either maintained in demand
deposits, highly liquid money market funds, certificates of deposits, or pooled for investment
purposes in the Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (PLGIT), and the
Pennsylvania Treasurer's Invest Program and are captioned as "cash" in the statement of net

position. These amounts are stated at cost which approximates market. There were no deposit
or investment transactions during the year that were in violation of either the state statutes or
the policy of the Borough.

Deposits:

Concentration of Credit Risk - As of December 31, 2024, 11% of the balances shown as
cash on the Borough's Statement of Net Position were held by PLGIT, 69% by Univest

Bank and Trust Company, 6% by American Heritage Federal Credit Union, 3% by
Pennsylvania Treasurer's Invest Program, 8% by Penn Community Bank, and 3% by
QNB Bank .

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure,
the Borough's deposits may not be returned to it. The Borough follows state statutes as

they relate to custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2024, the Borough's total bank

balances of $4,271,345 were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

-  30 -

Balances subject to FDIC Insurance $ 654,996

Balances subject to NCUS Insurance 243,290

Balances uninsured and collateralized with

securities held by Univest Bank and Trust Company and
Penn Community Bank not in the Borough's name 2,759,262
Balances uninsured and uncollateralized funds

wi th  PLGIT and Invest 6 1 3 , 7 9 7

T O T A L $ 4 ,271,345



-

B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 3 -  Receivables:

A breakdown of the various receivables of the Borough of Perkasie at December 31, 2024 is as
f o l l o w s :

Taxes receivable

Grants Receivable:

PennDot Winter Agreement. $ 1 2 , 8 8 8

Other Receivables:

General  Fund:

Charges for services, fines and reimbursements $  1 0 9 , 8 7 3

Capital Projects Fund:
$ 4 4 , 2 0 3Property owner sidewalk assessments

Electric Fund accounts receivable $ 748,521

Note 4 - Leases Receivable:

$ 264,701

The Borough implemented GASBS No. 87 The Lease Standard, effective as of January 1,
2022 .  The  Borough  i s  repor t i ng  on  the  Government -Wide  F inanc ia l  S ta tements  l ease

receivables of $598,957, interest receivable of $3,708, and deferred inflows of $447,386 on the

leases as of December 31, 2024. For the year ending December 31, 2024, the Borough reported
lease revenue of $66,963 and interest revenue of $31,499 related to lease payments received.
The leases are summarized as fol lows:

L e a s e

ReceivableL e a s e

Interest

Receivable

G o v e r n m e n t a l  A c t i v i t i e s

Verizon Cell Tower $ 182 ,330

Cingular Wireless Cel l  Tower 115,800
Dental  Off ice 210,869

Parking Lot 27 ,647

Inves tment  Of f i ce 62,311

$ 598 ,957

$ 7 4 9

476

8 6 7

1,360

2 5 6 5 1 , 4 0 7

$ 3 ,708

D e f e r r e d

I n f l ows

L e a s e

Revenue

I n t e r e s t

R e v e n u e

$ 144,206 $ 9 , 1 5 6  $

77,456

147,061

27 ,256

$  447 .386

10,214

25,576

3,873

18,144

$  6 6 , 9 6 3 $ 3 1 , 4 9 9

9,240
6,047

11,223

1 ,427

3,562

Verizon Cell Tower - On August 17, 2015, the Borough entered into a lease with Verizon Wireless
to lease a portion of property at 311 South Ninth Street, Perkasie for space for a cell tower. The

lease has an initial term of five years with four additional five-year terms. Monthly rent started at

$1,000 with an increase of 112% of the annual rental payment of the preceding five-year term.

-  31  -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 4 - Leases Receivable (Continued):

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Y e a r

2025 $ 13,843
2026 15,053

2 0 2 15,053

2 0 2 8 15,053

2029 15,053

2030-2034 87,493

2 0 3 5 - 2 0 3 9

2 0 4 0 14 ,162

A m o u n t

94,412

$270,122

Cingular Wireless Cell Tower - On August 1, 2006, the Borough entered into a lease with
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC to lease a portion of property at 311 South Ninth Street, Perkasie
for space for a cell tower. The lease has an initial term of five years with four additional five-

year terms. Monthly rent started at $835 with an annual increase of 3%.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Y e a r A m o u n t

2025 $ 16,768
2 0 2 6 17,272
2 0 2 7 17,790

2029

2 0 3 0 - 2 0 3 2

$140,369

18,3232 0 2 8

18,873

51,343

Dental Office - On January 6, 2020, the Borough entered into a lease with L.R. Cerdas, DMD,

LLC to lease space in the Borough Hall for use as a dental office. The lease term is ten years.

For the first thirty-five months, the lessee will receive a rent credit of $1,800 per month. At that
time, the monthly rental payment will be $3,152 with annual increases of 2.5%.

- 32 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 4 - Leases Receivable (Continued):

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Y e a r

2 0 2 5 $ 39,992

2026 40,986

2027

2 0 2 8

44,1412 0 2 9

2 0 3 3 3 , 7 2 3

Amount

42,002

43,052

$243,896

Parking Lot - On December 20, 2021, the Borough entered into a lease with QNB Bank to
lease a parking lot. The lease term is ten years with an annual payment of $4,800.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Y e a r

2 0 2 5 $ 4 ,800
2026 4,800

2 0 2 7

2028

2029

2030-2031

$  33 ,600

A m o u n t

4,800

4,800

4 , 8 0
9,600

Investment Office - On November 21, 2022, the Borough entered into a lease with Edward D.
Jones & Co., L.P. to lease space in Borough Hall for use as an office. The lease term is five
years. All rent from the period of November 1, 2022 to April 30, 2023 will be abated as a free
rent period for Lesse. Lesse to pay all utilities during this time. Monthly rent of $1,800 began
May 1, 2023 with an annual increase of 3% each November 1.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Y e a r

2 0 2 7

Amoun t

$ 23,0342 0 2 5

2 0 2 6 23,722

20,261
$ 6 7 , 0 1 7

-  33 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

D E C E M B E R  3 1 ,  2 0 2 4

Note 5 - Inventories:

Inventory in the general fund consists of trash bags held for sale to residents. They are reported
at cost.

Inventory in the electric fund consists of poles, wire, and transformers. They are reported at
c o s t .

Note 6 - Capital Assets:

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 and infrastructure

construction over $25,000 or more are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
Contr ibuted assets are reported at fair  market value as of the date received. Addit ions,

improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful l ives:

Bu i ld ings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 5 - 20 years
Vehicles 3 - 10 years
I n f r a s t r u c t u r e 25 years

Changes in Capital Assets:

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2024:

Primary Government

Governmenta l  Ac t i v i t i es :

Capital assets not being depreciated:
L a n d

Beginning
Balance Increases £ D e c r e a s e s

Other capital assets:

Buildings

Total Other Capital Assets
At Historical Cost 31,137,841 1 ,247 ,076

$ 4 , 5 6 8 , 9 3 9 $ 0 $ 0  $  4 , 5 6 8 , 9 3 9

Ending

Balance

8,765,305

Equipment 9,512,553
Vehic les 1,959,337

I n f r a s t r u c t u r e 10,900,646

707,356

67,070

472,650
(16,320)

(16,320)

- 34 -

8,765,305
10,219,909

2,010,087
11,373,296

3 2 , 3 6 8 , 5 9 7



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 6 - Capital  Assets (Continued):

Pr imary Government

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings (6,510,613)
Equipment (6,680,508)
V e h i c l e s (1,432,283
I n f r a s t r u c t u r e (3,755,346)

(18,378,750) (1,169,747)

Other capital assets net 12,759,091 77,329

Beginning
B a l a n c e I n c r e a s e s

(184,770)
(409,883)
(129,615)
(445,479)

D e c r e a s e s

16,320

16,320

Ending

B a l a n c e

(6,695,383)
(7,090,391)

(1,545,578
(4,200,825)

(19 ,532,177)

0 12,836,420

Governmenta l  Act iv i t ies

Capital Assets Net $ 17.328,030 $ 77,329 $ 0  $  1 7 , 4 0 5 , 3 5 9

Bus iness  Type Ac t iv i t ies :

Capital assets not being depreciated:
L a n d

Other capital assets:

Bui ld ings 339,663

Equipment 3,303,248
V e h i c l e s 940,844
I n f r a s t r u c t u r e 662,447

Total Other Capital Assets
At Historical Cost. 5 ,246 ,202 1 7 3 , 1 4 7 (141,651)

Less accumulated depreciation:

Bui ldings (292,613)

Equipment (2,780,871)
Veh ic les (677,447)
I n f r as t ruc tu re (168,061)

Other capital assets net. 1 , 3 2 7 , 2 1 0

$ 134 ,211 $

(3,918,992)

0

173,147

(1,101)

(92,946)
(50,620)
(29,931)

(174,598)

(1,451)

$ 0

(141,651)

141,651

141 ,651

$ 134,21

339,663

3,334,744
940,844
6 6 2 , 4 4 7

5 , 2 7 7 , 6 9 8

(293,714)

(2,732,166)
(728,067)
(197,992)

(3,951,939)

0 1 , 3 2 5 , 7 5 9

- 35 -

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets Net $ 1,461,421 $  ( 1 , 4 5 1 ) $ 0 $ 1,459,970



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

D E C E M B E R  3 1 ,  2 0 2 4

Note 6 - Capital Assets (Continued):

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

G o v e r n m e n t a l  A c t i v i t i e s :

General government $ 92,189

Public safety - police and zoning. 128,154

Refuse col lect ion

Publ ic  works 532,746

Recreat ion and conservat ion 335,975

Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $1,169,747

80,683

Bus iness  Type Act iv i t ies :

Electr ic $  1 7 4 , 5 9 8

Note 7 -  Deferred Outf lows of  Resources:

The Borough reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of
resources in a separate section of i ts f inancial statements. Deferred outflows of resources

reported in this year's f inancial statements include deferred outf lows of resources for
contributions made to the Borough's defined benefit pension plans between the measurement

date of the net pension l iabil i ty and the end of the Borough's f iscal year, changes in
assumptions made by PMRS during 2023, differences between expected and actual experience,
and net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments.
Deferred outflows for pension contributions will be recognized in the subsequent fiscal year.
The deferred outflows related to assumption changes and differences between expected and
actual experience will be recognized over a five-year period.

Note 8 - Compensated Absences:

The Borough does allow employees to accumulate vacation time. Sick time, personal time, and
comp time can be accrued for management staff based on the terms of negotiated employment
c o n t r a c t s .

The following is a summary of compensated absences at December 31, 2024.

Governmental funds employees $ 110,117

Proprietary fund - employees
$  129 ,945

19,828

- 36 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 9 - Deferred Revenues:

Deferred revenues at December 31, 2024 consist of the following:

General fund:

2025 pool season ticket sales

Capital Projects Fund:

Liened amounts for sidewalk assessments

FEMA covered bridge grant funds 314 ,309

$ 48,445

10,749

$ 3 7 3 , 5 0 3

Note 10 -  Long Term L iab i l i t ies :

The following is a summary of changes in long term liabilities for the year ended December
31, 2024.

Beginning
B a l a n c e A d d i t i o n sGovernmen ta l  Ac t i v i t i es :

Loans Payable:
D V R F A - 2 0 0 6 $ 5 2 7 , 0 0 0 $

D V R F A - 2 0 0 7 1 ,177 ,000

T o t a l  L o a n s 1,704,000 0 (388,000) 1,316,000

R e d u c t i o n s

Ending
Balance

$ (170,000)
(218,000)

-  37 -

$  357 ,000 $ 175,000

959 ,000

Other  L iab i l i t i es :

Net pension liability -
Nonuni formed 382,027 (376,992) 5,035

Net pension liability -
Pol ice 2,000,219

Compensated absences . . 77,350

Governmen ta l  Ac t i v i t i es

Long Term Liabil i t ies. $  4 , 1 6 3 , 5 9 6 $

(831,858) 1,168,361

3 2 , 7 6 7 0

32,767 (1,208,850)

110,117

Total Other Liabil i t ies 2 ,459 ,596 1,283,513

32,767 $(1,596,850) $2,599,513

A m o u n t s

Due  Wi th in

One Year

228,000

403,000

0

$ 403,000



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note  10  -  Long Term L iab i l i t ies  (Cont inued) :

Description of Debt:

G o v e r n m e n t a l  A c t i v i t i e s :

Delaware Val ley Regional Finance Author i ty (DVRFA) 2006 Borrowing:

On September 25, 2006, the Borough entered into a loan agreement with the Delaware
Valley Regional Finance Authority. Total proceeds from the loan were $2,600,000 which

were used for the Menlo Pool Project and the costs incurred to issue the note. The loan is
payable in twenty annual installments due September 25 of each year. The interest rates

applicable to the remaining portion of the loan, which includes amounts required to fund the
payments for debt service on the bond issue, the net payments on interest rate swap
agreements, and the administrative expenses to fund the DelVal Loan Program, were as
follows through November 1, 2021: 25% of the loan fixed at 1.77%, 50% of the loan fixed at

4.41%, and 25% of the loan at a variable interest rate which averaged 0.745%. On November
1, 2021, the rates on the portions of the loan, other than for the 25% fixed at 1.77%, were

fixed at a rate of 1.258%. The rate on the remaining 25% of the loan was fixed at 1.258% as

of September 25, 2022. Interest is due monthly on the outstanding balance. A maturity
schedule as fol lows:

Sep tember  25 , Princ ipal

$ 175,000

I n t e r e s t

$2 0 2 5

2 0 2 6

$ 3 5 7 , 0 0 0

182,000

3,390

1 ,145

$ 4 , 5 3 5

To ta l

$ 178,390

1 8 3 , 1 4 5

$ 3 6 1 . 5 3 5

Delaware Val ley Regional  Finance Author i ty (DVRFA) 2007 Borrowing:

On June 25, 2007, the Borough entered into a loan agreement with the Delaware Valley
Regional Finance Authori ty.  Total proceeds from the loan were $1,600,000 which were

being used for the Menlo Pool Project and the costs incurred to issue the note. The loan is

payable in twenty annual installments due June 25 of each year. The interest rate applicable
to the loan was variable monthly until November 1, 2021, at which time it was fixed at a rate
of 1.258%. The average interest rate applicable to the loan during 2021, which includes
amounts required to fund the payments for debt service on the bond issue, the net payments
on interest rate swap agreements, and the administrative expenses to fund the DelVal Loan

Program, was 1.258%. Interest is due monthly on the outstanding balance. A maturi ty
schedule follows:

-  38 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note  10  -  Long  Te rm L iab i l i t i es  (Con t i nued ) :

June 25,

2025

2 0 2 6

2 0 2 7

2 0 2 8

Principal

228,000

238,000

249,000

2 4 4 , 0 0 0

$

$ 959,000 $ 2 4 , 5 0 0

I n t e r e s t

$ 10,630

7,699

4,636
1 , 5 3 5

Total

$ 238,630

245,699

253,636

245,535

$ 9 8 3 , 5 0 0

Note 11 -  Deferred Inf lows of  Resources:

The Borough's statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate f inancial statement element ref lects an increase in net assets that

applies to future periods. Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the Borough's various
statements of net position for differences between expected and actual experience applicable to

the Borough's pension plans. These deferred inflows of resources will be attributed to pension
expense over a total of five years. Deferred inflows of resources are also recorded for revenues

that are not considered available. Accordingly, unavailable revenues related to funding from
2025 preseason pool season ticket sales, a FEMA grant award to repair the covered bridge, and
l iened sidewalk revenue are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of  net posi t ion.  Deferred revenues are also recorded in the

government-wide statement of net position for future rental and interest income associated with

the Borough's lessor agreements.

Note 12 -  Government-Wide and Propr ie tary  Fund Net  Posi t ion:

Government-wide and proprietary fund net position is divided into three components:

· Net investment in capital assets - consists of the historical cost of capital assets less
accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to
finance those assets plus deferred outflows of resources less deferred inflows of resources

related to those assets.

Restricted net position - consists of assets that are restricted by the Borough's creditors (for
example, through debt covenants), by the state enabling legislation (through restrictions on
shared revenues), by grantors (both federal and state), and by other contributors.

· Unrestricted - all other net position is reported in this category.

-  39 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 13 -  Fund Balance:

In  accordance wi th  GASB 54,  Fund Balance Repor t ing and Governmenta l  Fund Type
Definitions, the Borough classifies governmental fund balances as follows:

Non-spendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in

spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints. The "not in spendable form"

criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. The non-spendable fund

balance includes the trash bag inventory and prepaid expenses.

Restricted - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which
are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors, grantors or amounts constrained due to
enabling legislation.

Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the Borough through formal action of the Borough Council. Presently
the Borough has no committed fund balances.

Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes
that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund Balance may be assigned by the
Borough Council.

Unassigned - includes positive fund balances within the General Fund which have not been

classi f ied wi th in the above-ment ioned categor ies and negat ive fund balances in other
governmental  funds.

In the general fund, the Borough strives to maintain an unassigned fund balance to be used for
unanticipated emergencies of approximately 20% of actual expenditures.

- 40 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 14 - Use of Restr icted Resources:

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources
(net position), the Borough's policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and
then toward unrestricted resources. In governmental funds, the Borough's policy is to first
apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive

classifications-committed and then assigned fund balances if there are any before using
unassigned fund balances.

Note 15 - Property Taxes:

Property taxes are levied in January. Liens are placed on uncollected taxes by January 15th of
the following year. The Borough uses a tax collector to make collections throughout the year.
Property tax revenue is recognized when col lected. No al lowance for uncol lect ible taxes is

used. Eventually all taxes are collected and remitted to the Borough.

Note  16  -  In te r fund Ac t iv i t y :

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers.

Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
el iminat ion upon consol idat ion.  Al l  o ther  in ter fund t ransact ions are t reated as t ransfers.

Transfers between governmental funds are netted as part of the reconcil iat ions to the
government -w ide f inanc ia l  s ta tements .

As of December 31, 2024, interfund receivables and payables that resulted from various

interfund transactions primarily relating to reimbursements due for expenses and receipts
collected belonging to other funds were as follows:

General Fund

F u n d

Capital Fund 46,135

Custodial Fund 94,820

440,358Electric Fund

Road Improvement Fund
$ 7 4 8 , 4 0 3

D u e  F r o m

Other  Funds

$  1 6 7 , 0 9 0

Due To

O t h e r  F u n d s

$ 167,748

414,204

162,609

3,842

$ 7 4 8 , 4 0 3

-  41 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 16 - Interfund Activity (Continued):

Individual fund operating transfers for the year ended December 31, 2024 were as follows:

General Fund

F u n d

Total  General  Fund

Special Revenue Fund 2 5 1 , 3 9 5

Capital Projects Fund 545,000

275,000

Total Capital Projects Fund 1,136,395

Proprietary Fund - Electric Fund 2,105,004
545 ,000

Total Proprietary Fund 0 2,650,004

TOTAL  ALL  FUNDS $ 3,241.399 $ 3 ,241 ,399

Transfers  In

$ 2,105,004

2,105,004

Transfers Out

$ 65,000
275 ,000

340,000

- -

251,395

65 ,000

0

Transfers from the proprietary fund to the general and capital projects fund were used for
operations and to fund capital expenditures. Transfers from the general fund to the capital

projects fund were used for debt service. Transfer from the special revenue fund to capital
projects were used for road projects.

Note  17  -  Net  Work ing  Cap i ta l  -  Propr ie ta ry  Fund:

Current  assets $ 2,713,175
Less current  l iabi l i t ies 1 , 0 4 4 , 2 4 9

Net Working Capital $ 1.668,926

-  42  -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 18 - Pension Plan - Non-uniformed:

Plan Description - The Perkasie Borough non-uniformed pension plan is a single-employer
defined benefit pension plan controlled by the provisions of Ordinance No. 619 adopted
pursuant to Act 15 of 1974. The plan participates in the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement
System (PMRS) which is an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating municipal pension
plans. PMRS issues a separate Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The ACFR is
available on the PMRS website. A copy can be obtained by contacting the PMRS accounting
off ice.

Benefits Provided - The plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
members and their beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided at the discretion of

the plan trustee.

Employees Covered - At December 31, 2023, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms of the plan:

Active employees 1

Inactive employees or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 19

Inactive employees entitled to but
5not yet receiving benefits

Total Participant Count 43

Contributions - Act 205 requires that annual contributions be based upon the plan's minimum
municipal obligation (MMO). The MMO is based upon the plan's biennial actuarial valuation.

In accordance with the plan's governing Ordinance, active employees are required to
contribute 5.00 percent of their compensation to the plan. The plan may also be eligible to
receive an allocation of state aid from the general municipal pension system state aid program
which must be used for funding the Borough's contribution obligations under the plan. Any
funding requirements established by the MMO in excess of employee contributions and state
aid must be paid by the municipality in accordance with Act 205.

Net Pension Liability:

The Borough's net pension liability is measured as the total pension liability reduced by the
pension plan's fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the plan is measured as of
December 31, 2023 using a biennial actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2023 and then rolled

forward to December 31, 2023. A summary of the principal assumptions and methods used to
determine the net pension liability is shown below:

-  43  -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 18 - Pension Plan - Non-uniformed (Continued):

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the January 1, 2023 actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

I n f l a t i o n 2 . 2 %

Salary increases: Age related scale with merit and inflation component
Investment  Return : 5.25%

Pre-Retirement Mortality: M a l e s : PUB-2010 General Employees male table
Females: PUB-2010 General Employees female table

Post-Retirement Mortality: M a l e s : RP 2006 annuitant male table

Females: RP 2006 annui tant female table

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets - The PMRS System's long-term
expected real rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimates of expected future nominal rates of return (net of

investment expenses) are developed for each asset class. These returns are combined to

produce the System's Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return by calculating the weighted
average return for each asset class using each respective target asset allocation percentage
and multiplying by the expected future nominal rate of return, while also factoring in
covariance across asset classes, then deducting expected inflation (2.5%). Best estimates of

geometric real rates of return for each utilized asset class are included in the pension plan's
target asset allocation as of December 31, 2023 and summarized in the table below labeled

"System Nominal Net and Real Rates of Return by Asset Class."

System Nominal Net and Real Rates of Return by Asset Class

T a r g e t

Asset

A l l o c a t i o n  o f  R e t u r n

N o m i n a l

N e t  R a t e

Asset  C lass

Domestic Equities (large capitalized firms) 2 4 . 5 %

Domestic Equities (small capitalized firms) 8
International Equities (international developed markets) 1 4 . 5 %

-  44 -

7 . 3 9 % 4 . 8 9 %

8 . 3 0 %

International Equities (emerging markets) 3
Global Equities
Real Estate
Timber

Fixed Income (Core Investment Grade)

Fixed Income (Opportunistic Credit) 5 %

Cash 1 %

Total Portfol io

5%

1 0 %

5 %

2 4 %

1 0 0 %

7 . 6 8 %

8 . 3 9 %

6.61%

6 . 3 8 %

5 . 7 5 %

5 . 0 1 %

6 . 9 5 %

3 . 3 9 %

7 . 3 1 %

L o n g - T e r m

Expected
Rea l  Ra te

o f  R e t u r n

5 . 8 0 %

5 . 1 8 %

5 . 8 9 %

4 . 1 1 %

3 . 8 8 %

3.25%

2 . 5 1 %

4 . 4 5 %

0.89%

4 . 8 1 %



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 18 -  Pens ion P lan -  Non-un i formed (Cont inued) :

Based on the aforementioned methodology, the Board established the System's Long-Term
Expected Rate of Return at 7.31%.

In addit ion to determining the System's Long-Term Nominal Expected Rate of Return, the

PMRS Board, under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Act 15 of 1974), is

obligated to develop and apply the Regular Interest Rate to each of the individual participating
municipalities' actuarial asset accounts held by PMRS. The rationale for the difference between

the System's Long-Term Nominal Expected Rate of Return and the individual participating
municipalities' Regular Interest Rate is described in the following section "Discount Rate." As of
December 31, 2023, this rate is equal to 5.25%.

The Board has determined the minimum acceptable confidence level for achieving the Regular
Interest Rate to be 60%. The table below labeled "Confidence Levels for System Nominal Net

and Real Rates of Return" identif ies simulated portfol io returns at various confidence levels

based on the most recent asset allocation study conducted by the Boards' investment consultant,
Marquette Associates.

Confidence Levels for System Nominal Net and Real Rates of Return

C o n f i d e n c e

I n t e r v a l

9 5 %

-  45  -

9 0 % 4 . 8 7 % 2 . 3 7 %

8 5 % 5 . 3 3 %

8 0 % 5 . 7 2 %

7 5 %

70%

6 0 %

N o m i n a l  N e t  R a t e

o f  R e t u r n

4 . 0 7 % 1 . 5 7 %

6 . 0 3 %

6.35%

6 . 8 7 %

L o n g - T e r m

Expected Real
Rate  o f  Re tu rn

2 . 8 3 %

3 . 2 2 %

3 . 5 3 %

3 . 8 5 %

4 . 3 7 %



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 18 -  Pens ion P lan -  Non-un i formed (Cont inued) :

Discount Rate - While it is often common practice to establish an actuarial Discount Rate that is

equal to the Long-Term Expected Nominal Rate of Return, PMRS is required by law (Act 15 of
1974) to establish a Discount Rate equal to the Regular Interest Rate (Regular Interest
Rate/Discount Rate). The PMRS Board establishes the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate on

the basis of expected stable and consistent earnings on investments to be applied to the accounts
of the individual participating municipalities and includes the accounts of plan participants,
municipalities, and plan retirees each year. As a starting point, the Board considers the
following five quantitative factors in reviewing the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate:

1 . Retiree Plan liability as a percentage of total Plan liability,
2 . Active Plan participant liability as a percentage of total Plan liability,
3.) Smoothed annuity purchase rates (Pension Benefit Guarantee Corporation (PBGC)

annuity rates have been used as a proxy for this),

4 . PMRS System Long Term Expected Nominal Rate of Return, and

5 . PMRS investment expenses

A formula using these factors is as follows:

Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate = (Retiree Liability Percentage x Smoothed PBGC Annuity
Rates) + (Active Employee Liability Percentage x System Long Term Expected Rate of Return)
- (Investment Expenses as a percentage of assets)

The Board then considers the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate derived from the above

formula against a variety of qualitative factors such as the desire to minimize Regular Interest

Rate/Discount Rate volatility, probability of achieving the Regular Interest Rate, varying levels
of asset allocation and liquidity, trending of annuity rates, total PMRS actuarial and market
value funding ratios, feedback from existing PMRS municipalities, and recommendations from

the System's investment and actuarial consultants. The Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate

adopted by the Board and used to measure the individual participating municipalities' total
pension liability was 5.25% as of December 31, 2023.

The Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate wil l  l ikely be less than the System Long-Term
Expected Rate of Return. Should the System experience a prolonged period of investment
returns in excess of the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate, the Board is authorized to allocate

any applicable portion of any such excess in accordance with Board policies in the form of
Excess Interest as provided for in the law.

-  46  -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 18 - Pension Plan - Non-uniformed (Continued):

The projection of cash flows for each underlying municipal plan, used to determine if any
adjustment to the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate was required ("depletion testing"), used
the following assumptions: 1.) member contributions will be made at the current contribution

rate, 2.) participating plan sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate, and 3.) the System's

Long Term Expected Rate of Return will be used in the depletion testing of projected cash
flows. Based on those assumptions, the PMRS pension plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Changes in the reported Net Pension Liability for the year ending December 31, 2024 are as
f o l l ows :

-  47 -

Increase (Decrease)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

$ 10,480,094

To ta l  Pens ion

L i a b i l i t y

$ 11,067,828Balance at December 31, 2023

Changes in the year:
Service cost

Contribution - PMRS assessment

Market  va lue investment  income

PMRS administrat ive expense

Addit ional administrative expense

Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions

Net Changes

Balance at December 31, 2024 $ 11.416,035

184,908

579,971

(416,672)

348,207

167,969

8 6
76,842

542,921

587,543 (587,543)

(860
(30,409)

(416,672)

928,194

$ 11,408,288 $ 7.747

N e t  P e n s i o n

L i a b i l i t y / ( A s s e t )

$ 587,734

184,90
Interest on the total pension liability .... 579,971

Contribution - employer (167,969)

(860
Contribution - employee (76,842)
PMRS inves tmen t  i ncome (542,921)

8 6
30,409

(579,987)



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 18 - Pension Plan - Non-uniformed (Continued):

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following
presents the net pension liability of the Borough for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate
for the Plan, as well as what the Borough's net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the
c u r r e n t  r a t e :

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate

Total Pension Liability $ 13,015,219
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability (Asset) $  1 , 6 0 6 , 9 3 1

1%

D e c r e a s e

4 . 2 5 %

11,408,288

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 8 7 . 6 5 %

D i s c o u n t

Rate I n c r e a s e

6.25%5 .25%

$ 11,416,035 $ 10,083,394
11,408,2881 1 , 4 0 8 , 2 8 8

$ 7,747

9 9 . 9 3 % 113.14%

1%

$ (1,324,894)

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outf lows/Inf lows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Borough recognized pension expense of $(53,002).
At December 31, 2024, the Borough reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date

Differences between actual and expected experience

-  48 -

Changes in assumptions

229,669

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments
Total $ 10,694 $ 637,558

D e f e r r e d

I n f l o w s

o f  R e s o u r c e s

$

10,694

D e f e r r e d

Outflows

of  Resources

$ 168,723

92,343

146,82



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 18 - Pension Plan - Non-uniformed (Continued):

The amounts reported as deferred outf lows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2 0 2 5 $ 185,774

2026 228,265
2027 301,978

2028 (89,153)

2 0 2 0

T h e r e a f t e r 0

Allocation Between Governmental and Business-Type Activities

Allocation of the net pension liability balance as of December 31, 2024 and pension expense for

the year ending December 31, 2024 between the Borough's governmental and business-type
activities was based upon the percentage of 2024 wage expenses attributable to the respective
activities. The following schedule summarizes the Borough's ending net pension liability
balances as reported in the statement of net position and the pension expense as reported in the
statement of activit ies.

Pension Expense

for the year ending
December 31, 2024

$ (34,451)

Net Pension Liability
as of December 31, 2024

Governmental  Act iv i t ies $ 5 , 0 3
Business-Type Activities $ 2,712 $ (18,551)

Note 19 - Pension Plan - Pol ice:

Plan Description - The Perkasie Borough Police pension plan is a single-employer defined
benefit pension plan controlled by the provisions of Ordinance No. 523 adopted pursuant to Act
15 of 1974. The plan participates in the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS)
which is an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for participating municipal pension plans. PMRS issues a
separate Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The ACFR is available on the
PMRS website. A copy can be obtained by contacting the PMRS accounting office.

Benefits Provided - The plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
members and their beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided at the discretion of the
plan trustee.

-  49 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 19 - Pension Plan - Police (Continued):

Employees Covered - At December 31, 2023, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms of the plan:

Active employees 18

Inactive employees or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 14

Inactive employees entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits 0

Total Participant Count 3 2

Contributions - Act 205 requires that annual contributions be based upon the plan's minimum
municipal obligation (MMO). The MMO is based upon the plan's biennial actuarial valuation.

In accordance with the plan's governing Ordinance, active employees are required to contribute
5.00 percent of their compensation to the plan. The plan may also be eligible to receive an
allocation of state aid from the general municipal pension system state aid program which must
be used for funding the Borough's contribution obligations under the plan. Any funding
requirements established by the MMO in excess of employee contributions and state aid must
be paid by the municipality in accordance with Act 205.

Net Pension Liability:

The Borough's police plan net pension liability is measured as the total pension liability reduced
by the pension plan's fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the plan is measured as
of December 31, 2023 using a biennial actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2023 and then rolled

forward to December 31, 2023. A summary of the principal assumptions and methods used to
determine the net pension liability is shown below:

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the January 1, 2023 actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

I n f l a t i on

Salary increases:
Inves tment  Return : 5 . 2 5 %

2 . 2 %

Age related scale with merit and inflation component

Pre-Ret i rement Mortal i ty : M a l e s : PUB-2010 General Employees male table
Females: PUB-2010 General Employees female table

Post-Retirement Mortal i ty: M a l e s : RP 2006 annuitant male table

Females: RP 2006 annuitant female table

-  50 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 19 - Pension Plan - Police (Continued):

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets - The PMRS System's long term expected
real rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method

in which best-estimates of expected future nominal rates of return (net of investment expenses)

are developed for each asset class. These returns are combined to produce the System's Long-
Term Expected Real Rate of Return by calculating the weighted average return for each asset

class using each respective target asset allocation percentage and multiplying by the expected
future nominal rate of return, while also factoring in covariance across asset classes, then

deducting expected inflation (2.5%). Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each
utilized asset class are included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of December 31,

2023 and summarized in the table below labeled "System Nominal Net and Real Rates of
Return by Asset Class."

System Nominal Net and Real Rates of Return by Asset Class

Targe t
A s s e t

A l l o c a t i o n

N o m i n a l

Net Rate

o f  R e t u r nAsset  Class

Domestic Equities (large capitalized firms)
Domestic Equities (small capitalized firms)

2 4 . 5 %

8 %

14.5%

7.39% 4.89%

8 . 3 0 %

International Equities (emerging markets)
Global Equities
Real Estate 1 0 %

Timber 5%

Fixed Income (Core Investment Grade) 2 4 %

Fixed Income (Opportunistic Credit)
Cash

Total  Port fo l io

3
5%

5 %

1 %

1 0 0

7 . 6 8 %

8 . 3 9 %

6 .61%

6 . 3 8 %

5.75%

5 . 0 1 %

6 . 9 5 %

3 . 3 9 %

7.31%

L o n g - T e r m

Expected
Rea l  Ra te

o f  R e t u r n

5 . 8 0 %

International Equities (international developed markets) 5 . 1 8 %

5.89%

4.11%

3.88%
3.25%

2 . 5 1 %

4 . 4 5 %

0 . 8 9 %

4.81%

Based on the aforementioned methodology, the Board establ ished the System's Long-Term
Expected Rate of Return at 7.31%.

In addit ion to determining the System's Long-Term Nominal Expected Rate of Return, the

PMRS Board, under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Act 15 of 1974), is

obligated to develop and apply the Regular Interest Rate to each of the individual participating
municipalities' actuarial asset accounts held by PMRS. The rationale for the difference between

the System's Long-Term Nominal Expected Rate of Return and the individual participating
municipalities' Regular Interest Rate is described in the following section "Discount Rate." As
of December 31, 2023, this rate is equal to 5.25%.

- 51 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 19 - Pension Plan - Police (Continued):

The Board has determined the minimum acceptable confidence level for achieving the Regular
Interest Rate to be 60%. The table below labeled "Confidence Levels for System Nominal Net

and Real Rates of Return" identif ies simulated portfol io returns at various confidence levels

based on the most  recent  asset  a l locat ion  s tudy conducted by  the  Boards '  investment

consultant, Marquette Associates.

Confidence Levels for System Nominal Net and Real Rates of Return

Conf idence

I n t e r v a l

9 5 %

9 0 % 4 . 8 7 %

8 5 % 5 . 3 3 % 2 . 8 3 %

8 0 % 5 . 7 2 %

7 5 %

7 0 %

6 0 %

N o m i n a l  N e t  R a t e

of Return

4 . 0 7 % 1 . 5 7 %

6 . 0 3 %

6 . 3 5 %

6.87% 4.37%

L o n g - T e r m

Expected Real

Rate of Return

2 . 3 7 %

3 . 2 2 %

3.53%

3 . 8 5 %

Discount Rate - While it is often common practice to establish an actuarial Discount Rate that

is equal to the Long-Term Expected Nominal Rate of Return, PMRS is required by law (Act 15

of 1974) to establish a Discount Rate equal to the Regular Interest Rate (Regular Interest
Rate/Discount Rate). The PMRS Board establishes the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate on

the basis of expected stable and consistent earnings on investments to be applied to the
accounts of the individual participating municipalities and includes the accounts of plan
participants, municipalit ies, and plan retirees each year. As a starting point, the Board
cons iders  the  fo l low ing  f i ve  quant i ta t i ve  fac to rs  in  rev iewing  the  Regu lar  In te res t
Rate/Discount  Rate :

1 . Retiree Plan liability as a percentage of total Plan liability,
2 . Active Plan participant liability as a percentage of total Plan liability,

3 . Smoothed annuity purchase rates (Pension Benefit Guarantee Corporation (PBGC)
annuity rates have been used as a proxy for this),

4.) PMRS System Long Term Expected Nominal Rate of Return, and

5 . PMRS investment expenses

- 52 -



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 19 - Pension Plan - Police (Continued):

A formula using these factors is as follows:

Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate = (Retiree Liabi l i ty Percentage x Smoothed PBGC

Annuity Rates) + (Active Employee Liability Percentage x System Long Term Expected Rate
of Return) - (Investment Expenses as a percentage of assets)

The Board then considers the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate derived from the above
formula against a variety of qualitative factors such as the desire to minimize Regular Interest

Rate/Discount Rate volatility, probability of achieving the Regular Interest Rate, varying levels
of asset allocation and liquidity, trending of annuity rates, total PMRS actuarial and market
value funding ratios, feedback from existing PMRS municipalities, and recommendations from
the System's investment and actuarial consultants. The Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate

adopted by the Board and used to measure the individual participating municipalities' total
pension liability was 5.25% as of December 31, 2023.

The Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate wil l  l ikely be less than the System Long-Term
Expected Rate of Return. Should the System experience a prolonged period of investment
returns in excess of the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate, the Board is authorized to allocate

any applicable portion of any such excess in accordance with Board policies in the form of
Excess Interest as provided for in the law.

The projection of cash flows for each underlying municipal plan, used to determine if any
adjustment to the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate was required ("depletion testing"), used
the following assumptions: 1.) member contributions will be made at the current contribution

rate, 2.) participating plan sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate, and 3.) the System's

Long Term Expected Rate of Return will be used in the depletion testing of projected cash
f lows. Based on those assumptions, the PMRS pension plan's f iduciary net posit ion was

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
m e m b e r s .

-  53 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31,  2024

Note 19 - Pension Plan - Police (Continued):

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Changes in the reported Net Pension Liability for the year ending December 31, 2024 are as
f o l l o w s :

Increase (Decrease)

Balance at December 31, 2023

Changes in the year:
Service cost

Tota l  Pens ion

L i a b i l i t y

$ 15,519,226

398,659

Interest on the total pension liability .....

PMRS investment  income

Market value investment income

PMRS administrative expense

Additional administrative expense.

Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions

Net Changes

Balance at December 31, 2024 $ 16.240,341 $ 15,071,980

822,725

(500,269)

721 ,115

Plan Fiduciary
Net Posit ion

$ 13,519,007

498,199
6 0 0

117,167 (117,167)
704,517

772,819

(600
(39,460)

(500,269)

1,552,973

Net Pension

Liab i l i ty / (Asset )

$ 2,000,219

398,659

822,725

Contribution - employer (498,199)
Contr ibut ion - PMRS assessment. (600
Contribution - employee

(704,517)
(772,819)

600

39,460

(831,858)

$ 1 , 1 6 8 , 3 6 1

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liabil i ty to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following
presents the net pension liability of the Borough for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate
for the Plan, as well as what the Borough's net pension liability would be if it were calculated

using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the
c u r r e n t  r a t e :

-  54 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 19 - Pension Plan - Police (Continued):

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate

Total Pension Liability $ 18,571,131

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 15,071,980

Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 3,499,151 $ 1,168,361 $  ( 7 4 6 , 9 7 4 )

1 %

D e c r e a s e

4 . 2 5 %

D i s c o u n t

R a t e

5 . 2 5 %

$ 16,240,341 $ 14,325,006
15,071 ,980 15 ,071 ,980

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 8 1 . 1 6 % 9 2 . 8 1 % 1 0 5 . 2 1 %

1
I n c r e a s e

6 . 2 5 %

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Borough recognized pension expense of $365,763.
At December 31, 2024, the Borough reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

D e f e r r e d

In f lows

of  Resources of  Resources

$ $ 512,087

92,922

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date

Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes in assumptions

Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments

Total $ 92,922

D e f e r r e d

O u t f l o w s

112,231

134,437

649,578

$ 1,408,333

The amounts reported as deferred outf lows of resources and deferred inf lows of resources

related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31.
2025 $ 667,304
2 0 2 6 285,567

2027 517,103

2 0 2 8 (154,563)

T h e r e a f t e r

2029 0

0

-  55 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 20 -  Deferred Compensat ion Plans:

The Borough offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is administered by an independent plan
administrator. The plan is available to all employees and permits them to defer a portion of
their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or financial hardship.

Per an employment contract, the Borough offers a 401(a) defined contribution plan to the
Borough Manager.

Note  21  -  F lex ib le  Benef i t s  Program:

On January 1, 1995 the Borough adopted a flexible benefits program which allows employees
to purchase certain benefits offered by the Borough on a pretax basis. The flexible benefits
plan is intended to qualify as a cafeteria plan under the Internal Revenue Code. The benefits

offered through the program are medical option, medical spending account plan and dependent
care assistance plan.

Note  22  -  Par t i c ipa t ion  De laware  Va l ley  Insurance Trus t :

Insurance :

1. Nature of Pool Participation:

The Borough of Perkasie is a member municipality in the Delaware Valley Insurance Trust
(DVIT), a risk retention pool formed under the authority granted by the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania. DVIT is not a commercial insurance company.

The rights and responsibilities of each member are more fully explained in the Trust
Agreement, which is on file with the Borough and the Trust.

2. Insurance Coverage Summary:

All members of the pool are collectively assuming a portion of each loss. During coverage
year 2024 (January 1 to December 31) the Trust retained the first $1,000,000 of each loss

for the following liability lines of coverage: General, Public Officials, Automobile and
Law Enforcement. The Trust purchased reinsurance coverage for losses in excess of the
$1,000,000 retention up to the trust coverage limits of $11,000,000. The $10,000,000
excess coverage is provided by Government Entities Mutual (GEM).

DVIT assumed the first $500,000 of each first party property loss on behalf of the membership.
Excess property coverage is provided by the Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP). The
Trust also provides crime coverage, cyber coverage, and boiler and machinery coverage to its
membership. Coverage details are available from the Trust Coverage Document on file with
the Borough.

-  56 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note  22  -  Par t i c ipa t ion  De laware  Va l ley  Insurance  Trus t  (Cont inued) :

3 .  P r e m i u m  P a y m e n t s :

Perkasie Borough paid $183,737 in annual contributions for coverage year 2024. No
additional contributions are anticipated or now due, although DVPLT is an assessable pool.
Additional information on assessments may be found in Section VII of the Participation
Agreement .

4 .  R e f u n d s / D e d u c t i b l e s

The Trust declared a dividend in 2024. The Perkasie Borough's share of the dividend
distribution was $6,540.

The likelihood of future dividends depends upon the overall performance of the Trust. The
amount of the dividend earned by each municipal member is contingent upon the Member's
total years of participation, the Member's total incurred losses, and the Member's
proportionate share of the Trust's total contributions.

5. Signif icant Coverage Changes:

There are no significant coverage changes for 2024.

6.  C la ims:

A copy of the loss report on the claims filed by the Borough of Perkasie as of December
31, 2024 is on file with the Borough or is available upon request from the Trust.

Workers' Compensation Insurance:
1. Nature of Pool Participation:

The Borough of Perkasie is a member municipality in the Delaware Valley Workers'
Compensation Trust (DVWCT), a risk retention pool formed under the authority granted by
the Commonwealth of  Pennsylvania,  Department of  Labor and Industry,  Bureau of

Workers' Compensation. DVWCT is not a commercial insurance company

The rights and responsibilities of each member are more fully explained in the Trust
Agreement, which is on file with the Borough.

2. Insurance Coverage Summary:

All members of the pool collectively transfer risk to the DVWCT. The Trust assumes the
first $750,000 of each loss on behalf of the membership. Losses in excess of $750,000 per

occurrence are covered by Midwest Employers Casualty who provides excess coverage up
to l imits required by the Pennsylvania workers' compensation statutes and supporting
regulations. The Trust's excess insurer is the Midwest Employers Casualty of Chesterfield,
MO. The group fund insurance exemption number issued by the Bureau of Workers'
Compensation to the Trust is 5503.

-  57  -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

Note 22 -  Par t ic ipat ion Delaware Val ley Insurance Trust  (Cont inued) :

3.  Premium Payments :

Perkasie Borough paid $166,789 in annual contributions to DVWCT for coverage year

2024. No additional contribution is anticipated or now due, although DVWCT is an
assessable pool. An audit of the reported 2024 payroll will be performed during the first
quarter of 2025.

4 .  R e f u n d s / D i v i d e n d s :

The Trust declared a dividend in 2024. The mid-year dividend was distributed by check in
November, 2024. Perkasie Borough's share of the dividend was $13,115. As a result of the

2023 Payroll Audit, Perkasie paid $16,288.

The likelihood of future dividends depends upon the overall performance of the Trust. The
amount of the dividend earned by each municipal member is contingent upon the
Member's total years of participation, the Member's total incurred losses and the Member's
proportionate share of the Trust's total contributions.

5. Signif icant Coverage Changes:

There were no significant coverage changes in 2024.

6 .  C l a i m s :

A copy of the loss report on the claims filed by Perkasie Borough as of December 31, 2024
is available from the Borough or the Trust upon request.

Hea l th  I nsu rance :

1.  Premium Payments :

Perkasie Borough paid $1,426,488 for medical and dental coverage for coverage period
January 2024 through December 2024.

2 .  R e f u n d s :

There were no refunds or dividend distributions by the Delaware Valley Health Trust for
coverage year 2024.

3. Policy Year:

The policy began January 1, 2024 and ran through December 31, 2024.

- 58 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E S  T O  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S

D E C E M B E R  3 1 ,  2 0 2 4

Note 23 -  Derivat ive Financial  Instruments:

The Borough is obligated to the Delaware Valley Regional Finance Authority (DVRFA) under
i ts General Obl igat ion Notes, Series 2006s and 2007 as described in Note 10. In order to

provide funding for these notes, DVRFA issued Local Government Revenue Bonds, Series of

1998 and 2002 (DVRFA Bonds). DVRFA has entered into interest rate swap agreements in
connection with the DVRFA Bonds to provide variable and fixed rates on loans, thereby

reducing the costs of the participants in their loan program and enhancing the participants'
ability to manage their interest rate risks.

The following is a summary of the fair values associated with the respective DVRFA interest
rate swaps as of December 31, 2024:

Gene ra l

Obligation Note

Original
I s s u e

A m o u n t

Outstanding
B a l a n c e  a t

December  31,  2024

Gain (Loss) of Market Value

of Interest Rate Swap
at December 31, 2024

Series 2006 - Fixed Rate $  650 ,000

-  F ixed Rate 650,000

Series 2007 - Fixed Rate 1,600,000

$  2 7 4 , 0 0 0

83,000

959,000

$ 5,786

5,786

41,005

If the Borough defaults on all or a portion of its General Obligation Notes to DVRFA or
prepays or converts any of the fixed rate obligations, it would be liable to DVRFA for the costs

associated with the liquidation or termination of the associated interest rate swap. The cost of
terminating an individual swap equals any loss of market value associated with the swap as of
the date of termination.

As the Borough is not a direct party to DVRFA's swap agreements, it is not subject to the
reporting and disclosure requirements associated with GASB 53, (Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Derivative Instruments). Accordingly, the carrying amount of the related interest
rate swap on the Borough's government-wide and fund f inancial statements as of December

31, 2024 is not recorded.

-  59 -



S U P P L E M E N T A R Y  I N F O R M A T I O N



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

B U D G E T A R Y  C O M P A R I S O N  S C H E D U L E  -  G E N E R A L  F U N D

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 ,  2024

R e v e n u e s :

Taxes, penalties and interest. $ 2,768,038 $ 2,675,969

Franchise taxes 170,000

Intergovernmental revenues 663,043

Charges for services 3,210,651

Misce l laneous  revenues 2,500

Total Revenues 7,139,850

Expend i tu res :

General government 871,473

Public safety 3,622,709 3,677,436

Employee benefits 1,948,737

Insurance and other expenses 134,295

Total Expenditures 8 , 9 8 1 , 1 1 1

Deficiency of Revenues

Over Expenditures (1 ,841,261) (1,991,666)

Budget

Original
and Final

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating transfers in 2,105,000

Operating transfers out (275,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1 ,830 ,000

Net Change in Fund Balances (11,261) (226,662)

F U N D  B A L A N C E  -  B E G I N N I N G 1,740,483 1 ,740 ,483

Actua l  Amounts

(Budgetary Basis)
(See Note 1)

140,892

168,590 47,490
Interest and rents 204,518 197,677 (6,841)

765,741 102,698

3,231,526
22,748 20,248

7 , 2 0 3 , 1 4 3 63,293

899,940

538,404

1,871,292 77,445

1 4 8 , 2 6 8 (13,973)

9 ,194 ,809

2,105,004

(340,000) (65,000)

1,765,004 (64,996)

V a r i a n c e

P o s i t i v e

(Negat i ve )

$ (92,069)
(29,108)

Permits, fines and assessments 121,100

20,875

(28,467)

(54,727)
Refuse collection 695,635 797,478 (101,843)
Public works 540,591 2 , 1 8
Recreation and conservation 1,080,947 1,038,265 42,682

Capital outlays 86,724 223,726 (137,002)

(213,698

(150,405)

4

(215,401)

0

F U N D  B A L A N C E  -  E N D I N G $ 1,729,222 $  1 ,513 ,821 $ (215,401)

(See accompanying note to budgetary comparison schedule.)

-  60 -



B O R O U G H  O F  P E R K A S I E

N O T E  T O  B U D G E T A R Y  C O M P A R I S O N  S C H E D U L E

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 1  -  Budget  To Actua l  Reconc i l ia t ion:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule is presented for the General Fund of the Borough. It is
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

-  61 -



T o t a l  P e n s i o n  L i a b i l i t y C h a n g e s  o f  a s s u m p t i o n s

N e t  c h a n g e  i n  t o t a l  p e n s i o n  l i a b i l i t y

$

$

Plan  f iduc ia ry  ne t  pos i t i on  -  beg inn ing

$

2 0 1 7

2 0 1 4

$

1 9 0 , 7 1 6  $  1 8 6 , 6 8 8

0

,

0

0

0 0

0

0

1 6 1 , 7 5 9

0

( 1 , 9 5 5 , 6 7 8 )

0

8 8 0

0

3 9

( 2 7 , 7 8 0 )

( 1 5 , 7 2 2 )

( 9 2 0 )

9 6 . 1 2 %

1 . 0 1 %

£



A d d i t i o n a l  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  e x p e n s e .

£

2 0 2 2

2 0 2 1

2 0 1 7

0

, -

0

0

0 0

0

0

5 6 0

9 1

0

0

0

0

3 9

8 0

( 2 6 , 5 9 3 )

( 5 0 0 )

( 1 7 , 5 6 0 )



. . .

$

2 0 2 1

2 0 1 9

2 0 1 8

2 0 1 7

2 0 1 5

0  $

1 2 3 , 3 7 7

£

0  $

7 . 6 2 %

7 . 9 4 %

.

.



$

2 0 2 2

2 0 1 6

2 0 1 4

4 2 7 , 5 3 0

0

$

0  $

£

. .  .  . .  .  .  .



1

MINUTES OF PERKASIE BOROUGH 
COUNCIL MEETING 

MAY 19, 2025 

620 West Chestnut Street 
Perkasie, Pennsylvania 

ATTENDANCE: 
Council Members: Scott Bomboy 

Chuck Brooks  
Kelly Laustsen 
Steve Rose 
Jim Ryder (absent) 
Robin Schilling 
Dave Weaver 
Dave Worthington    

Youth Councilors: Shiv Gandevia 
Colin Moyer (absent) 

Mayor:  Jeff Hollenbach 
Borough Manager: Andrea L. Coaxum 
Assistant Borough Manager: Linda Reid  
Finance Director: Rebecca Deemer (absent) 
Parks and Recreation Director: Lauren Moll  
Police Chief:  Robert Schurr 
Electric Superintendent: Harold Stone 
Public Works Director:  Jeff Tulone 
Borough Solicitor: Jeffrey Garton, Esq. 
Borough Engineer: Douglas Rossino, P.E.  

 Council Vice-President Chuck Brooks convened the meeting at 7:00 PM.  An invocation was given 
by Mayor Hollenbach, which was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

PROCLAMATION:  NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 

Mayor Hollenbach read a proclamation declaring the week of May 18th as National Public Works 
Week in the Borough.  He thanked the Public Works Superintendent and the Department for all of the 
work they do, and thanked the Assistant Borough Manager for coordinating the fun event at Guth 
Elementary today, where the Public Works team took trucks over and were recognized by the students.  
The Public Works Superintendent thanked the Mayor and thanked the guys in his Department for all of 
their hard work. 

PUBLIC HEARING – CONSIDER DRAFT ORDINANCE 1065 TO AMEND CODE BOOK – CHAPTER 70: 
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION, CHAPTER 132: PLUMBING & CHAPTER 133: MECHANICAL CODE 

A Public Hearing was held to consider the adoption of an ordinance that would amend Chapter 70, 
Building Construction, Chapter 132, Plumbing, and Chapter 133, Mechanical Code, by deleting said 
sections from the Perkasie Borough Code of Ordinances.  The ordinance was advertised appropriately, and 
there were no comments from the public.  Upon a motion by Brooks, seconded by Bomboy, the Public 
Hearing was closed at 7:05 pm. 



 

 2

PUBLIC HEARING – CONSIDER DRAFT ORDINANCE 1066 TO ESTABLISH NEW SPEED LIMITS – 7TH & 9TH 
STREETS 
 
 A Public Hearing was held to consider the adoption of an ordinance that would establish 
maximum speed limits for the entire length of Ninth Street and Seventh Street in Perkasie Borough at 25 
miles per hour.  The ordinance was advertised appropriately. 
 
 Tanya Bahn from 1010 North 7th Street stated that she would like Council to approve the speed 
limit change and that the change would be really good for the neighborhood.  She added that she has 
called the police a couple of times on the non-emergency line because of speeding. 
 
 Mary Antczak from 718 Shadywood Drive approached Council about the volume of cars along 7th 
Street, and being inundated with student parking in their neighborhood, adding that she hasn’t heard 
anything from Council about something being done to address that.  Vice-President Brooks stated that 
Council is currently reviewing the ordinance pertaining to 7th and 9th Streets, and asked that if Ms. Antczak 
has other issues she would like to discuss, to please come back up during public forum.  Ms. Antczak 
stated that she is filing a complaint right now that she disagrees with the speed limit change, and went 
back to her seat. 
 
 Denise Monaco from 511 South 9th Street stated that she supports the speed limit change since 
there are a lot of kids on the block, and also suggested a speed bump. 
 
 John Reavy from 701 South 9th Street stated that he doesn’t feel strongly one way or the other, 
but asked how the speed limit will be enforced if it’s changed, and if there will really be a difference in 
speeding.  He stated that he doesn’t know how lowering the speed limit will help with the speeding unless 
it’s going to be enforced, and added that in the 22 years he has lived there, he’s only seen 2 cars pulled 
over during that time.  Mr. Brooks stated they have reviewed this with the Police Chief and he is looking 
into this in terms of enforcement, as well. 
 
 Suzanne Bower from 413 South 9th Street stated that she is greatly in favor of the change, adding 
that she sincerely hopes Chief Schurr can enforce it because it is dangerous and scary for people who have 
driveways that front onto 9th Street. 
 
 Paul Saylor from 428 South 9th Street wholly concurs with the proposed speed limit change. 
 
 Gil Bishop from 601 South 9th Street expressed concerns about the speeding and the kids doubling 
up on scooters and bikes; he supports the speed limit change, adding that there has to be a way we can 
slow them down. 
 
 Vanessa Derby from 1109 North 7th Street stated that she has been talking to the Police 
Department for the last 2 years and is on board with the proposed change. 
 
 Upon a motion by Bomboy, seconded by Faulkner, the Public Hearing was closed at 7:22 pm. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
  
 Nothing at this time.   
 
PRESIDENT’S REMARKS 
 
  Nothing at this time. 



 

 3

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Upon a motion by Weaver, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously approved the minutes from 
the Council meeting on April 21, 2025 and minutes from the Committee meeting on May 5, 2025. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report 
  
 Mayor Hollenbach announced that Community Day will be early this year, on Saturday, June 28th, 
and he encouraged Council and the different departments to participate in the cornhole tournament.  He 
also reminded everyone that tomorrow is the Primary Election and encouraged people to let their voices 
be heard.  Lastly, Mayor Hollenbach announced that this Saturday is the Memorial Day Parade and 
Service, and the Assistant Borough Manager came up to provide an overview of the event. 
 
Taxes Collected 
 
  Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously approved the Taxes 
Collected Report for April, 2025. 
 
Budget Status 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously accepted the Budget Status 
report for the month of April, 2025. 
 
Engineer's Report 
 
 The Borough Engineer reported that the storm sewer piping project that was part of the 2024 
Road Program is now complete.  The 2025 Concrete and Road Programs are out to bid; the bid opening 
will be held next week, and Gilmore should have recommendations for Council at the June 2nd meeting.  
The Phase 1 assessment of the Community Garden is complete, as is the acquisition of the Garden.   
 
 Councilman Worthington commented that everything worked great at Fifth Street & Race Street 
during all of the recent rain.  Councilman Rose asked if there was a Park Avenue update, and the Borough 
Manager provided one. 
 
 Upon a motion by Schilling, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously accepted the Engineer’s 
monthly report for the month of April, 2025. 
 
Planning Commission Report 
  
 The Planning Commission met in April to discuss roadside stands and the keeping of fowl, and will 
continue that discussion at their May meeting. 
 
Zoning Hearing Board Report 
  
 The Zoning Hearing Board will meet in May to review an application from WP Perkasie who is 
requesting a variance pertaining to the drive-thru at the proposed Starbucks at Fifth Street and Blooming 
Glen Road. 
 
Police Report 



 

 4

 The Police Chief reported that the Department received 500 calls for service in April – 300 in 
Perkasie and 200 in Sellersville.  Chris Doheny has volunteered to process defendants and has done a great 
job for the Department.   
 
 Chief Schurr informed Council that the Department has been effectively using ENRADD, which 
automatically times vehicle speeds, and that they are sharing this device with Bedminster Township.  He 
added that Pennsylvania is currently the only state that is not permitted to use radar. 
 
 Mayor Hollenbach stated that he appreciates the proactiveness of the Department, adding that it 
is frustrating that the Borough can’t use radar. 
 
 Councilwoman Laustsen stated that she loves seeing the officers at Guth Elementary, and added 
that maybe there could be a police presence along 7th Street where the students park. 
 
 Councilman Faulkner asked if the Department will use the digital sign to advise of the speed limit 
change, and Chief Schurr informed Council that the Department cannot issue violations for the first 30 
days after the change is made.   
 
 The Borough Manager informed Council that a letter was mailed to all residents of 7th and 9th 
Streets to advise them of the public hearing and proposed changes. 
 
 Upon a motion by Laustsen, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously accepted the Police 
Department report for the month of April, 2025.   
 
Fire Department Report 

 
The Fire Chief reminded everyone that the Fire Company Carnival will be from June 24th through 

June 28th.  Chief Trotter reported that there have been 177 calls for the year so far, and also informed 
Council that the Fire Company is doing joint training with Sellersville Fire Company on Thursdays. 

 
Council reviewed the Fire Department reports for the month of April, 2025.    

 
Perkasie Regional Authority Report 
 
 Council reviewed the minutes from the Perkasie Regional Authority meeting on April 14, 2025. 
 
Pennridge Wastewater Treatment Authority Report 
 
 Council reviewed the minutes from the Pennridge Wastewater Treatment Authority Board 
meeting on March 24, 2025. 
 
New Business 
 
 Council Vice-President Brooks announced that the Council meeting schedule for the months of 
July and August will be as follows:  July 21st and August 4th. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 
Review of Superintendent's Report 
  

The Public Works Superintendent reported that line striping will be done on Ninth Street from the 



 

 5

Borough line to Race Street on Thursday, weather permitting; the Borough hopes to get line striping done 
on Seventh Street before school starts in the Fall.  Mr. Tulone commented on the wonderful event at Guth 
Elementary, adding that he and the Public Works Department really appreciated it.  The Committee 
reviewed and accepted the Public Works Superintendent’s report for the month of April, 2025.    
 
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMITTEE 
 
Review of Superintendent's Report 
 

The Committee reviewed and accepted the Electric Superintendent’s report for April, 2025.   
 
Consider Resolution #2025-32 – Power Purchase Contract 
 
 Upon a motion by Brooks, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously approved a motion to approve 
Resolution #2025-32, a resolution regarding entering into a power supply contract consistent with the 
Power Supply Master Plan and authorizing the Borough Manager to obtain final pricing through the 
Borough's power supply consultants, GDS Associates, for the purchase of those products as indicated 
below: 
 
a) Fixed Load Shape Monthly Blocks for CY 2026-2028 at PPL Zone or Perkasie Residual Aggregate if the 
final pricing does not exceed 3.0% more than the lowest indicative price of $51.40/MWh unless the two-
year pricing is lower, OR if the pricing exceeds 3%, then for the purchase of 
 
b) Fixed Load Shape Monthly Blocks for CY 2026-2027 at PPL Zone or Perkasie Residual Aggregate if the 
final pricing does not exceed 5% more than the lowest indicative price of $52.15/MWh, and 
 
c) For either product term, CY 2026-2028 or CY 2026-2027, whichever is applicable based on the above 
criteria, the basis shall be calculated by subtracting the final pricing at PPL Zone from the final pricing at 
Perkasie Residual Aggregate, and if the basis is less than or equal to $0.65/MWh, the product will be 
purchased at Perkasie Residual Aggregate, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that we grant authority to the Borough Manager to commit to the purchase of 
such a supply contract as listed in this resolution for CY 2026-2028, provided that the final pricing does not 
exceed 3% more than the lowest indicative offer of $51.40/MWh, or if the pricing exceeds 3% for CY 2026-
2028, then for CY 2026-2027, provided the final pricing does not exceed 5% more than the lowest 
indicative offer of $52.15/MWh. 
 
Installed Capacity Update 
 
  Nothing at this time. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
 
Code Enforcement Administrator Report 
  
 The Committee reviewed and accepted the Code Enforcement Administrator’s monthly report for 
April, 2025. 
 
Consider Ordinance 1065 to Amend Code Book – Chapter 70: Building Construction, Chapter 132: 
Plumbing & Chapter 133: Mechanical Code 
 



 

 6

 Upon a motion by Bomboy, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously adopted Ordinance #1065, an 
ordinance of the Borough of Perkasie, Bucks County, Pennsylvania, amending Chapter 70: Building 
Construction, Chapter 132: Plumbing and Chapter 133: Mechanical Code by deleting said sections all 
which said amendments are to the Perkasie Borough Code of Ordinances. 
 
Consider Ordinance 1066 to Establish New Speed Limits on 9th & 7th Streets 
 
 Upon a motion by Bomboy, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously adopted Ordinance #1066, an 
ordinance of the Borough of Perkasie, Bucks County, Pennsylvania, establishing a speed limit of 25 mph 
for motor vehicles on the entire length of both 7th and 9th Streets located in Perkasie Borough. 
 
Update on Construction Progress – Constitution Square 
  
 There was no new update at this time. 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE 
 
Parks and Recreation Department Report 
 
 The Parks & Recreation Director reported that there will be an open house at Menlo Aquatics 
Center on Saturday, May 24th from 10:00 am to 12:00 pm.  The Memorial Day Parade takes place that day 
and ends at Menlo Park, and Rita’s will be open at the pool. 
 
 Ms. Moll also informed Council that there are currently 903 memberships to the pool, which is 30 
more than there were at this time last year.  150 kids have signed up for various summer camps. 
 
 The Committee reviewed and accepted the Parks and Recreation Director’s report for April, 2025.    
 
Consider Reservation Request – Guth Elementary Fall Fest 
 
 Upon a motion by Schilling, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously approved the reservation 
request from Guth Elementary to use Menlo Pavilions 1 & 2 for their annual Fall Festival on Friday, 
September 26, 2025 from 4:00 pm to 9:00 pm. 
 
Consider Reservation Request & Request for Fee Waiver – Perkasie Lions Club Chicken BBQ 
 
 Upon a motion by Laustsen, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously approved the Perkasie Lions 
Club annual Chicken BBQ event on Sunday, September 7, 2025 from 7:00 am to 4:00 pm at Menlo 
Pavilions 1 & 2.  The motion also included the approval of setup at the pavilion on Saturday, September 6, 
2025, and included the waiver of any rental fees for this event. 
 
PERSONNEL AND POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
Consider Hiring of Seasonal Staff – Menlo Aquatics Center 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Schilling, Council unanimously authorized the hiring of 
returning or new staff members at Menlo Aquatics Center for the 2025 season, contingent upon the 
completion of all necessary paperwork, background clearances and certification courses, at the hourly 
rates listed in the updated 2025 fee schedule. 
 
Consider Termination of Employee #401029 



 

 7

 Council adjourned the meeting for approximately 5 minutes to discuss a matter of personnel. 
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Worthington, Council concurred with the Borough 
Manager’s decision to terminate the employment of Employee #401029 effective end of business day 
Tuesday, May 13, 2025. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
Authorization to Pay Bills 
 
 Upon a motion by Worthington, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously authorized payment 
of the bills as presented. 
 
Consider Resolution #2025-29 – Green Ridge Estates East – Escrow Release #5 
 
 Upon a motion by Bomboy, seconded by Weaver, Council approved Resolution #2025-29, a 
resolution of the Perkasie Borough Council authorizing a reduction in the escrow for the Green Ridge 
Estates – East project as approved by Gilmore & Associates, Inc., in the amount of $25,898.85 to reduce 
the total escrow to $151,493.92 and authorizing the signature of the Borough Manager on the escrow 
reduction.  Councilman Faulkner abstained. 
 
Consider Resolution #2025-30 – Comcast Franchise Agreement 
 
 Upon a motion by Weaver, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously approved Resolution 
#2025-30, a resolution of the Borough Council of the Borough of Perkasie approving and authorizing the 
execution of a Cable Franchise Agreement between the Borough of Perkasie and Comcast of Southeast 
Pennsylvania, LLC. 
 
Consider Resolution #2025-31 – Upgrade of Comcast Internet Services 
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously tabled this item until 
additional clarification could be provided by the Finance Director. 
 
Consider Donation Request – Perkasie Fire Company Carnival 
 
 Upon a motion by Schilling, seconded by Laustsen, Council unanimously approved a donation of 
six daily passes to Menlo Aquatics Center for the 2025 season to the Perkasie Fire Company for the raffle 
fundraiser at this year’s carnival. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Community & Economic Development Report 
 
 The Committee reviewed the Community & Economic Development Report dated May 15, 2025. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
Discuss South Main Street Parking Complaint 
 
 Councilman Faulkner reviewed some of the items discussed at the May 5th Public Safety 
Committee meeting, which included complaints from residents whose driveways are being blocked by 



 

 8

vehicles belonging to patrons of The Perk.  He added that it was the consensus of the Committee to hold 
off on painting curbs yellow to delineate where people can and can’t park, and that the next Committee 
meeting will be on June 2nd to review information from the Police Chief and Engineer. 
  
 Councilman Bomboy thanked resident Paige Christiansen for bringing this issue to Council’s 
attention, stating that it is a complicated issue because it’s a state-owned road.  Mr. Bomboy further 
stated that he thinks the Borough should paint the curbs, adding that something needs to be done. 
 
 Councilwoman Laustsen stated that she is also in favor of painting the curbs, adding that it would 
definitely help the situation. 
 
 Councilman Faulkner stated that perhaps Ms. Christiansen could reach out to neighbors to get 
their opinions about the yellow curbs, and suggested that she come to the next Public Safety Committee 
meeting.  He added that the problem does seem to be worse, and the Committee is going to do 
something, but has to determine what can be done, since it’s a state-owned road. 
 
 Paige Christiansen from 118 South Main Street informed Council that the situation has gotten 
worse with driveways being blocked along South Main Street, and provided a few examples of instances 
where this has been affecting her personally. 
 
Consider Request for Fire Police Assistance – Milford Township 
 
 Upon a motion by Laustsen, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously approved the request for 
Fire Police assistance at the Milford Township AG-Daze event on Saturday, September 13, 2025 from 
10:00 am to 4:00 pm. 
 
HISTORICAL COMMITTEE 
 
Consider Perkasie Covered Bridge Project Change of Scope #2 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Weaver, Council unanimously approved the Perkasie 
Covered Bridge Project Change of Scope Request #2 and authorized the Borough Manager to submit the 
request to FEMA and PEMA. 
 
OTHER NEW BUSINESS 
   
  Nothing at this time. 
  
REPORT FROM YOUTH COUNCILOR 
  
  Youth Councilor Shiv Gandevia reported that a lot of students have been arriving five minutes late 
because of the construction on Fifth Street, but they are trying their best to get there on time. 
  
PUBLIC FORUM 
  
 Matt Lynch from 503 Race Street approached Council and asked if the Borough is appealing to 
FEMA regarding the amount of money they’ve given us, and asked if this will set the project back, and 
Councilman Bomboy confirmed that it will not.  The Borough Manager also provided an update on the 
project. 
 
 



9

PRESS FORUM 

Nothing at this time. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Nothing at this time. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 8:34 pm. 

Andrea L. Coaxum  
 Borough Manager/Secretary 



1

MINUTES OF PERKASIE BOROUGH 
COUNCIL COMMITTEES MEETING 

JUNE 2, 2025 

620 West Chestnut Street 
Perkasie, Pennsylvania 

ATTENDANCE: 
Council Member: Scott Bomboy (via telephone) 

Chuck Brooks 
Randy Faulkner 
Kelly Laustsen  
Steve Rose 
Jim Ryder   
Robin Schilling 
Dave Weaver 
Dave Worthington   

Youth Councilors: Shiv Gandevia 
Colin Moyer (absent)  

Mayor:  Jeff Hollenbach  
Borough Manager: Andrea L. Coaxum 
Assistant Borough Manager:  Linda Reid  
Finance Director: Rebecca Deemer   
Parks and Recreation Director:  Lauren Moll  
Police Chief:  Robert Schurr  
Electric Superintendent: Harold Stone (absent)  
Public Works Director:  Jeff Tulone  
Borough Solicitor: Jeff Garton, Esquire 
Borough Engineer: Doug Rossino, P.E.   

 Council President Ryder convened the meeting at 7:00 PM.  An invocation was given by Mayor 
Hollenbach, which was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Nothing at this time. 

PRESIDENT’S REMARKS 

Nothing at this time.  

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Consider Bid Award of #2025-02:  2025 Road Program 

Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Ryder, Council unanimously awarded Bid #2025-02 for 
the 2025 Road Program to Blooming Glen Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $180,532.52 for all items 
under the base bid and alternates #1 and #2. 



 

 2

Consider Bid Award of #2025-03:  2025 Concrete Program 
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Schilling, Council unanimously awarded Bid #2025-03 for 
the 2025 Concrete Program to NJS Concrete LLC in the amount of $108,122.00 for all of the items 
under the base bid. 
 
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMITTEE 
 
Perkasie Wholesale Power Cost Summary 
 
  The Committee reviewed Perkasie’s April 2025 Wholesale Power Cost Summary Report 
provided by GDS Associates.  Councilman Weaver provided an update on the call that he and the staff 
had today with GDS. 
 
Installed Capacity Update 
 
    The installed capacity auction will be held during the first week in July. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
 
Update on Construction Progress – Constitution Square 
  
  The Engineer provided an update on the Constitution Square development.  It was the 
consensus of Council that if the contractor has not made significant progress by the July 21st Council 
meeting, serious consideration will be given to having the Borough complete the project work. 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE 
 
 Councilman Worthington thanked the Borough staff for their forward thinking with a great 
Penguin Plunge event during the cold opening weekend of Menlo, and gave kudos to the staff for 
making the best of the situation. 
 
 Councilman Weaver thanked the staff for a job well done with the Memorial Day Parade & 
Service, and for all the work they put in on a Saturday. 
 
Consider Reservation Request – Guth Elementary Fall Fest – New Date 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously approved the revised 
reservation request from Guth Elementary to use Menlo Pavilions 1 & 2 for their annual Fall Festival on 
Friday, September 19, 2025 from 4:00 pm to 8:00 pm. 
 
PERSONNEL AND POLICY COMMITTEE  
 
Consider Hiring of Temporary Part-Time Laborer 
 
 Upon a motion by Laustsen, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously concurred with the 
Borough Manager’s decision to hire Aydan Leighton as a temporary part-time laborer at the hourly 
rate of $18.39, conditioned upon his passing a pre-employment physical and drug screening and the 
necessary background checks. 



 

 3

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Consider Resolution #2025-31 – Comcast Internet Upgrades 
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Schilling, Council unanimously approved Resolution 
#2025-31, a resolution of the Council of the Borough of Perkasie approving the four (4) Comcast 
Business Service Orders between the Borough of Perkasie and Comcast for internet packages for the 
Public Works, Electric Department, the Borough municipal building, and the Police Department, and 
authorized the Borough Manager and/or the Perkasie Borough Council President to execute the 
contracts on behalf of the Borough of Perkasie. 
 
Consider Approval of Change Order #2 and Final Payment for 2024 Road Program 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Brooks, Council unanimously approved Change Order 
#2 in the amount of $15,614.79 and final payment in the amount of $204,269.88 to GoreCon, Inc. for 
the 2024 Road Program. 
 
Consider Donation Request – Hilltown Township Volunteer Fire Company 
 
 Upon a motion by Weaver, seconded by Brooks, Council unanimously approved a donation of 
six daily passes to Menlo Aquatics Center for the 2026 season to the Hilltown Township Volunteer Fire 
Company for the raffle at their Wines on the Hill fundraiser on September 20, 2025.  
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
  Councilwoman Laustsen reported that the Steering Committee will have their first meeting on 
Wednesday, June 11th at 8:30 am to start the process on updating the Borough’s Economic 
Development Plan.   
 
 There was no business to bring before the Economic Development Committee. 
  
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
Consider Retroactive Request for Fire Police Assistance – Quakertown Borough Police Department 
 
 Upon a motion by Ryder, seconded by Laustsen, Council unanimously and retroactively 
approved the request from the Quakertown Borough Police Department for fire police assistance at 
the High School’s graduation parade on Tuesday, May 27, 2025. 
 
Consider Request for Fire Police Assistance – Quakertown Borough 
 
 Upon a motion by Ryder, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously approved the request from 
Quakertown Borough for fire police assistance at their Community Day fireworks on Friday, July 4, 
2025. 
 
Consider Request for Fire Police Assistance – Township of New Britain 
 
 Upon a motion by Ryder, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously approved the request from  
 



 

 4

the Township of New Britain for fire police assistance at the Tri-Municipal Parade on July 4, 2025 at 
9:30 am. 
 
HISTORICAL COMMITTEE 
 
Consider Authorization to Advertise Bids for South Perkasie Covered Bridge Project 
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Worthington, Council unanimously approved the 
advertisement of bids for the rehabilitation of the timber structure and the construction of new 
abutments for the South Perkasie Covered Bridge Project. 
 
REPORT FROM YOUTH COUNCILOR 
  
 Youth Councilor Shiv Gandevia reported that graduation will be at the High School on 
Wednesday evening, and the last day for the rest of the school is Friday.  Shiv also informed Council 
that there will be a new Athletic Director next year. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
PRESS FORUM 
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:28 PM. 
 
 
 
     
         Andrea L. Coaxum  
            Borough Manager/Secretary 



Date:  06/05/2025 Statement of Actual & Estimated Revenue User:  HEATHER

BOROUGH OF PERKASIE

Time:  1:53:58 PM For Period Ending 05/31/2025 Page:  1

Selecting on ACCT from 301 to 310

ACCOUNT ESTIMATED YEAR-TO-DATE ACTUAL YTD

DESCRIPTION REVENUE REVENUE % REALIZED

01.301.100

Real Estate Taxes- Current Year's Levy 451,775.00 396,911.89 87.86

01.301.200

Real Estate Taxes - Prior Year's Levy 2,000.00 394.87 19.74

01.301.300

Real Estate Taxes - Delinquent 2,000.00 202.81 10.14

01.301.600

Real Estate Taxes - Interim 3,500.00 209.77- -5.99

01.310.100

Real Estate Transfer Tax 225,000.00 59,721.75 26.54

01.310.200

Earned Income Tax 1,988,104.00 618,409.58 31.11

01.310.500

Local Services Tax 110,000.00 39,886.86 36.26

01.310.700

Mechanical Device Fee 500.00 370.00 74.00

Total for Fund: 2,782,879.00 1,115,687.99 40.09

01 (General Fund) 

14.301.100

Real Estate Taxes - Current Year's Levy 142,666.00 125,342.33 87.86

14.301.200

Real Estate Taxes - Prior Year's Levy 300.00 634.56 211.52

14.301.300

Real Estate Taxes- Delinquent 111.94

14.301.600

Real Estate Taxes - Interim 31.95

Total for Fund: 142,966.00 126,120.78 88.22

14 (Fire Tax Protection Fund) 

15.301.100

Real Estate Taxes - Current Year's Levy 285,332.00 250,680.40 87.86

15.301.200

Real Estate Taxes - Prior Year's Levy 1,000.00 1,269.24 126.92

15.301.300

Real Estate Taxes- Delinquent 900.00 223.86 24.87

15.301.600

Real Estate Taxes - Interim 2,000.00 63.89 3.19

Total for Fund: 289,232.00 252,237.39 87.21

15 (Road Improvements Fund) 

Report Totals 3,215,077.00 1,494,046.16 46.47



BUCKS COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS
LOCAL REALTY TRANSFER TAX DISTRIBUTION - DETAIL

FOR THE PERIOD FROM MAY 1, 2025 TO MAY 31, 2025

PERKASIE BOROUGH
Account Description

Date RecRef Num Inst NumberInst TypeDIrect / Indirect Party Name Tax Basis Fee ID Tax Collected

TO:

PERKASIE BOROUGH
P.O. BOX 96
PERKASIE, PA 18944-0096

PERKASIE BOROUGH
DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-006-072--

EAST COAST SIDING CONTRACTORS INC
SCHLOTTER, JAMES D

1427236 05/01/20252025018060 667500.00 MTAX 3,337.50

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-010-129--

BONNER, ZACHARY C
PENNYPACKER, JAMES S

1427242 05/01/20252025018068 475000.00 MTAX 2,375.00

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-005-444--

LYNCH, DAVID M
MCCARROLL, CONNOR JOSEPH

1427420 05/02/20252025018267 340000.00 MTAX 1,700.00

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-010-045--

MOSER, JOSHUA J
HARP, STEVEN P JR

1427531 05/05/20252025018395 419900.00 MTAX 2,099.50

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-005-456--003-

HG PROPERTIES 85 LP
CLOUSER, DAVID

1427679 05/05/20252025018562 493270.00 MTAX 2,466.35

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-014-043--018-

FARRELL, ANNA LOUISE
HUTWELKER, STEPHEN

1428346 05/08/20252025019300 768000.00 MTAX 3,840.00

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-006-120--

HOFFMAN, NEAL
HANSON BROTHERS GENERAL CONTRACTING
LLC

1428614 05/09/20252025019607 225200.00 MTAX 1,126.00

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-001-104--

RATLIFF, ALEXANDER C
FLUCK, BETHANY ROSE

1429242 05/14/20252025020251 325000.00 MTAX 1,625.00

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-007-006--

MAZUS LLC
CASTANEA HOLDINGS LLC

1429513 05/15/20252025020532 450000.00 MTAX 2,250.00

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-007-099--

BAVIS, MATTHEW F
BOHRER, JILL A

1430347 05/22/20252025021437 275000.00 MTAX 1,375.00

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-005-309--

DAY, TARYN N
LANG, JOHN JR

1430424 05/22/20252025021529 407412.00 MTAX 2,037.06

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-005-438--012-

HG PROPERTIES 85 L P
KULDA, CHARLES PHILIP

1431072 05/28/20252025022212 484285.00 MTAX 2,421.42

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-005-665--

BROWNING, ADAM B
DAVIDSON, THOMAS W II

1431279 05/29/20252025022470 410000.00 MTAX 2,050.00

DEED
PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
   33-004-129--

PFANSTIEL, MARJORIE
LARIJANI, FARROKHZAD L

1431282 05/29/20252025022473 435000.00 MTAX 2,175.00

30,877.83PERKASIE BOROUGH TOTAL

TOTALPERKASIE BOROUGH 30,877.83
COMMISSION ON COLLECTIONS 617.56

30,260.27DISTRIBUTION

Date: Jun 6, 2025 2:27:33 PM Page: 1



BUCKS COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS
LOCAL REALTY TRANSFER TAX DISTRIBUTION - DETAIL

FOR THE PERIOD FROM MAY 1, 2025 TO MAY 31, 2025

REPORT TOTALS
Account Description

Date RecRef Num Inst NumberInst TypeDIrect / Indirect Party Name Tax Basis Fee ID Tax Collected

30,877.83TOTAL COLLECTIONSREPORT TOTAL
COMMISSION ON COLLECTIONS 617.56

TOTAL DISTRIBUTION 30,260.27

Date: Jun 6, 2025 2:27:33 PM Page: 2









































65 E. Butler Avenue | Suite 100 | New Britain, PA 18901 Phone: 215-345-4330 | Fax: 215-345-8606 

www.gilmore-assoc.com 

PERKASIE BOROUGH 
BOROUGH ENGINEER STATUS REPORT 

FOR OPEN DEVELOPMENT AND MUNICIPAL PROJECTS 
AS OF JUNE 1, 2025 

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS (ACTIVE) 

1. Constitution Square
108 East Walnut Street

• Continued the Site Observation.

• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff.

2. Pennridge Airport Business Park
1100 North Ridge Road

• Conducted End of 18-Month Maintenance Period Inspection on May 15, 2025.

• Prepared the 18-Month Maintenance Period Punch List dated May 20, 2025.

• Miscellaneous coordination with G&A Staff, Borough Staff and E. Rockhill Township Engineer.

• The project is in the 18-month maintenance period set to expire in June of 2025.

3. Spruce Street Townhouses
W. Spruce Street

• Miscellaneous correspondence with Terre Hill.

4. Spruce Street Redevelopment
601 Spruce Street

• No action has taken place by G&A this month.

5. Glen Enterprises Building Permit
1215 N. Ridge Road

• No action has taken place by G&A this month.

6. Rolftech, LLC Grading Permit
118 S. 2nd Street

• No action has taken place by G&A this month.

7. Perkasie Green Subdivision
Ridge Road (S.R.0563) and Park Avenue (S.R.4052)

• Conducted End of 18-Month Maintenance Period Inspection on May 21, 2025.

• Prepared the 18-Month Maintenance Period Punch List dated May 21, 2025.

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff and Borough Staff.

• The project is in the 18-month maintenance period set to expire in June of 2025.

8. 8th Street Commons (Apartment Building)
N. 8th Street

• No action has taken place by G&A this month.



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 2 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects        As of June 1, 2025 

 

9. Perry Mill (a.k.a. 8th Street Commons Rowhomes) 
N. 8th Street 

• Reviewed the As-Constructed Building Plan for Lot 17 and prepared the 1st As-Constructed 
Building Plan Review Letter dated April 28, 2025. 

 
10. 306 N. Fifth Street Redevelopment (a.k.a. Chant Tract) 

306 N. 5th Street 

• Reviewed the 2nd and 3rd Submittal Packages and prepared the 2nd and 3rd Submittal Review 
Letters dated May 2 and 9, 2025. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff and Design Consultant. 
 
11. Green Ridge Estates East 

28 North Ridge Road 
• Reviewed all required documentation, Certified Quantities, Updated Escrow Status Report, and 

Prepared Recommendation Letter and Certificate of Completion for the Request for Financial 
Security Escrow Release #5 dated May 9, 2025. 

• Reviewed the As-Built Plan for Lots 4 and 5 and prepared the 1st As-Built Plan Review Letters 
dated May 21, 2025. 

• Prepared the 1st As-Built Plan Review Letter for Lot 6 dated May 21, 2025. 
• Continued the Site Observation. 
• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff, Developer and 

Home Builder. 
 

12. 124 S. 3rd Street Building Permit 
124 S. 3rd Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
13. Restaurant and Beer Garden 

606 W. Chestnut Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
14. The Kratz Tract 

N. 5th Street & W. Blooming Glen Drive 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
15. WP Perkasie LLC Conditional Use 

N. 5th Street & W. Blooming Glen Drive 

• Reviewed and revised the Zoning Officer Summary and Ad prepared by the Zoning Officer. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff and Borough Staff. 
 
16. Green Ridge Estates West 

414 South Ridge Road 

• Reviewed the revised Land Development Agreement and Resolution prepared by the Solicitor. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with Developer. 
 
17. Griffo Tract Lot 1 

510 Haven Court 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
18. 65 S. Main Street 

65 S. Main Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
19. 200 S. Main Street 

200 S. Main Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 3 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects        As of June 1, 2025 

 

20. 1229 N. Ridge Road 
1229 N. Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
21. Perkasie Regional Authority – Reservoir Replacement 

N. Ridge Road & Ridge Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
22. 545 Constitution Avenue 

545 Constitution Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
23. 601 W. Park Avenue 

601 W. Park Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
24. 911 N. 7th Street 

911 N. 7th Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
25. St. Stephen’s United Church of Christ 

110 & 114 N. 6th Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
26. 140 S. Main Street 

140 S. Main Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
27. Nyce Minor Subdivision 

1017 N. Ridge Road 
• Continued the Site Observation. 
• Miscellaneous coordination with G&A Staff. 

 
28. 532 W. Callowhill Street 

532 W. Callowhill Street 

• Reviewed the Cleanout Cover Submittal and prepared approval correspondence to Applicant 
dated May 7, 2025. 

• Miscellaneous coordination with G&A Staff. 
 
29. 200 Wyckford Drive 

200 Wyckford Drive 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
30. Perkasie Square Shopping Center 

505 Constitution Avenue 
• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff, Developer and Transportation Consultant. 

 
31. 1101 W. Park Avenue 

1101 W. Park Avenue 

• Prepared the 1st Final Site Inspection Review Letter dated May 6, 2025. 

• Continued the Site Observation. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff and Contractor. 
 
32. 650 Shadywood Drive 

650 Shadywood Drive 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 4 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects        As of June 1, 2025 

 

33. 135 S. Main Street 
135 S. Main Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
34. 9 Fairview Avenue 

9 Fairview Avenue 

• Reviewed the Grading Permit Plan Resubmission Package and prepared the 2nd Grading 
Permit Plan Review Letter dated May 16, 2025. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff and Design Consultant. 
 
35. Grandview Avenue 

Grandview Avenue 

• Continued to review the Grading Permit Plan Submission Package and finalized the 1st Grading 
Permit Plan Review Letter dated April 30, 2025. 

• Reviewed the Grading Permit Plan Resubmission Package and prepared the 2nd Grading 
Permit Plan Review Letter dated May 28, 2025. 

• Miscellaneous coordination with G&A Staff. 
 
SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS (INACTIVE) 
 
1. The Perk Restaurant Addition 

501 E. Walnut Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
2. Jelski Minor Subdivision 

11 Fairview Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
3. Piper Group Land Development 

Ridge Road (S.R.0563) 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
4. Tecce Subdivision 

North Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
GENERAL BOROUGH PROJECTS 
 
1. NPDES MS4, Phase II 

Borough Wide 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 

2. 2024 Road Program 
Borough Wide 

• Reviewed all required documentation from Paving Contractor, including closeout documents, 
prepared Application for Payment Request #3-Final and Letter and Change Order #2-Final for 
the 2024 Road Program, assembled application package dated May 29, 2025 and emailed 
package to Borough. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with Paving Contractor. 
 
3. 2025 Road Program 

Borough Wide 

• Finalized the Bid Documents and Project Manual for the 2025 Road and Concrete Programs, 
including the Construction Plans. 

• Developed PennBID Solicitation for 2025 Road and Concrete Programs and uploaded all Bid 
Documents. 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 5 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects        As of June 1, 2025 

 

• Correspondence with Contractors to acquire more bids. 

• Responded to Contractor Questions on PennBID. 

• Prepared for and attended Bid Openings at Borough Hall on May 27, 2025 for both Programs. 

• Downloaded and reviewed bid results (forms and packages) for both Programs. 

• Prepared bid tabulation forms for both Programs. 

• Prepared Bid Award Recommendation Letter for both Programs. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff and Elected 
Officials. 

 
4. 2025 Ultra-Thin Bonded Wearing Course Program 

Borough Wide 

• Construction Observation of ultra-thin bonded wearing course. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff. 
 
5. Public Works Facility 

311 South 9th Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
6. Lenape Park Amphitheater Improvements 

Lenape Park 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
7. Zoning Services 

• Coordinated and conducted a Final Inspection of 429 Juliana Way on May 29, 2025. 
 
8. DCNR Multifunctional Riparian Buffer Grant 

Borough Wide 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
9. BTM Peaking Project 

W. Market Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
10. Perkasie Covered Bridge 

Lenape Park 

• Started to prepare the PADEP Permit Application for work in the floodplain. 

• Conference call with Borough Manager and Elected Official on May 28, 2025 to discuss 
project. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff and Elected Official. 
 
11. SEPTA Freight House Parcel 

W. Market Street and N. 8th Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 

12. W. Park Avenue Improvements 
W. Park Avenue 

• Attended Virtual TASA Meeting with Borough Staff and TASA Representative on May 6, 2025 
to discuss TASA Grant Application. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with USFWS for Bog Turtle clearance for Environmental 
Review Form. 

 
13. W. Market Street Traffic Study 

W. Market Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 6 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects        As of June 1, 2025 

 

14. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
Borough Wide 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
15. Stream Evaluation for East Branch Perkiomen Creek 

East Branch Perkiomen Creek 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
16. S. 7th Street Endwall Project 

S. 7th Street Culvert 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
17. The Mill Property 

200 S. Main Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
18. Lenape Park Pedestrian Bridge 

Lenape Park 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
19. N. 5th Street Storm Sewer System 

N. 5th Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
20. Private Alley Storm Sewer System 

Alley between Race & Arch Streets 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 

21. Parking Lot Condition Survey 
Borough Wide 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
22. W. Blooming Glen Drive Traffic Study 

W. Blooming Glen Drive 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
23. Lenape Park Skate Park Improvements 

Lenape Park 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
24. Kulp Park Baseball Field Improvements 

Kulp Park 

• Visited Kulp Park on April 29 and May 2, 15 and 23, 2025 to update existing features, acquire 
ADA measurements, and review light pole locations. 

• Continued to prepare Construction Plans, including the design of the ADA accessible route into 
Kulp Park, layout of baseball infield with grading, and lighting layout. 

• Updated Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost as requested by the Grant Coordinator. 

• Geotechnical Department prepared for test boring operation for light poles. 

• Visited Kulp Park on May 9, 2025 to assess drilling conditions. 

• Geotechnical Department started to prepare Geotechnical Report for light poles. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff and Borough Staff. 
 
 
 
 
 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 7 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects        As of June 1, 2025 

 

25. Perkasie Community Garden 
N. 5th Street 

• Survey Department conducted a survey of the site on April 28, 2025. 

• Environmental Department continued to conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
and finalized the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report dated May 7, 2025. 

• Prepared Existing Features Plan dated May 7, 2025. 

• Survey Department set the corners of the lot on May 8, 2025. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff and Solicitor. 
 
26. Misc. Consulting Services 

• Searched county records for Valley View Subdivision Plans. 

• Reviewed grant options for intersection of  N. 5th Street and Shadywood Drive. 

• Attended Traffic Committee Meeting at Borough Hall on May 5, 2025 to discuss parking 
concerns on Main Street. 

• Revised S. 9th Street Striping Plan in accordance with Public Works Director’s comments. 

• Prepared May’s Engineer’s Report. 

• Exported GIS Storm Sewer Data to HRG Team for use in Perkiomen Mapping and Flood 
Mitigation Plan. 

• Prepared for and Attended Council Meeting on May 19, 2025 to present Engineer’ Report. 

• Responded to street tree questions from Assistant Borough Manager. 

• Prepared S. Main Street Pavement Marking Plan. 

• Visited 513 W. Market Street with Zoning Officer on May 27, 2025 to analyze stormwater issue. 

• Correspondence between Police Chief and Structural Department to discuss load rating of 
vehicular bridge at Covered Bridge in Lenape Park. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff and Elected 
Officials. 



DEBRA A. SHULSKI 
debbie@rrhc.com 
Extension: 130 •• 

II■ 
RILEY RIPER HOLLIN & COLAGRECO 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

April 24, 2025 
via overnight delivery 

Cassandra Grillo, Zoning Officer 
Borough of Perkasie 
620 West Chestnut Street 
P.O. Box 96 
Perkasie, PA 18944 
cgrillo@perkasieborough.org 

Re: WP Perkasie, LLC - Starbucks Drive Through 

Zoning Hearing Application 

Dear Ms. Grillo: 

Enclosed for filing please find on behalf of WP Perkasie, LLC, ("Applicant") an 
Application to the Perkasie Borough Zoning Hearing Board with respect to Property located at N. 
5th Street and Blooming Glen Drive and further identified as Tax Parcel No. 33-016-010 
("Property"). The overall Property is approximately 2.307 acres in size and is located in the Cl 
Business Professional Zoning District. The Applicant previously received land development 
approval for the Property including two proposed "retail/eating place" buildings. Building #1 is 
proposed to be occupied by Starbucks. The Starbucks is permitted by right in the C 1 District as 
an E(3) eating place pursuant to Section 186-20.F(l) of the Zoning Ordinance. The Applicant also 
received conditional use approval pursuant to that certain Decision dated February 17, 2025 to 
permit an accessory drive through lane. 

The scope of this Application relates to the location of the proposed menu board within the 
drive through lane. Applicant is seeking a de minimis and/or dimensional variance from § 186-
18 .H(3) to allow the menu board to be located so that there are six ( 6) stacking spaces between the 
menu board and the pick up window whereas the Ordinance requires that six stacking spaces be 
located before reaching the menu board. Placement of the menu board before the six stacking 
spaces allows more waiting room before the takeout window and results in cars moving through 
quicker providing for more efficiency. 

Enclosed as part of this submission are the following documents: 

1. Twelve (12) copies of the Zoning Hearing Board Application Form;

2. Twelve (12) copies of the Plan prepared by SR3 Engineers., dated October 9, 2024, last
revised April 23, 2025;

rrhc.com 

7H Constitution Drive, Suii:e 201 Edon, PA 19341 P. 610-�-58-4400 F. 610-458-4441 







5. Applicant's attorney, if any:

Name: Debra A. Shulski, Esquire(a)

(b) Mailing Address: Riley Riper Hollin & Colagreco, 717 Constitution Drive, Suite 201,

Exton, PA 19341 

(c) Telephone number: 610-458-4400 Fax No. 610-458-4441 

( d) E-mail address:_d_eb_ b_ i_e@......._rr_ h_c_.c_o_m _________________ _ 

6. Proposed use/improvements: Applicant is proposing a drive through in conjunction with an "eating place."
The scope of this Application is limited to the location of the menu board with respect to the required six
space stacking within the drive through lane. 

7. For Request of Variance:

A. Nature of Variance Sought: De Minimis and/or dimensional variance from §186-18.H(3) to allow
the location of the menu board sign to be located in the drive through such that six stacking spaces would be provided
between the menu board and the pick up window (where as the Ordinance requir es that the six spaces be located prior to
reaching the menu board.)

B. The Variance is from Section 186-18.H(3) of the Zoning Ordinance. 

C. If more than one Variance is requested, list ALL pertinent ordinance sections and the
nature of each Variance sought. This may be submitted on an additional piece of paper.

D. The nature of the unique circumstances and unnecessary hardship justifying the variance:

The scope of relief is de minim is in that the minimum overall number of stacking spaces is being provided (in fact, more 
stacking is being provided than the Ordinance requires.) The relief is simply to allow the six stacking spaces to be located 
between the menu board and the pick-up window to allow for additional waiting space after ordering. By allowing the 
six spaces after the menu board, this provides for more waiting area before the takeout window and results in better 
efficiency and less overall queuing. Having more spaces between the menu board and the pickup window is also 
consistent with the industry standard. 

8. For Request For Special Exception: NIA

A. Nature of Exception Sought: ______________________ _

B. 

C. 

The exception is allowed under Section __________ of the Zoning Ordinance. 

If more than one Special Exception is requested, List ALL pertinent ordinance sections and 
the nature of each exception sought. This may be submitted on an additional piece of paper. 

9. Interpretation of Law: N/A

A. Section (s) to be Interpreted: _____________________ _

B. Reasoning for Interpretation: _______________________ _

2 







D

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

LEGAL R/W LINE

U
LT

IM
AT

E/
LE

G
AL

 R
/W

 L
IN

E

40
.0

0'
 T

IE
 D

IS
TA

N
C

E

30.28' TO P.O.B.

D

D

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

U
LT

IM
AT

E/
LE

G
AL

 R
/W

 L
IN

E

BU
ILD

IN
G

 SETBAC
K

BU
ILD

IN
G

 SETBAC
K

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

TYPE C BUFFER LINE

TYPE C BUFFER LINE

TYPE C
 BU

FFER
 LIN

E

TYPE A BUFFER LINE

40' SID
E YAR

D

40' REAR YARD

20' BU
FFER

20'

20
'

10
'

40' FRONT YARD

BUILDING SETBACK

40
' R

EA
R

 Y
AR

D

40' FRONT YARD

20'

10
'

12'
10'

10'

79.06'

40
' F

R
O

N
T 

YA
R

D

20
'

24
'

55
.7

2'

10
'

8' 8'

TYPE A
BUFFER LINE

40' FR
O

N
T YAR

D

8'

40
.0

0'
 T

IE
 D

IS
TA

N
C

E

400-FT SIGHT DISTANCE

400-FT SIGHT DISTANCE

250-FT SIGHT DISTANCE

250-FT SIGHT DISTANCE

77'-6"

12
'

42.35'

48.35'

10'

58.52'

R18'
20

' B
U

FF
ER

A

A

5

13

B

B

4

8

9

6

3

11 7

12

PENNDOT TYPE 'A'
PARALLEL CROSSWALK
(6" WIDE WHITE STRIPE)

DRIVE-THRU BYPASS LANE

DRIVE-THRU WINDOW

DRIVE-THRU
CANOPY

12'

DRIVE-THRU LANE

OPAQUE  FENCE,
5' MIN/6'MAX

22'
(TYP)

24" WIDE PAINTED
WHITE STOP BAR

FREE STANDING SIGN #1
DRIVE-TRHU SIGN

28
'-1

0"

52'-11"

RETAIL SPACE
BUILDING #2

1,500 SF
1122 N. 5TH STREET

RESTAURANT WITH D/T
BUILDING #1

2,500 SF
1120 N. 5TH STREET

28
'-1

0"

85'-3"

13'-0"

3'
-2

"

FREE STANDING SIGN #3
MENU ORDER BOARD

53'

10 10

C

D

2

5

37.35'

42
.4

'

11

5.
6'

TRASH RECEPTACLE

5'

13

R1-1 STOP SIGN
R5-1 "DO NOT ENTER"

11

11

PENNDOT TYPE 'A'
PARALLEL CROSSWALK
(6" WIDE WHITE STRIPE)

OUTDOOR
SEATING
(±430 SF)

CLEARANCE
BAR

FREE STANDING SIGN #2
DIGITAL ORDER SCREEN

R20'

R20'

3

1414

DETECTABLE WARNING
SURFACE (TYP)

R1-1 STOP SIGN
R5-1 "DO NOT ENTER"

2'

28
'-1

0"

52'-11"

1

1

11

6'

7

1

1

R18'

PARKING CALCULATIONS

AUTOZONE: 7,381 SF x (1 SPACE / 500 SF GFA) = 15 SPACES REQUIRED
RESTAURANT W / DRIVE-THRU: 2,500 SF X (1 SPACE / 300 SF GFA) = 9 SPACES REQUIRED
RETAIL: 1,500 SF  X (1 SPACE / 300 SF GFA) = 5 SPACES REQUIRED

REQUIRED PARKING: 29 SPACES
PROVIDED PARKING: 46 SPACES

SITE CAPACITY CALCULATIONS
SURVEY SITE AREA
EXISTING EASEMENT AREA:
EXISTING RESOURCE PROTECTION LAND:
NET SITE AREA:

2.307 Ac.
0.058 Ac.
0.467 Ac.
1.782 Ac.

RESOURCE
FLOODPLAIN
FLOODPLAIN SOILS
WATERCOURSES
STEEP SLOPES:
8-15%
15-25%
25% OR MORE
WOODLANDS
WETLANDS
WETLAND BUFFER
TOTAL
NOTE: THERE ARE AREAS WHICH CONTAIN THE SLOPE RANGES NOTED IN THE TABLE
ABOVE, HOWEVER THESE ARE CONSIDERED TO BE MAN-MADE STEEP SLOPES GIVEN
THE NATURE OF THE SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA.  THESE AREAS ARE THEREFORE
NOT CONSIDERED AS A PROTECTED RESOURCE IN THESE CALCULATIONS.

OPEN SPACE
RATIO
1.00
1.00
1.00

0.60
0.70
0.85
0.50
1.00
0.80

-

LAND IN
RESOURCE

0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.

0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.

RESOURCE
PROTECTION LAND

0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.

0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.
0 Ac.

REQUIRED OPEN SPACE: NONE

ZONING
CLASSIFICATION: C-1 (BUSINESS PROFESSIONAL)
USE: PLANNED COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT [PERMITTED]

MINIMUM LOT AREA
- 5TH ST. LEGAL R.O.W.
- 5TH ST. ULTIMATE R.O.W.
- WBG DRIVE ULTIMATE R.O.W.
- SIGN EASEMENT
- DRAINAGE EASEMENT
NET LOT AREA
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH (CORNER)

ALONG SHADYWOOD DR
ALONG N. 5TH ST
ALONG W. BLOOMING GLEN DR

MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACK:
FRONT YARD (N. 5TH ST - AUTOZONE)
FRONT YARD (N. 5TH ST - RETAIL)
FRONT YARD (SHADYWOOD DR)
FRONT YARD (W. BLOOMING GLEN DR)
SIDE YARD (SHADYWOOD DR)
SIDE YARD (W. BLOOMING GLEN DR)
REAR YARD (W. BLOOMING GLEN DR)

MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT

REQUIRED
87,120 SF (2 Ac.)

-
-
-
-
-
-

100 FT
100 FT
100 FT

40 FT
40 FT
40 FT
40 FT
40 FT
40 FT
40 FT
25%

40 FT

PROPOSED
100,492 SF (2.307 Ac.)

9,879 SF (0.227 Ac.)
3,339 SF (0.077 Ac.)
7,110 SF (0.163 AC.)
248 SF (0.006 AC.)

2,249 SF (0.052 AC.)
77,667 SF (1.782 AC.)

126.50 FT
407.18 FT
278.68 FT

79.06 FT
55.72 FT
58.52 FT
68.67 FT
42.35 FT
89.90 FT
44.63 FT
14.2%
<40 FT

NOTES:
1. NO LOADING OPERATIONS OR TRASH COLLECTION WILL OCCUR BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 10:00 PM AND 7:00 AM.
2. VEGETATION AND OTHER VISUAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE CLEAR SIGHT TRIANGLES SHOULD BE MAINTAINED

AND LIMITED TO A HEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN TWO FEET ABOVE THE STREET GRADE.
3. THREE (3) DAYS PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY OPERATION IN THE CONSTRUCTION OR INSTALLATION OF

STREETS, CURBS, SIDEWALKS, DRAINAGE FACILITIES, STREET SIGNS, MONUMENTS AND CAPPED SEWERS, THE
OWNER SHALL NOTIFY THE BOROUGH ENGINEER, WHO SHALL INSPECT THE WORK, MATERIALS, CONSTRUCTION AND
INSTALLATION TO ASSURE THAT THE SAME ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH BOROUGH REQUIREMENTS.

4. ANY PUBLIC OR PRIVATE ROAD THAT IS DAMAGED DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE OF THE PROJECT AS A
DIRECT RESULT OF THE CONSTRUCTION WORK SHALL BE CORRECTED IN A MANNER APPROVED BY THE BOROUGH.

5. BUILDINGS ARE LABELED AS RETAIL USES, PLEASE NOTE THAT THE SPECIFIC TENANTS ARE NOT KNOWN AT THIS
TIME AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AS THE TENANTS ARE IDENTIFIED.  BUILDINGS 1 AND 2 SHALL REMAIN
SEPARATE USES AND MAY NOT BE COMBINED INTO A SINGLE USE PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF A PLANNED
COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT.

6. A BLANKET STORMWATER EASEMENT IS OFFERED TO THE BOROUGH FOR ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES, INCLUDING THE EXISTING DRAINAGE CHANNEL TO BE PIPED.

7. ALL CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND INSTALLATIONS TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PENNDOT PUB 408
SPECIFICATIONS AND RC-CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS.

8. EXISTING INLET AND 36" RCP CULVERT LOCATED IN NORTH 5TH STREET ARE TO BE MAINTAINED BY PERKASIE
BOROUGH.

9. AS-BUILT DOCUMENTATION OF THE PROJECT STORMWATER MANAGEMENT BMP'S ARE TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE
BOROUGH TO DEMONSTRATE VOLUME AND OUTFLOW CHARACTERISTICS ARE BEING MET.

10. ALL AUTOZONE TRUCK DELIVERIES TO BE FROM W. BLOOMING GLEN DRIVE, LARGEST TRUCK SIZE IS A WB-50.
SHADYWOOD DRIVE NOT DESIGNED TO ACCOMMODATE TRACTOR TRAILER DELIVERIES.

11. ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS TO BE WATER-BASED PAINT IN ACCORDANCE WITH PENNDOT PUB 408 SPECIFICATIONS.
12. DRAINAGE FACILITIES INSTALLED BY THIS PERMIT ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT TO

ENSURE PROPER FUNCTION.  THE MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT OF THE FACILITIES SHALL BE THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PRIVATE CO-PERMITTEE, INCLUDING FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY.  DRAINAGE FACILITIES
INCLUDE:

12.A. DRAINAGE STRUCTURES BETWEEN SW1 AND SW3
12.B. DRAINAGE STRUCTURES BETWEEN SW4 AND SW8

13. DEVELOPER GRANTS THE BOROUGH, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS THE RIGHT (BUT NOT OBLIGATION) TO ACCESS
THE PROPERTY TO INSPECT, CONSTRUCT, REPAIR, MAINTAIN, REPLACE AND/OR RELOCATE THE STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT FACILITIES AND DRAINAGE SYSTEMS ON THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO PROVIDING REASONABLE
NOTICE TO DEVELOPER EXCEPT IN EXIGENT CIRCUMSTANCES.  THE BLANKET EASEMENT SHALL CARRY WITH THE
PROPERTY AND THE PROPERTY OWNER’S SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

14. DEVELOPER GRANTS THE BOROUGH, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS THE RIGHT (BUT NOT OBLIGATION) TO ACCESS
THE PROPERTY TO INSPECT, CONSTRUCT, REPAIR, MAINTAIN, REPLACE AND/OR RELOCATE THE ELECTRICAL
TRANSFORMER AND METERS ON THE PROPERTY SUBJECT TO PROVIDING REASONABLE NOTICE TO DEVELOPER
EXCEPT IN EXIGENT CIRCUMSTANCES.  THE BLANKET EASEMENT SHALL CARRY WITH THE PROPERTY AND THE
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

15. THE DEVELOPER SHALL TELEVISE ALL OF THE STORMWATER PIPE EXISTING AS OF THE COMMENCEMENT OF
CONSTRUCTION AND FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION, WETHER AN EXISTING PIPE OR NEW PIPE INSTALLED BY THE
DEVELOPER, SO AS TO MAKE SURE THE STORMWATER PIPES ARE IN AN ACCEPTABLE CONDITION.

16. BUILDINGS 1 AND 2 TO RECEIVE DELIVERIES IN FRONT OF BUILDING AS SHOWN ON VEHICLE MANEUVERABILITY PLAN.
17. PERKASIE BOROUGH RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REQUIRE THE PLACEMENT OF ANY TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGN DEEMED

NECESSARY BY THE BOROUGH COUNCIL, BOROUGH MANAGER OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE DUE TO SITE CONDITIONS.

SIGNAGE

SITE PLAN

RNR

3

1" = 20'

OCTOBER 9, 2024

20 0 2010 4015 5

GRAPHIC SCALE  1" = 20'

1 BOLLARD

TRASH ENCLOSURE

CONCRETE LIGHT POLE BASE. AIM LIGHT FIXTURE
IN DIRECTION AS INDICATED.

CURB @ ASPHALT PAVING

ASPHALT PAVING

6'-0" LONG CONCRETE WHEEL STOP PINNED TO
PAVEMENT (TYP.). LOCATE 3'-6" FROM FACE OF
CURB OR SIDEWALK.

4" WIDE STRIPE PAINTED WHITE (TYP.)

4' WIDE DIAGONAL STRIPES PAINTED WHITE AT 2
FT. 0.C.

HANDICAP PARKING SIGN (R7-8), RESERVED
PARKING PENALTIES SIGN (R7-8F) &
'VAN ACCESSIBLE' SIGN (R7-8P)

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

ACCESSIBLE RAMP - MAX SLOPE 1:12 (8.33%), MAX.
CROSS SLOPE 1:50 (2.00%) TRUNCATED DOME TO
BE A CONTRASTING COLOR.

NO RIGHT TURN SIGN (24"X24" R3-1, REFER TO
PENNDOT PUB. 236)

BUILDING CANOPY

WALL MOUNTED LIGHT

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

KEYNOTES:

A

SITE LABELING LEGEND:

PARKING STALL - 10'x20'

TWO-WAY DRIVE AISLE - 24' WIDE

SIDEWALK - 5' WIDE

TRASH ENCLOSURE

PARKING STALL COUNT

B

C

D

10

SIGN
LABEL SIGN TYPE NUMBER

OF SIGNS
LENGTH

(FT)
WIDTH

(FT)
MONUMENT SIGN

HEIGHT (FT)
AREA*

(SF)

1 FREESTANDING 1 3 0.7 6 18.0

2 FREESTANDING 1 3.1 0.8 6 12.9

3 FREESTANDING 1 5.2 1.1 5.1 18.5

*FINAL SIGN DIMENSIONS TO BE SUBMITTED AT THE TIME OF SIGN APPLICATION

CONDITIONAL USE TABLE

DRIVE-THROUGH TO SERVE A MINIMUM OF 6 VEHICLES,
EACH SPACE 22 FEET IN LENGTH, A MINIMUM OF 12 FEET
WIDE AND A MINIMUM TURNING RADIUS OF 18 FEET

DRIVE-THROUGH HAS 120 FEET OF STORAGE LENGTH
MEASURED FROM THE FIRST POINT OF SERVICE TO THE
BEGINNING OF THE DRIVE-THROUGH LANE

10 FOOT WIDE BYPASS OF ESCAPE LANE

DRIVE-THROUGH TRASH RECEPTACLE

OVERHEAD CANOPY AT LEAST 10 FEET FROM ANY STREET
RIGHT-OF-WAY, AT LEAST 20 FEET FROM ANY RESIDENTIAL
PROPERTY LINE AND A MAXIMUM OF 20 FEET IN HEIGHT

OUTDOOR SPEAKERS OR MENU BOARD AT LEAST 30 FEET
FROM ALL LOT LINES

ORDER BOARD SIGNS LOCATED EITHER ON THE BUILDING
OR BETWEEN THE DRIVE-THROUGH LANE  AND THE
BUILDING. ORDER BOARD SIGN A MAXIMUM OF 35 SQUARE
FEET ON EACH FACE

DRIVE-THROUGH SCREENED FROM ADJACENT
RESIDENTIAL USES AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES

PROVIDED

YES

NO (53' PROVIDED)

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

Designed By:

SAMUEL RENAURO III
PENNSYLVANIA
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER # 060617

Seal:

024-019

SR

Date:

Reviewed By:

Scale:

Project No:

Sheet Number:Drawing Name:

Project / Location:

BOROUGH OF PERKASIE                BUCKS COUNTY               PENNSYLVANIA

N. FIFTH STREET & W. BLOOMING GLEN DRIVE
BLOCK 6979, LOT 390

REVISIONS

STARBUCKS

100 ESSEX AVENUE, SUITE 201
BELLMAWR NJ, 08031
PH: (856) 933-3323
N.J. CERT. OF AUTHORIZATION 24GA28373000

NAD83

DESCRIPTION

1/2/25 REVISED PER BOROUGH COMMENTS

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER
PE060617

SAMUEL RENAURO III

14

2/20/25 REVISED PER BOROUGH COMMENTS

4/23/25 REVISED ORDER POINT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH 5TH STREET (S.R. 4039) A.K.A. LEGISLATIVE ROUTE 09101 (VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLENDALE ROAD A.K.A. NEW ROAD (80' PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. BLOOMING GLEN DRIVE (VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.D. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR  SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT 10' WIDE DRAINAGE EASEMENT AGREEMENT PER INSTRUMENT NO. 2015057743 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK MAG NAIL ELEV. = 366.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADYWOOD DRIVE  A.K.A. NEW ROAD (50' PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 STORY MASONRY BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: R-1A 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: R-1B 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ULTIMATE R.O.W. - 60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARID: 33-016-022 LAND N/F KRATZ JERRY D IRREV TRUST BK 6979 PG 390

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARID: 33-007-038 LAND N/F BUCKS CO HOUSING AUTH SHADYWOOD DR BK 2281 PG 0412 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAIL BUILDING #3 7,381 S.F 500 W. BLOOMING GLEN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARID: 33-016-010 LAND N/F KRATZ JERRY D IRREV TRUST N FIFTH ST BK 6979 PG 390 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID 33-016-028 LANDS N/F BUCKS CO HOUSING AUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID 33-016-009 LANDS N/F KRATZ JERRY D IRREV TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID 12-009-200-001 LANDS N/F PENNRIDGE SCHOOL DIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID 33-016-035 LANDS N/F AZARIK PROP LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PID 33-016-034 LANDS N/F PEMMA HLDG LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER LOADING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEGMENTAL BLOCK RETAINING WALL OR PRECAST CONC. HEADWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' CLEAR SIGHT TRIANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' CLEAR SIGHT TRIANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' CLEAR SIGHT TRIANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' CLEAR SIGHT TRIANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' CLEAR SIGHT TRIANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK (TYP) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BOLLARD (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIDEWALK CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" WIDE PAINTED WHITE STOP BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' CLEAR SIGHT TRIANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WHITE STRIPING 3' O.C. (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" WIDE PAINTED WHITE STOP BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PENNDOT TYPE 'A' PARALLEL CROSSWALK (6" WIDE WHITE STRIPE) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREESTANDING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREESTANDING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREESTANDING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
"NO TRUCK ACCESS" SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
42" CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L= 47.87' R= 30.00' CHD= N06°41'39"W CHL= 42.95' = 91°26'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
64.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
64.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDE OVERHEAD ELECTRIC EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WIDE SIGN EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PROPERTY LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STRIPING









































Perkasie Borough Incidents (PFC1-PBI)

Incidents for Perkasie Borough Incidents within 05/01/2025 - 05/31/2025.

Toned At Title Reference Responders Duration Total Category

09:59 - Fri,

02 May 2025

FUMES

INSIDE

STRUCTUR

E (TAC)

25000008003 2 19 minutes 38 minutes NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

08:52 - Sat,

03 May 2025

Animal

Rescue

1230001 2 One hour 38

minutes

3 hours 16

minutes

NFIRS

Animal

Rescue

01:07 - Sun,

04 May 2025

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

25000008110 3 10 minutes 30 minutes NFIRS

Smoke

Detector

Activation

Due To

Malfunction

00:14 - Tue,

06 May 2025

FUEL SPILL

INCIDENT

(LOC)

25000008237 6 One hour 13

minutes

7 hours 18

minutes

NFIRS Oil Or

Other

Combustible

Liquid Spill

14:18 - Sat,

10 May 2025

TRAFFIC

ACCIDENT

STANDBY

(LOC)

25000008491 7 10 minutes One hour 10

minutes

MVA With

Injuries

17:45 - Wed,

14 May 2025

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

25000008826 14 6 minutes One hour 24

minutes

NFIRS

Smoke

Scare Odor

Of Smoke

08:59 - Thu,

15 May 2025

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

25000008864 5 11 minutes 55 minutes NFIRS

Smoke

Detector

Activation

Due To

Malfunction

Perkasie Fire Company No 1 - Rich Dunbar 'Rich' - 13:07 - Sun, 01 Jun 2025



18:16 - Fri,

16 May 2025

 

GAS FUMES

OUTSIDE

(LOC)

25000008982

 

 

12

 

 

One hour 8

minutes

 

13 hours 36

minutes

 

NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

15:40 - Sat,

17 May 2025

 

CARBON

MONOXIDE

ALARM

25000009034

 

 

9

 

 

20 minutes

 

 

3 hours

 

 

NFIRS CO

Detector

Malfunction

20:36 - Sun,

18 May 2025

 

GAS FUMES

OUTSIDE

(LOC)

25000009101

 

 

13

 

 

One hour 5

minutes

 

14 hours 5

minutes

 

NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

00:10 - Wed,

21 May 2025

 

FIRE

ASSIST EMS

ALS (TYPE)

25000009223

 

 

4

 

 

32 minutes

 

 

2 hours 8

minutes

 

NFIRS EMS -

Not MVA

 

08:02 - Wed,

21 May 2025

GENERAL

ALERT

546706535

 

1

 

3 minutes

 

3 minutes

 

Other

 

15:00 - Wed,

21 May 2025

 

 

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

 

25000009255

 

 

 

6

 

 

 

14 minutes

 

 

 

One hour 24

minutes

 

 

NFIRS Alarm

-

Unintentiona

l

Number of incidents: 13. Total Hours: 7 hours 9 minutes. Total Responder Hours: 2 days One hour 27 minutes (49h 27m).

Perkasie Fire Company No 1 - Rich Dunbar 'Rich' - 13:07 - Sun, 01 Jun 2025



Perkasie Full Incidents (PFC1-IL)

Incidents for Perkasie Full Incidents within 05/01/2025 - 05/31/2025.

Toned At Title Reference Responders Duration Total Category

09:59 - Fri,

02 May 2025

 

 

FUMES

INSIDE

STRUCTUR

E (TAC)

25000008003

 

 

 

2

 

 

 

19 minutes

 

 

 

38 minutes

 

 

 

NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

 

15:29 - Fri,

02 May 2025

 

 

FUMES

INSIDE

STRUCTUR

E (TAC)

25000008020

 

 

 

5

 

 

 

31 minutes

 

 

 

2 hours 35

minutes

 

 

NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

 

08:52 - Sat,

03 May 2025

 

Animal

Rescue

 

1230001

 

 

2

 

 

One hour 38

minutes

 

3 hours 16

minutes

 

NFIRS

Animal

Rescue

17:39 - Sat,

03 May 2025

 

 

COVER

NOTIFICATI

ON:

 

542865734

 

 

 

5

 

 

 

One hour 36

minutes

 

 

8 hours

 

 

 

NFIRS Cover

Assignment

Standby

Moveup

18:03 - Sat,

03 May 2025

 

FIRE

POLICE

REQUEST

25000008091

 

 

3

 

 

One hour 42

minutes

 

5 hours 6

minutes

 

Fire Police

Request

 

01:07 - Sun,

04 May 2025

 

 

 

 

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

 

 

 

25000008110

 

 

 

 

 

3

 

 

 

 

 

10 minutes

 

 

 

 

 

30 minutes

 

 

 

 

 

NFIRS

Smoke

Detector

Activation

Due To

Malfunction

13:16 - Sun,

04 May 2025

 

FIRE

POLICE

REQUEST

25000008139

 

 

4

 

 

2 hours 59

minutes

 

11 hours 56

minutes

 

MVA With

Injuries

 

00:14 - Tue,

06 May 2025

 

 

FUEL SPILL

INCIDENT

(LOC)

 

25000008237

 

 

 

6

 

 

 

One hour 13

minutes

 

 

7 hours 18

minutes

 

 

NFIRS Oil Or

Other

Combustible

Liquid Spill

Perkasie Fire Company No 1 - Rich Dunbar 'Rich' - 13:05 - Sun, 01 Jun 2025



16:21 - Tue,

06 May 2025

BUILDING

FIRE (BOX)

25000008279

 

8

 

28 minutes

 

3 hours 44

minutes

NFIRS

Building Fire

11:23 - Wed,

07 May 2025

 

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

25000008327

 

 

1

 

 

31 minutes

 

 

31 minutes

 

 

Cancelled

 

 

18:43 - Wed,

07 May 2025

 

EXTINGUISH

ED (TYPE)

(TAC)

25000008338

 

 

9

 

 

13 minutes

 

 

One hour 57

minutes

 

Cancelled

 

 

19:36 - Thu,

08 May 2025

 

DWELLING

FIRE (TAC)

 

25000008396

 

 

23

 

 

7 minutes

 

 

2 hours 41

minutes

 

NFIRS

Cancelled

En Route

07:46 - Fri,

09 May 2025

 

 

 

WIRES

OUTSIDE

(LOC)

 

 

25000008412

 

 

 

 

6

 

 

 

 

One hour

 

 

 

 

6 hours

 

 

 

 

NFIRS

Arcing

Shorted

Electrical

Equipment

14:18 - Sat,

10 May 2025

 

 

TRAFFIC

ACCIDENT

STANDBY

(LOC)

25000008491

 

 

 

7

 

 

 

10 minutes

 

 

 

One hour 10

minutes

 

 

MVA With

Injuries

 

 

19:43 - Mon,

12 May 2025

 

 

FUMES

INSIDE

STRUCTUR

E (TAC)

25000008643

 

 

 

14

 

 

 

14 minutes

 

 

 

3 hours 16

minutes

 

 

NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

 

18:29 - Tue,

13 May 2025

 

 

COVER

NOTIFICATI

ON:

 

545035414

 

 

 

7

 

 

 

2 hours 11

minutes

 

 

15 hours 17

minutes

 

 

NFIRS Cover

Assignment

Standby

Moveup

18:43 - Tue,

13 May 2025

DWELLING

FIRE (TAC)

25000008709

 

5

 

One hour 57

minutes

9 hours 45

minutes

NFIRS

Building Fire

17:45 - Wed,

14 May 2025

 

 

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

 

25000008826

 

 

 

14

 

 

 

6 minutes

 

 

 

One hour 24

minutes

 

 

NFIRS

Smoke

Scare Odor

Of Smoke

Perkasie Fire Company No 1 - Rich Dunbar 'Rich' - 13:05 - Sun, 01 Jun 2025



08:59 - Thu,

15 May 2025

 

 

 

 

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

 

 

 

25000008864

 

 

 

 

 

5

 

 

 

 

 

11 minutes

 

 

 

 

 

55 minutes

 

 

 

 

 

NFIRS

Smoke

Detector

Activation

Due To

Malfunction

06:24 - Fri,

16 May 2025

 

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

25000008914

 

 

4

 

 

16 minutes

 

 

One hour 4

minutes

 

Cancelled

 

 

11:48 - Fri,

16 May 2025

 

DWELLING

FIRE (TAC)

 

25000008940

 

 

8

 

 

16 minutes

 

 

2 hours 8

minutes

 

NFIRS

Cancelled

En Route

18:16 - Fri,

16 May 2025

 

GAS FUMES

OUTSIDE

(LOC)

25000008982

 

 

12

 

 

One hour 8

minutes

 

13 hours 36

minutes

 

NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

15:40 - Sat,

17 May 2025

 

CARBON

MONOXIDE

ALARM

25000009034

 

 

9

 

 

20 minutes

 

 

3 hours

 

 

NFIRS CO

Detector

Malfunction

20:36 - Sun,

18 May 2025

 

GAS FUMES

OUTSIDE

(LOC)

25000009101

 

 

13

 

 

One hour 5

minutes

 

14 hours 5

minutes

 

NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

17:04 - Mon,

19 May 2025

 

 

FUMES

INSIDE

STRUCTUR

E (TAC)

25000009142

 

 

 

9

 

 

 

26 minutes

 

 

 

3 hours 54

minutes

 

 

NFIRS Gas

Leak Natural

Gas Or LPG

 

19:50 - Mon,

19 May 2025

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL

ASSIGNMEN

T

 

 

 

25000009147

 

 

 

 

 

11

 

 

 

 

 

9 minutes

 

 

 

 

 

One hour 39

minutes

 

 

 

 

NFIRS

Assist

Police Or

Other

Government

al Agency

12:39 - Tue,

20 May 2025

DWELLING

FIRE (TAC)

25000009188

 

8

 

One hour 31

minutes

12 hours 8

minutes

NFIRS

Building Fire

16:05 - Tue,

20 May 2025

 

FIRE

ASSIST EMS

ALS (TYPE)

25000009205

 

 

6

 

 

23 minutes

 

 

2 hours 18

minutes

 

NFIRS EMS -

Not MVA

 

Perkasie Fire Company No 1 - Rich Dunbar 'Rich' - 13:05 - Sun, 01 Jun 2025



00:10 - Wed,

21 May 2025

FIRE

ASSIST EMS

ALS (TYPE)

25000009223 4 32 minutes 2 hours 8

minutes

NFIRS EMS -

Not MVA

08:02 - Wed,

21 May 2025

GENERAL

ALERT

546706535 1 3 minutes 3 minutes Other

15:00 - Wed,

21 May 2025

FIRE

ALARM

(LOC)

25000009255 6 14 minutes One hour 24

minutes

NFIRS Alarm

-

Unintentiona

l

01:47 - Fri,

23 May 2025

FIRE

ASSIST EMS

ALS (TYPE)

25000009349 6 20 minutes 2 hours NFIRS EMS -

Not MVA

16:20 - Tue,

27 May 2025

FUMES

INSIDE

STRUCTUR

E (TAC)

25000009628 4 13 minutes 52 minutes NFIRS

Cancelled

En Route

14:01 - Wed,

28 May 2025

GAS

DETECTION

ALARM

(LOC)

25000009680 5 17 minutes One hour 25

minutes

NFIRS CO

Detector

Malfunction

17:26 - Wed,

28 May 2025

GAS

DETECTION

ALARM

(LOC)

25000009695 8 13 minutes One hour 44

minutes

NFIRS Cover

Assignment

Standby

Moveup

02:06 - Sat,

31 May 2025

WIRES

OUTSIDE

(LOC)

25000009868 5 21 minutes One hour 45

minutes

Powerline

Down

Number of incidents: 36. Total Hours: One day One hour 3 minutes (25h 3m). Total Responder Hours: 6 days 7 hours 12

minutes (151h 12m).

Perkasie Fire Company No 1 - Rich Dunbar 'Rich' - 13:05 - Sun, 01 Jun 2025



Page -3040- 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE MONTH OF MAY 

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY 

MONDAY, MAY 12, 2025 

The regular meeting of the month was convened in the Authority Office, 150 Ridge Road 
at 5:32 p.m. on May 12, 2025 by Chairman David Watt. Attending in addition to the Chairman 
were Board Members Vicki Miller, Gregory Martin and Stephen Algeo. Absent from the meeting 
with consent of the Board was J. Thomas Horn. Staff members present: Nicholas Fretz, 
Manager, Sean Torpey, Engineer, John N. Schaeffer, I1I, Esquire, Solicitor, and Laura Snyder, 
Accounts Payable. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

None this meeting, 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

None this meeting. 

MINUTES: 

Upon motion by Martin, seconded by Miller, the Minutes of the regular meeting of April 14, 
2025 were unanimously approved as written. 

PUBLIC FORUM: 

a) Audit Presentation - Justin Nepo presented the 2024 Financial Audit to the Board. The 
Authority had a great financial year in 2024 with strong financial indicators. 
See Official Board Action 

CORRESPONDENCE: 

a) Pennridge Community Day - The Manager presented to the Board the Pennridge Community 
Day donation request. 
See Official Board Action 

PWTA: 

a) Minutes from the March 2025 meeting 
b) March 2025 flow reports 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 

a) Balance Sheet for April 2025 

b) Profit and Loss Budget Overview Reports for April 2025 
¢) Statement of Trust Funds — April 2025 
d) Revenue Fund Requisition Number 604 in the amount of $134,979.99. 
¢) Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund Requisition Number 1223 thru 1229 in the total 

amount of $143,233.55. 

) Developer Escrow Releases & Summaries 

Upon motion by Watt, seconded by Algeo, the Financial Information was unanimously 
approved. 

OPERATIONS REPORT: 
) Activity Report for April 2025 
b) Average production by month for April 2025 
©) Precipitation Report for April 2025 
d) Water Production Reports for April 2025 
) Sewer truck reports 

Upon motion by Watt, seconded by Miller, the Operations Report was unanimously 
approved.



PRA Board Meeting Page -3041- 
May 12,2025 

SOLICITOR’S REPORT: 

a) Pennoni Lease — The Solicitor stated that he created the lease agreement for Pennoni 
that included the lease to auto renew and increase by 2% every year. 
See Official Board Action 

b) Hydrant Claim — The Solicitor state that he submitted a claim to the District Attorney 
for the fire hydrant that was hit last year. 

Upon motion by Watt, seconded by Martin, the Solicitor’s Report was unanimously 
approved. 

ENGINEER’S REPORT: 
a) McClennen Tract — The Engineer stated that there was no change in the progress of the 

project. 
b) 8" St. Commons — The Engineer stated that there was no change in the progress of the 

project. 
c) 809 Three Mile Run Rd. — The Engineer stated that they are in receipt of material 

submittals for the installation and would be issuing a review letter. 

d) Green Ridge Estates West — The Engineer stated that there was no change in the progress 
of the project. 

€) Spruce St. Townhouses — The Engineer stated that there was no change in the progress of 
the project. 

f) Well #14 — The Engineer stated that they finalized the stormwater management design and 
submitted to the Township. He further stated that they were scheduled to appear before the 
Zzoning hearing board next month. 

g) Well #4 — The Engineer stated that they had begun to receive material submittals from 
DOLI and are reviewing change orders for potential cost savings. They were working 
through some scheduling issues with the contractor. 

h) Well #7 — The Engineer stated that they had completed the preliminary design of the land 
development plans and would be meeting with the Township next month to confirm zoning 

requirements. 
i) Well #10 — The Engineer stated that they had completed the preliminary design of the land 

development plans and had started creating bid documents. 
j) Lawn Avenue Subdivision — The Engineer stated that there was no change in the progress 

of the project. 

Upon motion by Watt, seconded by Miller, the Engineer’s Report was unanimously approved. 

MANAGER'’S REPORT: 

a) Well #14 ERT Adjudication — The Manager presented to the Board Well #14 ERT 
Adjudication. The Board directed the Solicitor to draft a well guarantee agreement. 
See Official Board Action 

b) Pennoni Lease — The Manager presented to the Board the Pennoni Lease that the Solicitor 
created. 

Upon motion by Martin, seconded by Miller, the Manager’s Report was unanimously 
approved. 

OFFICIAL BOARD ACTION: 

‘Upon motion by Watt, seconded by Martin, the Board unanimously approved the 2024 Financial 
Audit. 

Upon motion by Watt, seconded by Miller, the Board unanimously approved to donate $600.00 
to Pennridge Community Day. 

Upon motion by Martin, seconded by Algeo, the Board unanimously approved the lease 
agreement with Pennoni for 2025 to auto renew and increase 2% annually. 

Upon motion by Watt, seconded by Martin, the Board approved with a 3-1 vote, with Algeo 
opposed, not to file an appeal on the ruling of Well #14 ERT Adjudication.



PRA Board Meeting Page -3042- 
May 12,2025 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS: 

a) June Meeting Date — The Manager requested to change the June Board meeting date to 
‘Wednesday, June 11%. The Board was in agreement and changed the date of the next 
Board meeting to June 11, 2025 at S5pm. 

CHAIRMAN’S REMARKS: 

None this meeting. 

PUBLIC FORUM II: 

None this meeting. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

None this meeting. 

ADJOURN: 

There being no further business to come before the Board in the regular session and upon 
motion by Martin seconded by Algeo, the meeting was adjourned at 6:33 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

&m«é&w 
Laura Snyder, Rccgrding Secretary 

'?/Hma % % 1 
Victoria Miller, Secretary 



BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
Concise Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2024

Assets

Current Assets $ 1,519,336
Restricted Assets 9,853,305
Other Assets 284,484
Lease Receivable 78,322
Property, Plant and Equipment (Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $31,924,674) 37,458,902
Deferred Outflows 417,492

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS $ 49,611,841

Liabilities and Net Position

Unrestricted Current Liabilities $ 93,395
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 1,451,594
Long-Term Liabilities - Net of Current Portion 11,616,250
Deferred Inflows 83,025

     Total Liabilities $ 13,244,264

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 24,704,366
Net Position - Restricted for Debt Service 6,502,370
Net Position - Restricted for Capital Projects 3,159,341
Net Position - Unrestricted 2,001,500

     Total Net Position $ 36,367,577

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 49,611,841

Concise Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For The Year Ended December 31, 2024

Operating Revenues $ 5,303,661
Operating Expenses (3,919,942)

  Operating Income $ 1,383,719

Nonoperating Revenues 803,549
Nonoperating Expenses (364,789)

Excess Revenues Over Expenses $ 1,822,479

Net Position, January 1, 2024 34,545,098

Net Position, December 31, 2024 $ 36,367,577

A COPY OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PREPARED BY INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS,
IS AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION IN THE AUTHORITY'S OFFICE, MONDAYS THROUGH FRIDAYS, DURING NORMAL 
BUSINESS HOURS.  THE AUTHORITY'S OFFICE IS LOCATED AT 150 RIDGE ROAD, SELLERSVILLE, PENNSYLVANIA.

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Financial Statements

As of and For the Years Ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

December 31, 2024 and 2023

Table of Contents

Page

Independent Auditors’ Report....................................................................................................................... 1-3

Management Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited) ....................................................................................... 4-9

Basic Financial Statements:

Statements of Net Position .......................................................................................................................10-11

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position...........................................................12

Statements of Cash Flows ........................................................................................................................13

Notes to Financial Statements.......................................................................................................................14-29

Required Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios....................................................30

Schedule of Employer Contributions ......................................................................................................31

Notes to Required Supplementary Information (unaudited) ...................................................................32

Other Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Operating Expenses…………………………………………………………………...……..33

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual ………………………...…………….…34 - 36

   



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of the Board
Perkasie Regional Authority

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Perkasie Regional Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Authority, as of December 31, 2024, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Entity and to 
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Authority for the year ended December 31, 2023, before the restatement described 
in Note 3, were audited by another auditor whose reported dated July 23, 2024, expressed an unmodified opinion 
on those statements. As part of our audit of the December 31, 2024 financial statements, we also audited the 
adjustments described in Note 3 that were applied to restate the 2023 financial statements. In our opinion, such 
adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any 
procedures to the 2023 financial statements of the entity other than with respect to the adjustments and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2023 financial statements as a 
whole.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

CBIZ CPAs P.C.

1601 Market Street 

4th Floor 

Philadelphia, PA 19103

P: 215.297.2100

CBIZ.COM



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern 
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, 
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Entity’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control—related matters that we 
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 9 and the schedule of changes in the net position liability 
and related ratios and schedules of contributions on pages 30 and 31 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Entity’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of operating expenses and 
schedule of revenues and expenses – budget and actual on pages 33 through 36 are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the schedule of operating expenses and schedule of 
revenues and expenses – budget and actual is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
May 30, 2025



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

4

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an introduction to the basic financial statements.  This 
section presents management’s discussion of the financial activities of Perkasie Regional Authority’s 
(“Authority”) for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.  The Management Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A) is only a component of the entire financial statement.  Readers should read and evaluate all 
sections of the report, including the notes to the financial statements in addition to this MD&A. 

FINANCIAL AND AUTHORITY HIGHLIGHTS

 The Authority’s total assets decreased slightly from $50.0 million in 2023 to $49.6 million in 2024, 
for an decrease of about $400,000 (1%), which was mostly attributable to repayment of the grant 
receivable and a decreases in net pension assets offset by increases in unrestricted and restricted cash 
and accounts receivable. 

 The Authority’s net position increased from $34.6 million in 2023 to $36.4 million in 2024, or an 
increase of roughly $1.8 million (5.3%). 

 The Authorities liabilities decreased roughly $2.0 million (13.4%) due to principal payments on water 
and sewer revenue bonds and decreases in accrued liabilities on capital projects.

 The Authority’s total operating revenues remained consistent with a nominal decrease of about 
$179,000 or about 3%.

 The Authority’s total operating expenses decreased about $96,000, or about 2%, over 2023 due to a 
decrease in pension expense of $200,000, offset by an increase of $96,000 in depreciation.

 The operating revenues were in line with budgeted revenues, while the operating expenses were 
approximately $335,000 below budget mostly due to lower than anticipated water and sewer service 
expenses.  

 The Authority realized roughly 15 new customers in 2024 after adding about 320 new customers the 
previous six (6) years, and anticipates adding an additional 150 new customers in 2025.  These 
additional customers have helped, and will continue to help, keep rates stable going forward.  The 
Authority has averaged a less than 1% rate increase in each of the last nine (9) years.

                      
Overview of the Financial Statements

The Authority is considered a proprietary fund in accordance with governmental accounting standards.  
Proprietary funds report on business-type activities and the financial statements are prepared using the 
economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. 

The governing body of the Authority is a Board consisting of five members appointed by Borough Council.  
The terms of the members of the Board have been staggered so that the term of one member expires annually.  

The Authority’s basic financial statements comprise the statement of net position, statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position, statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements.

Statement of Net Position – This statement will provide information that will help the reader determine if the 
Authority is financially better or worse off because of the year’s activity.  These statements include all assets 



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

5

and liabilities using historical cost and the accrual method of accounting like that used by private sector 
companies.  

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – This statement presents the results of 
business activities during the fiscal year and the amounts by which the net assets changed.  All revenues and 
expenses are considered regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

Statement of Cash Flows – Reports changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational, capital 
and financing, and investment activities.  

Notes to Financial Statements – The financial statement note disclosures provide the reader with additional 
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data presented in the financial statements.

Financial Analysis of the Authority

The Authority’s net position (the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows) is a measure of its financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position is an indicator 
of whether the Authority’s financial position has improved or declined.  While this financial analysis is a 
strong indicator of the Authority’s financial position, other non-financial factors need to also be considered, 
such as new legislation affecting operations, economic conditions and growth.  

Condensed Financial Information

The following table is a summary of the Authority’s December 31, 2024, Statement of Net Position with 
comparative information as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Summary of Net Position

2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022

Current Assets $ 1,519,336 $ 2,563,457 $ 1,173,446
Current 

Liabilities $    93,395 $    406,198 $    126,926

Property, Plant & 
Equipment  - Net 37,458,902 37,545,046 31,097,992

Current 
Liabilities From 
Restr. Assets 1,451,594 1,446,396 1,353,167

Restricted Assets 9,853,305 8,768,002 9,420,366
Long Term 

Liabilities 11,616,250 13,347,244 11,684,609

Other Assets 362,806 459,762 664,472 Net Positions 36,367,577 34,545,098 29,066,282

Deferred Outflows 417,492 669,526 460,655 Deferred Inflows 83,025 260,857 585,947

Total $49,611,841 $50,005,793 $42,816,931 Total $49,611,841 $50,005,793 $42,816,931

Current assets primarily include cash and accounts receivable and there the balance has been relatively flat. As of 
December 31, 2023, current assets increased due to the grant receivable of $1,240,580 and there was no grant 
receivable as of December 31, 2024.

Property, plant and equipment, net includes the costs of the water and sewer infrastructure.  During the year ended 
December 31, 2024, the Authority incurred costs of approximately $1.7 million related to several new projects. 
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Authority incurred costs of approximately $7 million related to 



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

6

Old Bethlehem Pike water main extension, improvements to the reservoir, additional sewer capacity, and 
Highland Drive water lining. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Authority incurred costs of 
approximately $1 million related to Mt. View road and other miscellaneous projects.

Restricted assets include funds held by the Trustee for debt service, capital projects, and operations of the 
Authority.  All amounts are held in money market accounts which are deemed to be cash equivalents.  As part of 
the Authority’s Trust Indenture related to its Bonds outstanding, all receipts are pledged to the trustee bank and 
deposited into these funds.  The change year to year is based on the Authority’s cash activity.  For the year ended 
December 31, 2024, the Authority generated cash from operating and investing activities of $2,615,000 and 
$549,000, respectively, offset by cash used in capital and related financing activities of $2,018,000. For the year 
ended December 31, 2023, the Authority generated cash from operating and investing activities of $2,663,000 and 
$558,000, respectively, offset by cash used in capital and related financing activities of $3,832,000.

Other assets includes the water and sewer assessment receivables (i.e. tapping fees) and the Authority’s lease 
receivable.  The majority of the water and sewer assessment outstanding will be paid once the related property is 
sold.  Based on amortization of the lease receivable, the lease receivable decreased $84,000 as of December 31, 
2024.  

Deferred outflows of resources includes amounts related to the Authority’s defined benefit pension plan and 
deferred amount from refunding of its 2011 bonds.  The deferred amount is amortized ratably over the life of the 
2019 Revenue Bonds.  The change in the pension plan varies year to year based on the performance of the plan.
There was a decrease in deferred outflows related to the pension of $226,000 primarily due to differences between 
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments plus contributions made subsequent to the valuation 
date of the pension plan.

Current liabilities primarily consist of accounts payable and accrued liabilities for capital projects. As of 
December 31, 2024, current liabilities decreased $301,000 due to a decrease in accrued liabilities on capital 
projects. As of December 31, 2023, current liabilities increased $279,000 due to accrued liabilities on capital 
projects.

Long-term liabilities consist of the Authority’s 2019 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds and a 2023 Water and 
Sewer Revenue Note and the Authority’s pension liability.  Long-term liabilities decreased by $1,455,000 and 
$1,320,000 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, due to the principal payments on our Revenue Bonds 
and Note. The pension liability decreased by $226,000 as of December 31, 2024.  In 2023, the Authority obtained 
a water and sewer revenue note of $2,600,000 and the pension asset switched to a liability of $303,000.

Deferred inflows of resources includes amounts related to the Authority’s defined benefit pension plan and lease 
receivable.  The change as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 primarily relates to changes in the projected and 
actual earnings related to the pension plan.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

7

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position:

The following table is a summary of the Authority’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position for the year ended December 31, 2024 with comparative information for the years ended December 31, 
2023 and 2022.

2024 2023 2022

Operating Revenues:

   Water and Sewer $ 4,931,259 $ 4,657,170 $ 4,568,662 

   Other 251,462 207,460 212,885 

   Tapping Fees 120,940 617,736 524,140 

Total Operating Revenues 5,303,661 5,482,366 5,305,687

Operating Expenses:

   Water and sewer 1,475,529 1,546,926 1,386,527

   Professional Fees 152,939 123,725 122,297

   General and Administrative 842,078 993,436 658,727

   Depreciation 1,449,396 1,351,993 1,339,833

Total Operating Expenses 3,919,942 4,016,080 3,507,384

Operating income 1,383,719 1,466,286 1,798,303

Total Nonoperating Income (Expense) 438,760 4,012,530 (111,009)

Change in Net Position $ 1,822,479 $ 5,478,816 $ 1,687,294

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, water and sewer revenue have increased by approximately 6% 
and 2% respectively, since there was a minimal rate increase for 2023 and a rate increase of approximately 5% for 
2024. 

The Authority’s rate base has remained stable partly due to the mix of customers with the customer base being 
predominantly residential with only a small amount of commercial and industrial users.  The breakdown is as 
follows:

2024 2023 2022
Residential, including multi-family 94.5% 94.4% 95.3%
Commercial, including mixed uses 3.6% 3.7% 3.2%
Industrial, Institutional, Public 1.9% 1.9% 1.5%

Other Revenues are derived from fees and charges not directly related to metered water and sewer sales.  These 
include fees for account certifications and delinquent notification fees as well as the sewer truck services.  For the 
year ended December 31, 2024, other revenue increased by $44,000 over the prior year. For the year ended 
December 31, 2023, other revenue remained flat.

Tapping fees are not budgeted and vary based on the amount of new construction and developments.  For the 
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, tapping fees decreased by $497,000 and increased by $94,000, 
respectively. 



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

8

Water and sewer expenses remained flat for the year ended December 31, 2024.  For the year ended December 31, 
2023, the increase was primarily attributable to an increase in sewage treatment costs ($65,000) and repairs and 
maintenance of the wells ($73,000).

Professional fees increased by $29,000 for the year ended December 31, 2024 due to the uniform guidance audit 
we were required to perform last year related to our grant and due to increased hydrogeologist fees.  Professional 
fees were flat for the year ended December 31, 2023 when compared to 2022.

General and administrative costs represent administration employee compensation and benefits including medical 
benefits, billing supplies, communication, education, trustee’s fees and insurance.  For the year ended December 
31, 2024, general and administrative costs decreased $151,000 due to a decrease in pension expense of $198,000, 
offset by an increase in office payroll of $59,000. For the year ended December 31, 2023, general and 
administrative costs increased $335,000 due to an increase in pension expense of $275,000 and increase in 
equipment costs and repairs and maintenance totaling $45,000.

Nonoperating income (expense) includes investment income, lease income, capital contributions, debt issue costs 
and interest expense on long-term debt.

Investment earnings increased $7,000 and $383,000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively, due to the overall increase in the balance of investments.    

Lease income is generated from excess commercial, industrial and rental properties leased by the Authority.  
The Authority leases space on its water tank to cell phone companies as well as office space at the main 
office.  Lease income remained relatively the same for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.  

Capital contributions include property dedications to the Authority where developers contribute the easements 
and water and sewer lines back to the Authority, which are recorded at fair value and for any capital related 
grants.  During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Authority received a grant in which capital expenses 
were reimbursed under this grant and totaled $$255,000 and $3,314,000 for the years ended December 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively.

Debt issue costs arise from costs incurred on new debt and are expensed when incurred.  During the year 
ended December 31, 2024, the Authority did not incur any debt issue costs. For the year ended December 31, 
2023, the Authority incurred $81,000 of costs in connection with its Water and Sewer Revenue Note, Series 
2023. 

Interest expense on long-term debt decreased by $20,000 for the year ended December 31, 2024 due to due to 
principal payments on its debt.  Interest expense on long-term debt increased by $23,000 for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 due to the new water and sewer revenue note offset by principal payments on the water 
and sewer revenue bonds.  

Future Plans

The Authority realizes that in order to remain viable and keep rates stable it must grow and add to its customer 
base. To that end, the Board has initiated capital projects to extend facilities further into West Rockhill Township 
over the past couple of years with the hope of spurring development in the Township.

The primary growth in the Authority’s service area is expected to be residential; however, both the agreements 
with East and West Rockhill contain both new areas and areas that can be redeveloped in commercially zoned 
areas. 



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

9

In the ever-changing world of water regulations, the Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) 
regulations will the biggest impact to the Authority.  While the Authority is below the current Pennsylvania 
thresholds for these chemicals, the Authority may not be so lucky with future regulations.  With that in mind, the 
Authority applied for a grant in 2024 (and was awarded in early 2025), from PENNVEST, to offset costs for a 
treatment facility at one of the Authority well sites, Well #4.  In addition, the Authority is also looking to develop 
a new water source that is anticipated to supply a significant amount of water and be operational by 2027.

Contacting the Authority

We have prepared the MD&A in a manner we hope you find useful. Keep in mind, this entire report is a financial 
overview designed to give our customers and creditors a general understanding of how the Authority conducts 
business and accounts for the money it receives.  Should you have questions regarding these statements, please 
contact our office by phone at (215) 257-3654, by e-mailing us at info@perkasieauthority.org, by visiting our 
website at www.perkasieauthority.org or by writing Perkasie Regional Authority, 150 Ridge Rd. Sellersville, PA
18960.



Restated

2024 2023

ASSETS 

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 414,578          $ 353,843        

Accounts receivable 932,210 864,733

Grant receivable -                  1,240,580

Supply inventory 59,141            59,141          

Due from Pennridge Wastewater Treatment Authority 113,407          45,160          

Total current assets 1,519,336 2,563,457

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,853,305       8,768,002     

Assessments receivable 284,484 297,508

Lease receivable 78,322            162,254        

Capital Assets:

Non-Depreciable

Land 790,410 790,410

Construction in progress 1,174,781 6,835,476

Depreciable

Property, plant and equipment 63,807,356 57,091,888

Purchased wastewater treatment capacity 3,611,029 3,302,550

Accumulated depreciation (31,924,674) (30,475,278)

Net Capital Assets 37,458,902 37,545,046

Total noncurrent assets 47,675,013 46,772,810

Total assets 49,194,349 49,336,267

Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred amounts from refunding, net of amortization of

 $259,388 and $233,020, respectively 202,577 228,945

Deferred outflows - pension 214,915 440,581

Total deferred outflows 417,492 669,526

Total assets and deferred outflows $ 49,611,841 $ 50,005,793

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Statements of Net Position

December 31, 2024 and 2023

10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Restated

2024 2023

LIABILITIES & NET POSITION

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 93,395 $ 394,628

Lease liability, current -                  11,570          

Total current liabilities 93,395 406,198

Current liabilities (payable from restricted cash):

Water and sewer revenue bonds - current portion 1,255,000 1,205,000

Water and sewer revenue note - current portion 5,000              5,000            

Accrued interest 191,594 236,396

Total current liabilities (payable from restricted cash) 1,451,594 1,446,396

Total current liabilities 1,544,989 1,852,594

Long-term liabilities:

Escrow liabilities 45,012 145,935

Net pension liability 76,702 302,760        

Lease liability, net of current portion -                  12,079

Water and sewer revenue note, net of current portion 2,590,000 2,595,000

Water and sewer revenue bonds, net of current portion 8,904,536 10,291,470

Total long-term liabilities 11,616,250 13,347,244

Total liabilities 13,161,239 15,199,838

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred inflows - pension 4,703 98,603

Deferred inflows - lease receivable 78,322            162,254

Total deferred inflows 83,025 260,857

Net position:

Net investments in capital assets 24,704,366 23,424,927

Restricted for debt service 6,502,370 6,947,265

Restricted for capital projects 3,159,341 2,824,921     

Unrestricted 2,001,500 1,347,985     

Total net position 36,367,577 34,545,098

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position $ 49,611,841 $ 50,005,793

11

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Statements of Net Position, Continued

December 31, 2024 and 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Restated

2024 2023

Revenues:

Sewer service charges $ 2,412,170           $ 2,268,022          

Water sales 2,519,089           2,389,148          

Tapping fees and assessments 120,940              617,736             

Other revenue 251,462              207,460             

Total revenues 5,303,661           5,482,366          

Expenses:

Sewer service 859,608              877,251             

Water service 615,921              669,675             

Professional fees 152,939              123,725             

General and administrative 842,078              993,436             

Depreciation 1,449,396 1,351,993

Total expenses 3,919,942           4,016,080          

Operating income 1,383,719           1,466,286          

Non-operating income (expense):

Investment earnings 447,573              440,486             

Lease income 101,246              117,599             

Debt issue costs -                         (80,861)              

Interest expense (364,789)            (384,053)            

Net non-operating income (expense) 184,030              93,171               

Income before capital contributions 1,567,749           1,559,457          

Capital contributions - property dedications -                         605,570             

Capital contributions - grant 254,730              3,313,789

Increase in net position 1,822,479           5,478,816          

Net position at beginning of year 34,545,098         29,066,282        

Net position at end of year $ 36,367,577         $ 34,545,098        

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts from customers 4,968,495$     4,689,193$     

Other operating cash receipts 280,713          563,522          

Cash payments to employees for services (1,008,669)      (961,204)         

Cash payments to vendors for goods and services (1,625,796)      (1,628,349)      

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,614,743       2,663,162       

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Additions to capital assets (1,664,674)      (6,925,221)      

Grant proceeds 1,495,310       2,073,209       

Developer escrow activity, net (100,923)         113,845          

Proceeds from long-term debt -                      2,600,000       

Debt issue costs -                      (80,861)           

Principal payments on long term debt (1,210,000)      (1,160,000)      

Principal payments on finance leases (23,649)           (11,083)           

Interest paid (513,588)         (441,926)         

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (2,017,524)      (3,832,037)      

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment earnings 447,573          440,486          

Proceeds from rental income 101,246          117,598          

Net cash provided by investing activities 548,819          558,084          

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,146,038       (610,791)         

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 9,121,845       9,732,636       

Cash and cash equivalents - ending 10,267,883$   9,121,845$     

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash - unrestricted 414,578$        353,843$        

Cash - restricted 9,853,305       8,768,002       

10,267,883$   9,121,845$     

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income 1,383,719$     1,466,286$     

Adjustment for noncash charges to operations:

    Depreciation 1,449,396       1,351,993       

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (67,477)           (69,779)           

Assessments receivable 13,024            (159,872)         

Due from Pennridge Wastewater Treatment Authority (68,247)           (38,079)           

Net pension asset and liability and deferred inflows and outflows (94,292)           (58,485)           

Accounts payable and accrued payroll (1,380)             10,064            

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,614,743$     2,502,128$     

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing and Financing Transactions

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment included in accrued liabilities 17,791$          317,644$        

Property dedications during the year -$                605,570$        

13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

14

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS

The Perkasie Regional Authority ("Authority") is a body, politic and corporate, created under the Pennsylvania 
Municipality Authorities Act 53 Pa.C.S. §§ 5601-5622, as amended ("Act") pursuant to an ordinance enacted by 
the Council of the Borough of Perkasie, Bucks County, Pennsylvania ("Borough"), for the purpose of owning, 
operating, and maintaining water and sewer systems within the Borough and surrounding areas for which it is 
authorized to serve.  The certificate of incorporation of the Authority was issued by the Secretary of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on April 28, 1955. 

The governing body of the Authority is a Board consisting of five members appointed by Borough Council.  The 
terms of the members of the Board have been staggered so that the term of one member expires annually.  The 
Board is authorized to exercise any and all powers conferred by the aforementioned Act necessary for the 
acquisition, construction, improvement, extension, maintenance and operation of the system facilities.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government and organizations for which it is financially 
accountable.  In determining financial accountability, consideration is given to financial interdependency, 
selection of governing body, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations, and
accountability for fiscal matters.  Based on the foregoing criteria, the Authority is not a component unit of any 
primary government.  In addition, there are no component units to be included in the Authority’s financial 
statements.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

All activities of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund.  Proprietary funds 
are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes.

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are earned. Expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred 
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

15

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

TRUST INDENTURE AND RESTRICTED ASSETS

The Authority entered into a Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 1994 (the “Original Indenture”), as 
supplemented by ten Supplemental Trust Indentures, the most recent dated November 6, 2019, with U.S. Bank
National Association as Trustee in connection with the issuance of its Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 
of 2019.  The aforementioned Trust Indenture provides for the creation of the following funds:       

a) Revenue Fund for deposit of all revenues and receipts arising from the operation of the water and 
sewer system and any income derived from investments in any other Fund under the Indenture with the 
exception of the Construction Fund;

b) Bond Fund into which revenues are to be transferred from the Revenue Fund for payment of interest 
and principal on the bonds as they become due;

c) Construction Fund for the payment of costs of each project involving construction for which bonds are 
issued;  

d) Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund for funding (1) any deficiencies which may occur in the 
Bond or Bond Reserve Funds, (2) capital repairs, additions or contributions, and (3) bond redemptions.

The above-captioned funds are reported in the Statements of Net Position under the caption restricted cash and 
cash equivalents.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Authority considers money market funds, including money market funds held in the Trust funds, and all 
highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of ninety days or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.  

REVENUE AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Customers are billed for water and sewer in arrears based on actual water consumption. The Authority includes 
all customers in one of three cycles in which each cycle is billed on a staggered quarterly basis.  As a result, 
revenues earned for services provided, but not billed, encompassing the period from October 1 through December 
31, are accrued on a pro rata basis at the end of the calendar year. The Authority believes all accounts receivable 
are fully collectible.  Accordingly, no provision for bad debt has been established. The Authority’s policy is to 
either file a lien against the property or shut-off the water to the property for any uncollectible account which 
results in the collection of all accounts receivable.  

SUPPLY INVENTORY

The Authority maintains an inventory of supplies in use for emergencies which are valued at the lower of cost 
(first-in, first-out) or net realizable value.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

16

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment that have an estimated useful life in excess of one year are carried at historical 
cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.  
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized cost of 
constructed assets.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 
the respective assets which range from 5 to 40 years.  Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as 
incurred, major renewals or betterments, which extend the life or increase the value of assets, are capitalized.  
Construction in Progress represents costs incurred by the Authority for in-process activities designed to expand, 
replace, or extend useful lives of existing property and equipment. 

The Authority continually evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that may warrant revision 
of the estimated useful life of its long-lived assets or whether the remaining balance of its long-lived assets should 
be evaluated for possible impairment.  If and when such factors, events or circumstances indicate that long-lived 
assets should be evaluated for possible impairment, the Authority will determine the fair value of the asset by 
making an estimate of expected future cash flows over the remaining lives of the respective assets and compare 
that fair value with the carrying value of the assets in measuring their recoverability.  There were no impairment 
losses recognized during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

DEFERRED INFLOWS/OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources are defined as a consumption of net assets by the Authority that is applicable to a 
future reporting period.  Deferred inflows of resources are defined as an acquisition of net assets by the Authority 
that is applicable to a future reporting period.  Deferred outflows of resources increase net position, similar to 
assets, and deferred inflows of resources decrease net position, similar to liabilities. The deferred outflows of 
resources in the Authority’s financial statements include a deferred amount arising from the refunding of the 
2011 and 2011A bond issues.  The deferred refunding amount is being amortized over the life of the refunding 
bonds as part of interest expense. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority recorded 
amortization of $28,600, which was reported as interest expense in the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position. Additionally, the Authority's reports deferred outflows of resources for contributions to 
its pension plan after the measurement date.  The Authority's reports deferred inflows of resources related to its 
pension plan and related to its lease receivable (See Note 8). 

PENSION PLAN

GASB No. 68 requires the Authority to recognize a net pension liability for the difference between the present value 
of projected benefits for past services, known as the Total Pension Liability (TPL), and the restricted resources held 
in trust for the payment of pension benefits. For purposes of measuring the net position liability, deferred outflows 
or resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense, information about the net pension liability and 
additions to and deductions from the net pension liability have been determined on the same basis as reported by 
Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (“PMRS”).  See Note 10 for further information regarding the pension 
plan.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

17

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the Authority’s 
principal ongoing operations which is the sale of water and treatment of wastewater for its customers.  Operating 
expenses include the cost of services, professional and administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital 
assets.  All other revenues and expenses not meeting the aforementioned criteria are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses and are included under capital and related financing and investing activities in the 
Statement of Cash Flows.

NET POSITION

Net position represent the difference between the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and 
deferred inflows.  Net Investments in Capital Assets represent capital assets, reduced by accumulated depreciation 
and by any outstanding debt related to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.  Restricted 
for Debt Service is comprised of certain funds restricted under the Trust Indenture for payment of debt service 
on bonds.  Restricted for Capital Projects represents funds restricted for future capital projects in accordance with 
the Trust Indenture. Unrestricted Net Position consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” 
or “net investments in capital assets”.

NOTE 3 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Authority identified an error with respect to reporting its pension 
liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources which resulted in increasing pension expense for 
the year ended December 31, 2023 by $161,000, removing the Authority’s net pension asset, reporting a net 
pension liability and adjusting deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to its pension plan as of 
December 31, 2023.  As a result the financial statements were restated for the year ended December 31, 2023 to 
correct this error. Adjustments to the respective line items of the financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 are as follows: 

Statement of Net Position:

Description
Originally 
reported Adjustment Restated

Net pension asset 342,789 (342,789) -
Total noncurrent assets 47,115,599 (342,789) 46,772,810
Deferred outflows of resources – pension 392,592 47,989 440,581
Total deferred outflows 621,537 47,989 669,526
Total assets and deferred outflows 50,300,593 (294,800) 50,005,793

Net pension liability - 302,760 302,760
Total long-term liabilities 13,044,484 302,760 13,347,244
Total liabilities 14,897,078 302,760 15,199,838
Deferred inflows – pension 535,129 (436,526) 98,603
Total deferred inflows 697,383 (436,526) 260,857
Unrestricted net position 1,509,019 (161,034) 1,347,985
Total net position 34,706,132 (161,034) 34,545,098
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 50,300,593 (294,800) 50,005,793



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

18

NOTE 3 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (CONTINUED)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:

Description
Originally 
reported Adjustment Restated

General and administrative expenses 832,402 161,034 993,436
Total expenses 3,855,046 161,034 4,016,080
Operating income 1,627,320 161,034 1,466,286
Increase in net position 5,639,850 161,034 5,478,816

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

DEPOSITS

The Authority maintains its cash balances at one financial institution.  The cash balances are insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000 per depositor, per institution.  State law requires 
that all public deposits in financial institutions in excess of federal insurance limits be fully collateralized by 
obligations of the United States, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth. Pennsylvania Act 72 of 1971, as amended, permits banking institutions to satisfy this 
collateralization requirement by pooling securities pledged as collateral for public funds on deposit.  At December 
31, 2024 and 2023, cash balances maintained at the financial institution were fully covered by the FDIC.  
Restricted cash is held by the trustee in money market accounts which are not covered by the FDIC or 
Pennsylvania Act 72.  Amounts maintained in money market accounts totaled $9,557,630 and $8,371,640 at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and were not insured.  The Authority has not experienced any losses 
in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash or cash equivalents.

INVESTMENTS

State statutes and the Trust Indenture authorize the Authority to invest in (1) obligations of the United States or 
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; (2) obligations of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or its political subdivisions; (3) accounts insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Union Share 
Insurance Fund; (4) shares of an investment company whose shares are registered under the Securities Act of 
1933 which invests only in obligations described in (1) through (3) above; and (5) obligations of certain 
nonguaranteed federal agencies.

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK

Deposit custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be 
returned.  Investment custodial credit is the risk that the counterparty to an investment transaction will fail and 
the Authority will not recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party.  The Authority does not have a formal investment policy that addresses interest rate, credit, and 
custodial credit risk.  All investment accounts are maintained by one institution.   



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

19

NOTE 5 - ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE

The Authority currently pays one-third of the project cost of extending water and sewer systems to furnish service 
to customers and assesses the remaining balance to the property owners. The assessments are payable over five 
years, with a 20% down payment in year one, and 20% due in each of the next four years plus an interest rate of 
5% per annum on the outstanding balance.  Some of the residents who owe the Authority for water and sewer 
assessments have financial hardships and cannot pay in accordance with the Authority’s terms.  In those instances, 
the Authority secures its interest by filing a lien on the property.  Amounts due from property owners for water 
and sewer assessments totaled $284,484 and $297,508 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  As of 
December 31, 2024, $71,323 of the remaining balance is expected to be paid when the related property is sold.

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

                                                                                 
Property, plant, and equipment at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and related accumulated depreciation and
depreciation expense for the years then ended follow:

2024
Beginning Increases Decreases Ending

Non-Depreciable
Land $     790,410 $                - $                - $     790,410

Construction in Progress 6,835,476 402,069 (6,062,764) 1,174,781
Subtotal 7,625,886 402,069      (6,062,764) 1,965,191

Depreciable
Building    6,312,821                   -                      -    6,312,821     

Water System 32,439,518 6,708,868 - 39,148,386
Sewer System 17,647,970 - - 17,647,970

Furniture and Equipment 352,907 6,600 - 359,507
Leased automobile 57,515 - - 57,515

Vehicles 281,157 - - 281,157
Purchased Wastewater Treatment Capacity 3,302,550 308,479 - 3,611,029

Subtotal 60,394,438 7,023,947      - 67,418,385

Total $ 68,020,324 $ 7,426,016 $ (6,062,764) $ 69,383,576

Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning Increases Decreases Ending

Building $     1,588,323 $    161,068  $             - $     1,749,391
Water System 15,659,047 804,172 - 16,463,219
Sewer System 11,047,008 365,080 - 11,412,088

Furniture and Equipment 310,630 5,213 - 315,843
Leased automobile 28,758 11,503 - 40,261

Vehicles 271,347 9,810 - 281,157
Purchased Wastewater Treatment Capacity 1,570,165 92,550 - 1,662,715

Total $ 30,475,278 $ 1,449,396 $            - $ 31,924,674

Net $ 37,545,046 $ 37,458,902



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

20

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

2023
Beginning Increases Decreases Ending

Non-Depreciable
Land $   790,410  $                - $                - $     790,410

Construction in Progress 901,337 5,988,950 (54,811) 6,835,476
Subtotal 1,691,747 5,988,950      (54,811) 7,625,886

Depreciable
Building    6,312,821                   -                      -    6,312,821     

Water System 31,502,211 937,307 - 32,439,518
Sewer System 16,795,185 852,785 - 17,647,970

Furniture and Equipment 352,907 - - 352,907
Leased automobile 57,515 - - 57,515

Vehicles 281,157 - - 281,157
Purchased Wastewater Treatment Capacity 3,227,734 74,816 - 3,302,550

Subtotal 58,529,530 1,864,908      - 60,394,438

Total $ 60,221,277 $ 7,853,858 $ (54,811) $ 68,020,324

NOTE 7 - SEWAGE TREATMENT SERVICES

The Authority joined with several other municipalities in 1973 to form the Pennridge Wastewater Treatment 
Authority (“PWTA”).  PWTA provides sewage treatment services to all or portions of the member municipalities 
and the area served by the Authority.  PWTA’s normal operating costs are assessed among the participants based 
upon their proportionate share of equivalent dwelling units.  PWTA’s charges to the Authority for treatment 
operating costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $775,376 and $755,035 for the years ended December 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively.  Amounts due from PWTA for advances in excess of actual expenses totaled 
$113,407 and $45,160 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Capital construction and plant upgrade costs are assessed based upon the percentages of plant capacity attributed 
to each member.  The Authority’s payments to PWTA for capital construction and plant upgrades, as summarized 
in Note 5, are capitalized as purchased wastewater treatment capacity and depreciated over a period of 40 years.

Accumulated Depreciation Beginning Increases Decreases Ending
Building $   1,428,036 $    160,287  $             - $     1,588,323

Water System 14,924,933 734,114 - 15,659,047
Sewer System 10,709,347 337,661 - 11,047,008

Furniture and Equipment 303,378 7,252 - 310,630
Leased auto 17,255 11,503 - 28,758

Vehicles 251,728 19,619 - 271,347
Purchased Wastewater Treatment Capacity 1,488,608 81,557 - 1,570,165

Total $ 29,123,285 $ 1,351,993 $            - $ 30,475,278

Net $ 31,097,992 $ 37,545,046



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

21

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

On November 6, 2019, the Authority issued Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2019, in the amount of 
$12,755,000 with an average interest rate of 3.69% to advance refund $8,460,000 of outstanding Water and Sewer 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 and to payoff the outstanding balance of $7,514,000 on a term loan.  Principal 
payments on bond issues are made annually on February 1st.  Interest is paid semiannually on February 1st and 
August 1st of each year. The bonds are secured by all revenues of the Authority.

As part of the issuance, the Authority received a bond premium of $1,616,195 which is being amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the bond issue and recorded to interest expense.  The straight-line method is 
not materially difference from the effective interest method.

The Amended and Restated Trust Indenture related to the bond issue contains a default provision that requires 
the Authority to meet a certain rate covenant.  See Note 10 for the explanation and calculation of the rate covenant.

On April 4, 2023, the Authority entered into a ten-year Water and Sewer Revenue Note, Series of 2023, in the 
amount of $2,600,000 with a fixed interest rate of 3.5%.  Principal payments on the Note are made annually on 
February 1st.  Interest is paid semiannually on February 1st and August 1st of each year. The note is secured by 
all revenues of the Authority.

A summary of long term debt activity for the year ended December 31, 2024 and amounts due at December 31, 
2024 follow: 

December 31, 
2023 Additions

  
Reductions

December 
31, 2024

Amounts Due 
Within One 

Year
Bonds, Series 2019 $ 10,430,000   $               - $ (1,205,000)      $  9,225,000 $  1,255,000
Note, Series 2023 2,600,000 - (5,000) 2,595,000 5,000

Bond Premium 1,066,470 - (131,934) 934,536 -

Grand Total $ 14,096,470 $               - $   (1,341,934) $ 12,754,536 $  1,260,000    

Interest expense on long term debt amounted to $470,355 and $485,155 for the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively.  Amortization of the bond premium amounted to $131,934 for each of the years ended  
December 31, 2024 and 2023, which was reported as interest expense in the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

22

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Scheduled future principal and interest maturities with respect to long-term debt at December 31, 2024, follow:

Year Bond 
Principal Notes Payable

Total Long-
Term Debt Interest

Total Debt 
Service 

Requirement
2025 $    1,255,000 $            5,000 $  1,260,000 $   434,638 $   1,694,638
2026 1,310,000 5,000 1,315,000 383,163 1,698,163
2027 1,360,000 5,000 1,365,000 329,588 1,694,588
2028 1,415,000 5,000 1,420,000 273,913 1,693,913
2029 1,475,000 5,000 1,480,000 215,938 1,695,938
2030-2033 2,410,000 2,570,000 4,980,000 294,755 5,274,755
Total $  9,225,000 $     2,595,000 $ 11,820,000 $ 1,931,995 $  13,751,995

                                                                                     
NOTE 9 – LEASES

LESSEE

A summary of the changes in the lease liability during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

Beginning Increases Decreases Ending
2024

Auto $      23,649 $                - $      (23,649) $      -

Beginning Increases Decreases Ending
2023

Auto $      34,732 $                - $      (11,083) $      23,649

The weighted average lease term and discount rate as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

2024 2023
Weighted average remaining lease term 0 yrs 2.5 yrs
Weighted average discount rate 0% 3.50%

LESSOR

The Authority has entered into a sublease of its office space as well a lease of its tank site for cell service, as a 
lessor.  The leases have various terms expiring between May 31, 2025 and December 3, 2027.  The lessees are 
required to make monthly fixed payments ranging from $2,274 to $5,435 with minimal escalation clauses and 
options to extend the lease term.  The lease receivable was discounted using the Authority’s effective borrowing 
rate of 3.5%. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority recognized lease revenue of 
$101,246 and $117,599, respectively.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

23

NOTE 9 – LEASES (CONTINUED)

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the lease receivable and deferred inflows amounted to $78,322 and $162,254, 
respectively.  

A summary of the future expected lease rental payments and interest for the next four years follows:

Year Ending December 31 Future Rents
2025 $    55,724
2026 27,283
2027 25,009

Subtotal 108,016
Interest (29,694)

Net Lease Receivable $   78,322

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Authority offers a defined benefit to its employees by participating in PMRS, an agent multiple-employer 
public employees' retirement system administered by the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement Board.  PMRS acts 
as a common investment and administrative agent for participating municipal pension plans.  The agent maintains
each municipality’s accounts separately with that municipality’s contributions and related employees’ 
contributions.  

The assets may only be used for payment of benefits to members of the plan.  PMRS issues a separate publicly 
available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be obtained by contacting the PMRS accounting 
office at 1010 N 7th Street, Suite 301, Harrisburg, PA 17102-1400.  The plan's coverage and benefit provisions 
are summarized below:

CONTRIBUTIONS

An Actuarially Determined Contribution is a contribution amount determined in accordance with Actuarial 
Standards of Practice.  The Actuarially Determined Contribution provided is based upon the plan’s minimum 
municipal obligation (MMO) as defined in Pennsylvania Act 205 of 1984 (“Act 205”).  The MMO is based upon 
the plan’s biennial actuarial valuation.  Any funding requirements established by the MMO in excess of required 
employee contributions must be paid by the municipality in accordance with Act 205. 

The MMO for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to $115,625 and $116,781, respectively.
Authority employees are required to contribute 3% of compensation. Any member who terminates service prior 
to eligibility for vesting or retirement benefits shall receive all amounts contributed in a lump-sum amount, plus 
interest which is credited at an annual rate of 6.0%.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

24

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

BENEFITS

All full time employees are covered under the retirement plan. The plan does not require employee contributions. 
Employees are 100 % vested in their contributions after five years of service. Normal retirement age is 60 years 
old and five years of service. The Retirement benefit is equal to 2% of final salary multiplied by total years of 
credited service, not to exceed 40% of final salary.  Final salary is the average annual compensation paid during 
the member’s highest five consecutive years of employment, not to exceed 75% of the participant’s final salary. 
Members who separate from employment upon attainment of age 55 and with 15 years of credited service are 
entitled to a reduced benefit.

PLAN MEMBERS COVERED BY BENEFIT TERMS

The agent maintains each municipality’s accounts separately with that municipality’s contributions and related 
employees’ contributions.  The assets may only be used for payment of benefits to members of the plan. As of 
January 1, 2023 (the last actuarial valuation date), the number of active participants, deferred vested participants, 
and participants currently receiving a benefit from the plan is summarized below:

For the year ending December 31, 2024 2023
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 11 10
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 3 3
Active employees 8 8
Total participant count 22 21

The net pension liability (asset) at December 31, 2024 and 2023 was measured as of December 31, 2023 and the 
total pension liability (asset) used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of January 1, 2023.  The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating component units, actuarially determined.  

EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN

The PMRS System’s long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-
estimates of expected future real rates of return are developed for each major asset class, for the portfolio as a whole 
and at different levels of probability or confidence.  There are four steps to the method:

1) Expected future real rates of return are based primarily on the 20 year historic nominal rates of return as 
reflected by applicable return indexes and may be adjusted for specific asset classes if, in the Board’s opinion, 
any such asset classes are expected in the future to significantly vary from its 20 year historical returns. These 
nominal rates of return further assume that investment expenses will be offset by the additional return 
performance derived from active investment management.

2) The nominal rates of return by asset class are adjusted by a constant rate of expected future annual inflation 
rate of 2.8% to produce real rates of return.

3) The real rates of return are further adjusted by weighting each asset class using the PMRS portfolio target 
asset allocations. The results from steps 1 through 3 are shown in the chart below labeled “System Nominal 
and Real Rates of Return by Asset Class.”



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

25

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN (CONTINUED)

4) These weighted real rates of return are then subjected to a probability simulation to understand the 
likelihood of success in achieving various portfolio return levels. Based on the most recent asset allocation 
study conducted by Dahab Associates, the minimum acceptable confidence level for the Board has been 
determined to be 70%. The chart below identifies simulated portfolio returns at various confidence levels.

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for 
each asset class are summarized in the following table:

2024

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Nominal 
Rate of 
Return

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Domestic Equities (large capitalized firms) 24.5% 7.4% 4.9%
Domestic Equities (small capitalized firms) 8% 8.3% 5.8%
International Equities (internationally developed markets) 14.5% 7.7% 5.2%
International Equities (emerging markets) 3% 8.4% 5.9%
Global Equities 5% 6.6% 4.1%
Real Estate 10% 6.4% 3.9%
Timber 5% 5.8% 3.3%
Fixed Income (Core Investment Grade) 24% 5.0% 2.5%
Fixed Income (Opportunistic Credit) 5% 7.0% 4.5%
Cash 1% 3.4% 0.9%
Total Portfolio 100% 7.3% 4.8%

2023

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Nominal 
Rate of 
Return

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Domestic Equities (large capitalized firms) 24.5% 7.5% 5.0%
Domestic Equities (small capitalized firms) 8% 8.2% 5.7%
International Equities (internationally developed markets) 14.5% 7.6% 5.1%
International Equities (emerging markets) 3% 8.0% 5.5%
Global Equities 5% 7.0% 4.5%
Real Estate 10% 7.4% 4.9%
Timber 5% 6.5% 4.0%
Fixed Income (Core Investment Grade) 24% 4.6% 2.1%
Fixed Income (Opportunistic Credit) 5% 8.0% 5.5%
Cash 1% 2.2% -.3%
Total Portfolio 100% 7.4% 4.9%



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

26

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority’s total pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation, using the following actuarial assumptions applied to the period included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age
Amortization Period: Level dollar based upon the amortization periods in Act 205
Asset Valuation Method: Based upon municipal reserves
Discount Rate: 5.25%
Inflation Rate: 2.2%
Salary Increases: Age related scale with merit and inflation component
COLA Increases: 2.2% for those eligible for a COLA
Pre-Retirement 
Mortality:

Males – PUB-2010 General Employees male table
Females – PUB-2010 General Employees female table

Post-Retirement 
Mortality:

Males – RP-2006 annuitant male table
Females – RP-2006 annuitant female table

DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.25%.  The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumes that the employees will continue to contribute at the current rates and the 
employers will continue the historical and legally required practice of contributing to the Plan based on an Actuarially 
Determined Contribution, reflecting a payment equal to annual normal cost, the expected administrative expenses, 
and an amount necessary to amortize the remaining Unfunded Actuarial Liability as a level dollar amount over a 
closed period.  

SENSITIVITY TO CHANGES IN DISCOUNT RATE

The following presents the net pension (asset) / liability of the Authority, calculated using the discount rate of 5.25%, 
as well as what the Authority’s net pension (asset) / liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that 
is 1-percentage-point lower (4.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.25%) than the current rate:  

2024 1% Decrease 
(4.25%)

Discount Rate 
(5.25%)

1% Increase 
(6.25%)

Net pension liability / (asset) $ 531,559 $ 76,702 $ (306,912)

2023 1% Decrease 
(4.25%)

Discount Rate 
(5.25%)

1% Increase 
(6.25%)

Net pension liability / (asset) $ 145,666 $ (342,789) $ (754,476)



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

27

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

CHANGES IN NET PENSION ASSET

Changes in the net pension (asset) liability for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Total Pension
Liability

(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension

(b)

Net Pension
Liability (Asset)

(a) – (b)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $3,998,931 $3,696,171 $302,760
Changes for the year:
Service cost      124,487 - 124,487
Interest 199,352 - 199,352
Employer contributions - 116,341 (116,341)
Employee contributions - 65,392 (65,392)
Contributions – PMRS assessment - 460 (460)
Net investment income - 378,845 (378,845)
Benefit payments (613,536) (613,536) -
Administrative expense - (11,141) 11,141
Net change (289,697) (63,639) (226,058)

Balance at December 31, 2024 $3,709,234 $3,632,532 $76,702

Total Pension
Liability

(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension

(b)

Net Pension
Liability (Asset)

(a) – (b)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $3,823,315 $4,166,104 $(342,789)
Changes for the year:
Service cost      123,798 - 123,798
Interest 202,320 - 202,320
Differences between expected and actual 
experience

(7,837) - (7,837)

Employer contributions - 100,697 (100,697)
Employee contributions - 64,555 (64,555)
Contributions – PMRS assessment - 440 (440)
Net investment income - (482,788) 482,788
Benefit payments (142,665) (142,665) -
Administrative expense - (10,172) 10,172
Net change 175,616 (469,933) 645,549

Balance at December 31, 2023 $3,998,931 $3,696,171 $302,760



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

28

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSION

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to its 
pension plan from the following sources:

December 31, 2024
Deferred Inflows 

of Resources
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 4,703 $ 32,745
Change in assumptions - 16,177
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments - 50,368

  4,703 99,290
Contributions subsequent to measurement date - 115,625
Total $  4,703 $ 214,915

December 31, 2023
Deferred Inflows 

of Resources
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $   184,666 $ 112,501
Change in assumptions - 62,193
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 350,463 -

  535,129 174,694
Contributions subsequent to measurement date - 217,898

Total $  535,129 $ 392,592

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSION

Deferred inflows and outflows are amortizable over a five-year period, beginning in the year in which the 
differences occurred and will be recognized annually in pension expense as follows:

Year ending December 31
2024       $      9,895
2025       28,119
2026 94,201
2027 (37,628)
Total $ 94,587



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

29

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority’s pension expense consisted of the following:

2024 2023
Change in pension liability $              (226,058) $             645,549
Change in deferred outflows 224,490 (224,019)
Change in deferred inflows (93,900) (303,297)
Employer contributions 116,821 101,117
Pension expense $     21,353 $     219,350

NOTE 11 - RATE COVENANT COMPLIANCE

Section 6.02 of the Original and Amended and Restated Trust Indenture requires the Authority to establish water 
and sewer rates and other charges which, together with any investment income earned on Funds under the Trust 
Indenture will be sufficient to pay (1) the administrative expenses of the Authority, (2) the expenses of operating, 
maintaining and repairing the Water and Sewer System, and (3) 110% of the average annual debt service 
requirements on Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds (but in no event less than the actual debt service requirements 
of the current fiscal year).  

A calculation of the Authority’s compliance with the requirement for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 
2023 are as follows:

Description 2024 2023
Total pledged revenues $  6,107,210 $  9,354,240
Total operating expense (net of depreciation) 2,470,546 2,664,087
Amount available for debt service 3,636,664 6,690,153
Average annual debt service @110% 1,865,156 1,675,856
Pass    $  1,771,508 $  5,014,297

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMMITMENTS

LITIGATION

In the normal course of its activities, the Authority is a party to various legal actions and subject to certain asserted 
and unasserted claims and assessments.  The Authority is of the opinion that the outcome of any pending actions 
will not have a material effect on the Authority’s financial position or results of operations.  

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is subject to various risks of losses arising from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters for which the Authority purchases commercial 
insurance.  No settlements have exceeded coverage during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.



PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

30

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In March 2025, the Authority obtained a $3.8M Pennvest Grant and Loan for treatment related to Well #4. Of 
the $3, 841,000 received, $3,173,000 million is a grant from Pennvest in which the proceeds do not have to be 
repaid and the remaining $668,000 requires 240 monthly payments of approximately $3,300 consisting of 
principal and interest of 1.74%.  The Authority can make interest only payments up to thirty-months.  The loan 
is secured by the water and sewer revenue of the Authority.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 30, 2025, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. Other than the grant and loan mentioned above, there were no other subsequent events 
requiring recognition or disclosure in these financial statements as a result of this evaluation.



2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Total Pension Liability - Authority's Portion

Service cost 124,487$     123,798$     127,584$     127,412$     99,302$       92,941$       89,435$       83,496$       95,533$      106,864$     

Interest 199,352       202,320       192,873       171,414       163,318       184,607       178,155       171,007       164,836      165,220       

Differences between expected and actual experience - (7,837) - 163,725 - (553,998) - 99,868 (4,901)        (168,060)     

Changes of assumptions - - - 80,893         - - - 95,600         3,889          -

Benefit payments (613,536)     (142,665)     (140,164)     (125,920)     (123,610)     (135,749)     (155,161)     (185,664)     (98,088)      (91,780)       

Net change in total pension liability - Authority's portion (289,697)     175,616       180,293       417,524       139,010       (412,199)     112,429       264,307       161,269      12,244         

Total pension liability - beginning 3,998,931    3,823,315    3,643,022    3,225,498    3,086,488    3,498,687    3,386,258    3,121,951    2,960,682   2,948,438    

Total pension liability - ending - Authority's portion 3,709,234$  3,998,931$  3,823,315$  3,643,022$  3,225,498$  3,086,488$  3,498,687$  3,386,258$  3,121,951$ 2,960,682$  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Authority's portion

Contributions - employer 116,341$     100,697$     98,399$       95,527$       99,132$       86,277$       86,207$       85,336$       82,722$      44,964$       

Contributions - PMRS assessment 460              440              420              400              420              440              440              440              460             -

Contributions - employee 65,392         64,555         72,446         65,916         44,410         34,542         29,744         27,655         31,878        32,854         

PMRS investment income 190,705       184,194       173,264       160,917       174,719       163,819       154,667       135,686       147,816      139,919       

Market value investment income 188,140       (666,982)     330,410       335,734       (124,439)     (327,654)     340,759       81,114         (154,434)    18,558         

Benefits payments (613,536)     (142,665)     (140,164)     (125,920)     (123,610)     (135,749)     (155,161)     (185,664)     (98,088)      (91,780)       

PMRS administrative expense (460) (440) (420) (400) (420) (440) (440) (440) (460) (480)

Additional administrative expense (10,681)       (9,732) (9,813)         (7,011) (6,039)         (7,311) (7,113)         (6,647) (6,162)        (5,366)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (63,639)       (469,933)     524,542       525,163       64,173         (186,076)     449,103       137,480       3,732          138,669       

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 3,696,171    4,166,104    3,641,562    3,116,399    3,052,226    3,238,302    2,789,199    2,651,719    2,647,987   2,509,318    

Plan fiduciary net position - ending - Authority's Portion 3,632,532$  3,696,171$  4,166,104$  3,641,562$  3,116,399$  3,052,226$  3,238,302$  2,789,199$  2,651,719$ 2,647,987$  

Net pension liability (asset) - ending - Authority's Portion 76,702$       302,760$     (342,789)$   1,460$         109,099$     34,262$       260,385$     597,059$     470,232$    312,695$     

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 97.9% 92.4% 109.0% 100.0% 96.6% 98.9% 92.6% 82.4% 84.9% 89.4%

Covered employee payroll 640,388 639,258 594,972 599,762 561,760 604,614 617,991 617,133 673,946 757,952

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 12.0% 47.4% -57.6% 0.2% 19.4% 5.7% 42.1% 96.7% 69.8% 41.3%

30

December 31, 2024

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios (Unaudited)

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY



2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 116,781$     101,117$     98,819$       95,927$       99,532$       86,717$       86,667$       85,796$       83,182$       44,197$       

Contributions in relation to the 

Actuarially determined contribution 116,781       101,137       98,819         95,927         99,552         86,717         86,667         85,796         83,182         44,964         

Contribution excess -$             (20)$            -$             -$             (20)$             -$             -$             -$             -$             (767)$           

Covered payroll 640,388$     639,258$     594,972$     599,762$     561,760$     604,614$     617,991$     617,133$     673,946$     757,952$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 18.24% 15.82% 16.61% 15.99% 17.72% 14.34% 14.02% 13.90% 12.34% 5.93%

31

December 31, 2024

Schedule of Employer Contributions (Unaudited)

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY



(1) Significant methods and assumptions used in calculating the actuarially determined contributions

The methods and assumptions used in calculating the actuarilly determined contributions are as follows:

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Valuation date December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age

Amortization method

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Level dollar based on 
the amortization 

periods in Act 205

Asset valuation method

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Based on the 

municipal reserves

Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%

Inflation 2.20% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Salary increases

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

Age-related scale with 

merit and inflation 
component

COLA increases

2.2% for those eligible 
for a COLA

2.8% for those eligible 
for a COLA

2.8% for those eligible 
for a COLA

2.8% for those eligible 
for a COLA

2.8% for those eligible 
for a COLA

3.0% for those eligible 
for a COLA

3.0% for those eligible 
for a COLA

3.0% for those eligible 
for a COLA

3.0% for those eligible 
for a COLA

3.0% for those eligible 
for a COLA

Pre-retirement mortality

Males: PUB-2010 
General Employees 

male table

Males: RP 2000 non-
annuitant male table 
projected 15 years 

with scale AA

Males: RP 2000 non-
annuitant male table 
projected 15 years 

with scale AA

Males: RP 2000 non-
annuitant male table 
projected 15 years 

with scale AA

Males: RP 2000 non-
annuitant male table 
projected 15 years 

with scale AA
Males: RP 2000 with 

one year set back
Males: RP 2000 with 

one year set back
Males: RP 2000 with 

one year set back
Males: RP 2000 with 

one year set back
Males: RP 2000 with 

one year set back

Females: PUB-2010 
General Employees 

female table

Females: RP 2000 non-

annuitant female table 
projected 15 years 

with scale AA, setback 
five years

Females: RP 2000 non-

annuitant female table 
projected 15 years 

with scale AA, setback 
five years

Females: RP 2000 non-

annuitant female table 
projected 15 years 

with scale AA, setback 
five years

Females: RP 2000 non-

annuitant female table 
projected 15 years 

with scale AA, setback 
five years

Females: RP 2000 
with five year set back

Females: RP 2000 
with five year set back

Females: RP 2000 
with five year set back

Females: RP 2000 
with five year set back

Females: RP 2000 
with five year set back

Post-retirement mortality

Males: RP 2006 non-

annuitant male table

Males: RP 2000 non-

annuitant male table 

projected 5 years with 
scale AA

Males: RP 2000 non-

annuitant male table 
projected 5 years with 

scale AA

Males: RP 2000 non-
annuitant male table 

projected 5 years with 

scale AA

Males: RP 2000 non-
annuitant male table 

projected 5 years with 

scale AA

Males: RP 2000 

combined healthy 

mortality

Males: RP 2000 

combined healthy 

mortality

Males: RP 2000 

combined healthy 

mortality

Males: RP 2000 

combined healthy 

mortality

Males: RP 2000 

combined healthy 

mortality

Females: RP 2006 non-
annuitant female table

Females: RP 2000 non-

annuitant female table 

projected 10 years 
with scale AA

Females: RP 2000 non-

annuitant female table 

projected 10 years 
with scale AA

Females: RP 2000 non-

annuitant female table 

projected 10 years 
with scale AA

Females: RP 2000 non-

annuitant female table 

projected 10 years 
with scale AA

Females: RP 2000 

combined healthy 
mortality

Females: RP 2000 

combined healthy 
mortality

Females: RP 2000 

combined healthy 
mortality

Females: RP 2000 

combined healthy 
mortality

Females: RP 2000 

combined healthy 
mortality

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

December 31, 2024

32



Variance

2024 % 2023 %

Increase 

(Decrease)

SEWER SERVICE

Salaries $ 60,601          1.1 $ 76,021        1.4 $ (15,420)             

Payroll Taxes 4,850            0.1 6,104          0.1 (1,254)               

Materials and Supplies 2,148            0.0 3,218          0.1 (1,070)               

Electric 380              0.0 385             0.0 (5)                      

Maintenance and Repairs 2,629            0.0 16,173        0.3 (13,544)             

Vehicle 11,179          0.2 19,143        0.3 (7,964)               

Uniforms 2,445            0.0 1,172          0.0 1,273                

Treatment Fees - Operating 775,376        14.6 755,035      13.8 20,341              

Total Sewer Service 859,608        16.0 877,251      16.0 (17,643)             

WATER SERVICE

Salaries 279,540        5.3 275,061      5.0 4,479                

Payroll Taxes 22,373          0.4 22,086        0.4 287                   

Materials and Supplies 12,665          0.2 46,747        0.9 (34,082)             

Electric 113,560        2.1 92,548        1.7 21,012              

Maintenance and Repairs 115,451        2.2 167,340      3.1 (51,889)             

Vehicle 16,990          0.3 18,755        0.3 (1,765)               

Uniforms 1,596            0.0 2,290          0.0 (694)                  

Testing 53,746          1.0 44,848        0.8 8,898                

Meters -               0.0 -             0.0 -                    

Total Water Service 615,921        11.5 669,675      12.2 (53,754)             

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Consulting Engineer 36,660          0.7 47,257 0.9 (10,597)             

Accounting and Audit 61,800          1.2 40,685 0.7 21,115              

Legal 12,524 0.2 10,783 0.2 1,741                

Hydrogeologist 41,955          0.8 25,000 0.5 16,955              

Total Professional Fees 152,939        2.9 123,725      2.3 29,214              

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Office Payroll 325,366        6.1 266,413 4.9 58,953              

Employee Insurance 172,552        3.3 175,540 3.2 (2,988)               

Payroll Taxes 27,742          0.5 23,178 0.4 4,564                

Pension 21,353          0.4 219,350 4.0 (197,997)           

Office Equipment 39,920          0.8 63,036 1.1 (23,116)             

General Business Insurance 62,985 1.2 61,363 1.1 1,622                

Communications 22,139          0.4 16,419 0.3 5,720                

Postage 15,879          0.3 8,029 0.1 7,850                

Education 5,010            0.1 4,006 0.1 1,004                

Utilities 20,362          0.4 14,291 0.3 6,071                

Maintenance and Repairs - Office 32,498          0.6 47,308 0.9 (14,810)             

Office Supplies 3,239            0.1 2,091 0.0 1,148                

Newsletter 737              0.0 -             0.0 737                   

Trustee Fees 9,465            0.2 3,233          0.1 6,232                

Dues and Subscriptions 51,846          1.0 50,661 0.9 1,185                

Miscellaneous 27,933          0.5 35,751 0.7 (7,818)               

Vehicles 2,057            0.0 2,287 0.0 (230)                  

Billing 995              0.0 480 0.0 515                   

Total General and Administrative Expenses 842,078        15.9 993,436      18.1 (151,358)

Total Operating Expenses $ 2,470,546     46.3 $ 2,664,087   48.6 $ (193,541)

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Operating Expenses

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

33



Actual Budget Variance
OPERATING REVENUES

Sewer Service Charges:
Single Family $ 1,797,080 $ 1,772,900 $ 24,180
Multi-Family 302,066 336,300 (34,234)
Commercial 134,910 183,100 (48,190)
Industrial 26,311 36,300 (9,989)
School 54,392 67,800 (13,408)
Church 8,930 7,100 1,830
Public 22,660 31,200 (8,540)
Mixed 25,326 28,900 (3,574)
Miscellaneous 40,495 45,800 (5,305)

Total Sewer Service Charges 2,412,170 2,509,400 (97,230)

Water Sales:
Single Family 1,902,259 1,861,200 41,059
Multi-Family 261,836 265,000 (3,164)
Commercial 159,967 157,000 2,967
Industrial 29,714 25,000 4,714
School 65,167 72,400 (7,233)
Church 12,610 12,800 (190)
Public 18,263 27,500 (9,237)
Mixed 25,322 29,000 (3,678)
Miscellaneous 43,951 46,900 (2,949)

Total Water Sales 2,519,089 2,496,800 22,289

Other Revenue:

Fire Charges 104,713 89,900 14,813

Other 146,749 36,210 110,539

Total Other Revenue 251,462 126,110 125,352

Total Operating Revenues $ 5,182,721 $ 5,132,310 $ 50,411

OPERATING EXPENSES
Sewer Service:

Salaries $ 60,601 $ 106,000 $ (45,399)
Materials and Supplies 2,148 8,000 (5,852)
Electric 380 800 (420)
Maintenance and Repairs 2,629 36,700 (34,071)
Vehicle 11,179 20,120 (8,941)
Uniforms 2,445 1,260 1,185
Treatment Fees 775,376 984,000 (208,624)

  Total Sewer Service 854,758 1,156,880 (302,122)

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget and Actual

Year Ended December 31, 2024

34



Actual Budget Variance
Water Service:

Salaries 279,540 364,500 (84,960)
Materials and Supplies 12,665 56,400 (43,735)
Electric 113,560 102,640 10,920
Maintenance and Repairs 115,451 158,300 (42,849)
Vehicle 16,990 17,040 (50)
Uniforms 1,596 3,660 (2,064)
Testing 53,746 34,500 19,246
Meters -                  6,700 (6,700)

  Total Water Service 593,548 743,740 (150,192)

Professional Fees:
Consulting Engineer 36,660 31,100 5,560
Auditor 61,800 45,100 16,700
Legal 12,524 17,400 (4,876)
Hydrogeologist 41,955 29,600 12,355

  Total Professional Fees 152,939 123,200 29,739

General and Administrative:
Salaries 325,366 267,000 58,366
Employee Benefits 248,870 391,600 (142,730)
Materials and Supplies 77,704 107,400 (29,696)
Utilities 20,362 24,800 (4,438)
Communications 22,139 30,700 (8,561)
Maintenance and Repairs - Office 39,920 63,560 (23,640)
Vehicles 2,057 2,170 (113)
Maintenance and Repairs - Building 32,498 23,100 9,398
Lease of Vehicles -                  17,000 (17,000)
Trustee Fees 9,465 6,200 3,265
Insurance 62,985 75,000 (12,015)
Miscellaneous 27,935 2,600 25,335

  Total General and Administrative 869,301 1,011,130 (141,829)

     Total Operating Expenses 2,470,546 3,034,950 (564,404)

Operating Revenues Over Expenses $ 2,712,175 $ 2,097,360 $ 614,815

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget and Actual, Continued

Year Ended December 31, 2024

35



Actual Budget Variance

Operating Revenues Over Expenses $ 2,712,175 $ 2,097,360 $ 614,815

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Income 447,573 12,300 435,273
Lease Income 101,246 92,500 8,746
Capital contributions 254,730 -                 254,730
Interest Expense (364,789) -                 (364,789)
Principal Payments on Debt (1,160,000) (1,723,588) 563,588

Transfer for Debt Coverage -                  (478,572) 478,572

  Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - Net (721,240) (2,097,360) 1,376,120

Total Revenues Over Expenses $ 1,990,935 $ -                 $ 1,990,935

Reconciliation of Budget Reporting to Financial Statements:

Revenues Over Expenses $ 1,990,935

Principal Payments on Debt 1,160,000
Tapping Fees 120,940
Depreciation and Amortization (1,449,396)

$ 1,822,479

36

Increase in Net Position per Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

PERKASIE REGIONAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget and Actual, Continued

Year Ended December 31, 2024













       PUBLIC WORKS
 SUPERINTENDENTS REPORT MAY  2025

FUNCTION MAN HOURS
OT 

HOURS GROSS PAYROLL
Street Maintenance 222.50 $6,021.75

Leaf Collection

Parks and Playgrounds

Refuse Collection 584.00 $15,231.59
Recycling 422.00 $10,890.59

Winter Maintenance $250.56

Grounds Maintenance 769.00 $23,653.43

Janitor -Borough Wide 168.00 $5,261.76

Traffic Control

Borough Hall

Pool 81.50 $1.00 $2,603.53
Other Mowing
Supervision

Workers' Comp. 60.00 $1,056.78
Miscellaneous 20.00 $565.34
Stand-by Time 42.00 $1,948.59
Vacation 104.00 $3,232.32
Sick Time 84.00 $2,589.36

Personal/Bereavement 104.00 $3,202.24
Education

Comp time added 79.50

Comp time used 102.75 $3,223.25
Special Projects 63.00 0.50 $2,110.48

Park & Rec Projects

Community & Economic Development

Assist Fire Co.

Safety Meetings

Holiday 160.00 $4,884.08
Total Overtime for Month 1.50

Grand Totals 3066.25 $86,725.65



PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 Attend meetings, Council, staff and engineering 
 Prepare department task list 
 Approved invoices submitted for payment 
 Order and pick up supplies 
 Deliver trash bags to vendors 
 Meet with staff to discuss department related issues 
 Handle residents’ concerns over department related issues 
 Arrange for pick up of recyclable materials 
 Performed monthly Borough Hall safety inspection 
 Prepared letters, reports and memos 
 Had 9th street striped 

 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
CREW ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 Pick up trash and recyclable materials curbside 
 Haul trash and recyclable materials for disposal 
 Open and clean park restrooms daily 
 Clean bike path and remove trash 
 Pick up litter in parks 
 Deliver trash bags to vendors 
 Perform maintenance on department vehicles 
 Baled Cardboard and Paper 
 Cleaned Borough Buildings 
 Worked on train car 
 Patched potholes  
 Removed trees from the park system 
 Worked at MAC 
 Cut grass in Park system and Borough Properties 
 Loaded out 20 bales of paper or 1 truck load 
 Collected 204.56 tons of refuse 
 Collected 22.54 tons of commingled recyclables 
 Worked at Memorial Day parade 
 

 
 



PERKASIE BOROUGH 
RESOLUTION #2025-33 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
FOR THE CREATION OF A PARKING SPACE RESERVED 
FOR A HANDICAPPED PERSON OR DISABLED VETERAN 

WHEREAS, Perkasie Borough Ordinance #691 provides that Perkasie Borough Council 
may, by Resolution, establish on the streets or borough parking lot, additional parking spaces 
reserved for handicapped persons or disabled veterans parking; and  

WHEREAS, Borough Council desires to establish such parking spaces. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following parking space is established and 
reserved for handicapped persons or disabled veterans at a space in front of  
250 North Third Street, Perkasie.  

RESOLVED this 16th day of June, 2025. 

ATTEST: BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

By: By:  _____________________________ 
 Andrea L. Coaxum, Secretary  James Ryder, Council President 



ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT  SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT MAY 2025

FUNCTION   MAN HOURS   OT HOURS  GROSS PAYROLL
OVERHEAD DISTRIBUTION 805 16.5 $45,142.60
115 Repair Damaged Equipment Struck By Vehicle
UNDERGROUND DISTRIBUTION
206 Repair Damaged Equipment By Dig-ins
METERING
303 Check ERT's
309 Hand Out Yellow / Red Tags
310 Disconnect / Reconnect Delinquents
CALL OUTS 42.00 $3,427.68
NEW OVERHEAD CONSTRUSTION
NEW CONSTRUCTION UNDERGROUND
STORM DAMAGE AND TROUBLE
POOL 10.00 $537.60
608 Snow Plowing
STREET LIGHTING
807 Christmas Lights
VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
TREE TRIMMING 16.00 $860.16
1204 Brush Chipping Program
1207 Utility Line Maint. & Tree Trimming
CUSTOMER SERVICE
SPECIAL PROJECTS
SUPERVISION
BOROUGH HALL
MISCELLANEOUS 134.00 $7,469.04
1009 Setup For Events
1010 Public Events
SICK 12.00 $685.92
VACATION 108.00 $5,806.08
PERSONAL 24.00 $1,317.44
BEREAVERMENT
SUBSTATION
COMP TIME ADDED 35.75
COMP TIME USED 11.00 $591.36
HOLIDAY 80.00 $4,355.20
SCHOOL/EDUCATION
TOTAL OVERTIME FOR THE MONTH 16.5
GRAND TOTALS 1277.75 $70,193.08



 May 2025 Monthly Report 
Electric Department 

• Supervision and Administration
o Fill out Job Order Forms
o Attend meetings

 Staff meetings
 Council meetings
 PMEA - Tech Committee

o Timesheets / Gang reports
o Inventory / Pickup materials

• Line-work
o Line maintenance
o Perkasie Park – Replace secondary service
o 500 block Callowhill – Pole change
o 500 block Callowhill – New pole installation for Glassworks project
o Ridge Rd – Digging for guy pole relocation

• Tree work
o Trim around primary and secondary wires
o Brush chipping program first Wednesday of the month
o Work with JRF Arbor care – Trimming

• Trouble calls
o E. Market – Primary outage
o Emergency Paone call
o N. Ridge Rd – Resident concern; “sparking wires”

• Metering
o Change Meters
o Collect final readings
o Check bad ERTs in meters
o Hand out Yellow & Red tags
o Disconnect and reconnect delinquent accounts
o AMI meter replacement program
o New A4 – program build

• Locate underground wires
o PA-ONE calls

• Street lights
o Repair/replace bad street lights

• Substation
o Perform weekly substation checks



• Education and Schooling 
o AMP safety meeting 
o PMEA – Metering training 

 
• Borough Buildings 

o Shop Maintenance 
o Work at Borough buildings 
o Pool – Underwater lights, new outlet for water fountain, pump wiring/troubleshoot 

 
• Miscellaneous 

o Hang banners 
o Chainsaw maintenance 
o Hang flags  
o Adjust time clocks for summer hours 
o Second St Kulp Field – mark out for test holes 
o Lenape Park – barricade replacement 

 
• Truck maintenance 

o Monthly inspections/checklists 
o Trk 22 – Inspection 
o Trk 20 – Inspection 
o Trk 24 – Inspection/sensor repair  
o Trk 23 – Hi-pot and PM 

 



1

Admin

From: Admin
Sent: Thursday, June 12, 2025 8:52 AM
To: Admin
Subject: NY Times investigation of PJM

On Jun 10, 2025, at 4:08 PM, Scott Bomboy <sbomboy@perkasieborough.org> wrote: 

In today’s New York Times. Looks like they are starting to investigate PJM and people are 
talking to the reporter about lobbyists and insiders jacking up the auction results. 

============================================= 

As Energy Costs Surge, Eastern Governors Blame a Grid Manager 

Anger at PJM, which manages the electrical grid in all or parts of 13 states and the District 
of Columbia, has been boiling over in some state capitals. 

By Ivan Penn 

Reporting from Annapolis, Md., Washington and Los Angeles 

June 10, 2025 

Updated 3:18 p.m. ET 

For decades, a little-known nonprofit organization has played a central role in keeping the 
lights on for 65 million people in the Eastern United States. 



2

Even some governors and lawmakers acknowledge that they were not fully aware of how 
much influence the organization, PJM, has on the cost and reliability of energy in 13 states. 
The electrical grid it manages is the largest in the United States. 

  

But now some elected leaders have concluded that decisions made by PJM are one of the 
main reasons utility bills have soared in recent years. They said the organization had been 
slow to add new solar, wind and battery projects that could help lower the cost of 
electricity. And they say the grid manager is paying existing power plants too much to 
supply electricity to their states. 

  

Some governors have been so incensed that they have sued PJM, drafted or signed laws to 
force changes at the organization, or threatened to pull their states out of the regional 
electric grid. 

  

The Democratic governors of Delaware, Maryland, New Jersey and Pennsylvania sharply 
criticized the organization in recent interviews with The New York Times and in written 
statements. And the Republican governor of Virginia, Glenn Youngkin, called on the 
organization to fire its chief executive in a letter obtained by The Times. 

  

“PJM has lost the plot,” Gov. Philip D. Murphy of New Jersey said in an interview. In another 
interview, Gov. Wes Moore of Maryland said about PJM, “I am angry.” 

  

The elected leaders — some of whom may run for president in 2028 — and their aides said 
PJM’s executives, board members and committees made many important decisions in 
secret. And too many decisions, like whether to make it easier or harder for new power 
projects to join the grid, effectively benefit established energy companies at the expense of 
residents and businesses that use electricity. 

  

The governors’ fury at PJM is part of broader frustrations expressed by elected officials, 
residents and businesses over U.S. grids. After decades of modest and gradual rate 
increases, the price of power has climbed relentlessly over the last several years. 

  

The cost of electricity for residents of Delaware, Maryland, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and 
Virginia has increased from 23 to 40 percent over the last five years. 



3

  

Energy costs rose sharply after natural gas prices spiked when Russia invaded Ukraine in 
2022. But electricity rates continued to climb after that shock because energy demand is 
growing rapidly, driven largely by new data centers. 

  

In addition, power outages have become more frequent because utility equipment had 
been poorly maintained and was not upgraded for more intense natural disasters linked to 
climate change. 

  

A spokesman for PJM said the organization was sensitive to the concerns of the governors 
but noted that it was regulated by a federal agency. 

  

“The opinions of our governors are very important to PJM, and we share their concern 
about increasing electricity prices — a phenomenon occurring across much of our 
country,” said the spokesman, Jeffrey P. Shields. “PJM has no profit motive, no 
shareholders and no share price. We are fully regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission and cannot make any major changes without that body’s approval.” 

  

When it was formed in 1927, the organization was meant to connect the operations of 
three utilities in Pennsylvania and New Jersey. Utilities in Maryland were later added, 
forming the Pennsylvania-New Jersey-Maryland Interconnection, or PJM. Working together 
allowed the utilities to share resources, cutting costs. 

  

The organization’s main job is to oversee the flow of energy over transmission lines that 
carry electricity from power plants to cities and towns. PJM also devises and enforces 
policies about when and which types of power plants are added to the grid. 

  

“PJM has lost the plot,” Gov. Philip D. Murphy of New Jersey said. 

  

Over nearly 100 years, the PJM grid has grown to encompass all or parts of 13 states and 
the District of Columbia, stretching roughly from Chicago to Virginia Beach. 

  



4

PJM has a nine-member board of managers, all of whom have worked in the energy 
industry or in other senior corporate jobs. It also has more than 1,000 voting members, 
most of which are utilities, power plant companies, transmission line owners and energy 
traders. 

Most of those voting members have a direct financial stake in the organization’s decisions. 
Members typically vote on policies and issues. Some of the member votes are public, but 
others, including at smaller committee meetings where preliminary decisions are made, 
are not. 

PJM is one of seven large U.S. grid operators. Each functions differently. Some are confined 
to single states like California and Texas, and their boards answer to state officials. 
California is considering expanding the authority of its grid manager to include other 
Western states under a PJM-style model. 

Other grid managers function like PJM, as independent organizations that pick their own 
board members and chief executives with no input from governors. 

“What the problem is at PJM is that it is controlled and influenced by the corporate energy 
companies that constitute its membership,” said Tyson Slocum, director of the energy 
program at Public Citizen, a nonprofit research and consumer group started by Ralph 
Nader. “It puts energy company lobbyists in the driver’s seat at PJM.” 

Mr. Slocum added that the federal regulator that oversees PJM and other grid managers 
was too reactive to adequately police these organizations. 

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission has long pushed PJM to reform and speed up 
approval of new sources of electricity like wind, solar and battery projects. But progress 
has been slow. Critics blame PJM for that, but the organization says permitting delays, 
financing challenges, government decisions and other factors are more to blame. 

A spokeswoman for the federal agency said it could not comment because of pending 
regulatory matters. 



5

But at a meeting last week, the agency’s chairman, Mark Christie, said reforms at PJM and 
other regional grids were overdue. 

  

“For years I’ve been saying we are heading toward a reliability crisis,” Mr. Christie said. 
“The crisis is really now on our doorstep.” 

  

A 2024 report by Columbia University’s School of International and Public Affairs 
concluded that PJM “has experienced the most severe delays and backlog in new 
generation — projects entering the queue today have little chance of coming online before 
2030.” 

  

The time it takes to add new sources of electricity is critical because demand for energy is 
growing rapidly. PJM’s territory includes northern Virginia, which has the country’s largest 
collection of data centers. Technology companies want to add many data centers in other 
PJM states, particularly Ohio and Pennsylvania. 

  

Mr. Shields said PJM had reduced the backlog of power projects waiting to join its grid, 
recently approving new capacity that can serve 40 million homes. 

  

In response to criticism of secrecy, he said that PJM holds more than 400 stakeholder 
meetings each year and that the vast majority are open to the public. And the organization 
makes documents available to the public on its website. 

  

But many state officials said PJM existed mainly to benefit the utility industry. 

  

Over the last three years as electricity rates rose sharply in Maryland, a state lawmaker, 
Lorig Charkoudian, a Democrat, pushed for legislation that would force utilities in her state 
to disclose their votes at PJM. Mr. Moore signed the bill into law last month. 

  

Ms. Charkoudian said a handful of PJM states had drafted or were working on similar 
legislation. 

  



6

In interviews, Governor Murphy of New Jersey and Gov. Matt Meyer of Delaware — both 
Democrats — said they supported the legislation and were working on other efforts to 
reform PJM. 

Other states have gone even further. 

In December, Gov. Josh Shapiro of Pennsylvania sued PJM after the grid manager 
conducted an annual auction in which power plant owners submit the price they are 
offering to supply energy when demand surges, which often happens in summer. The 
prices set by the auction would have resulted in big price increases for electricity users. 
The highest bid in the auction contributes to the final price PJM sets for all generators, 
meaning even power plant owners willing to accept less money would be paid the higher 
prices. 

The state and PJM reached a settlement that caps the price set by the auction. Mr. Shapiro 
said the deal would save Pennsylvanians $21 billion over two years. 

“I do not think PJM is serving the good people of Pennsylvania well,” Mr. Shapiro said in 
email responses to questions. “We’ve got to re-examine whether or not Pennsylvania 
should be a member of PJM. We are a net energy exporter, meaning we create more energy 
than we actually need. That puts us in a strong position to both keep consumer prices low 
and also create markets in other states.” 

Mr. Shields said the complaint had been supported by five of the six states affected by it. 
He said the settlement maintained the effectiveness of the existing market design while 
supporting reliability and affordability of the grid for consumers. 

But the settlement angered at least one other governor. 

In a February letter to the chairman of PJM’s board, Governor Youngkin of Virginia criticized 
PJM for not consulting other states before settling with Pennsylvania. He said the deal was 
part of the grid manager’s piecemeal approach to running its system that was driving up 
electricity costs. Mr. Youngkin also said the organization should fire its chief executive. 



7

“Instead of seeking to resolve these fundamental issues through open and transparent 
dialogue with all states, including Virginia, as well as other stakeholders, PJM leadership 
negotiated a one-off deal with a single state that impacts rates for all PJM customers,” Mr. 
Youngkin wrote. 

  

Mr. Shields said Mr. Youngkin withdrew the letter without formally submitting it to the full 
organization “at PJM’s request.” 

  

Last month, PJM announced that its chief executive, Manu Asthana, would step down by 
year’s end. The organization said the decision had preceded Mr. Youngkin’s letter. 

  

“We’re spending our time talking about the wrong things,” Mr. Asthana said in a statement. 
“Prices are up because of tightening supply and demand driven by generator retirements 
and data center growth, and it’s impacting consumers. We need to be working together on 
additional ways to bring supply onto the system rapidly.” 

  

Ivan Penn is a reporter based in Los Angeles and covers the energy industry. His work has 
included reporting on clean energy, failures in the electric grid and the economics of utility 
services. 

  



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
Building and Codes Department
Permit Issued For : May 2025 

Building : Commercial

Permit Parcel Work Desc Applicant Work Location Permit
Fee UCC Status App. Date Issue Date

1 25-0352 33-005-438-009 Commercial Deck/Patio HG PROPERTIES 85 LP 18 N EIGHTH ST.  $266.00 $4.50  OPEN 05/13/2025 05/14/2025
2 25-0355 33005551 Commercial Sign ANDY WIEDMAN 100 N 5TH ST $4.50 $4.50  APPROVED 05/19/2025 05/22/2025

$270.50 $9.00   
Building : Residential

Permit Parcel Work Desc Applicant Work Location Permit
Fee UCC Status App. Date Issue Date

3 25-0329 33014043-014 Residential Deck/Patio Ben Blackman Decks 429 JULIANA WAY $454.62 $4.50  PENDING PAYMENT 04/25/2025 05/12/2025
4 25-0336 33006168 Residential Roofing JOHN CHARLES 504 N SEVENTH ST $139.50 $4.50  ACTIVE 05/05/2025 05/05/2025
5 25-0356 33006273 Residential Roofing TIMOTHY SCHAFFER ROOFING 804 N FIFTH ST $139.50 $4.50  ACTIVE 05/21/2025 05/22/2025
6 25-0360 33010115 Residential Roofing Unity Exteriors /Tim Nase 20 DILL AVE $139.50 $4.50  ACTIVE 05/27/2025 05/29/2025

$873.12 $18.00 
Electrical : Residential

Permit Parcel Work Desc Applicant Work Location Permit
Fee UCC Status App. Date Issue Date

7 25-0341 33006112-002 Residential Repair RC ELECTRIC SERVICES LLC 308 FOURTH ST $158.50 $4.50  PENDING PAYMENT 05/07/2025 05/08/2025
8 25-0344 33005321 Residential Repair CHRISTINA BEER 28 S FOURTH ST $158.50 $4.50  ACTIVE 05/08/2025 05/09/2025
9 25-0351 33009005-110 Residential New Electrical

Work
GILLESPIE ELECTRIC INC 145 ARBOR BLVD $129.50 $4.50  PENDING PAYMENT 05/13/2025 05/14/2025

10 25-0354 33006106 Residential New Electrical
Work

NARROW GATE REAL ESTATE 327 N FIFTH ST $414.10 $4.50  PENDING PAYMENT 05/19/2025 05/22/2025

11 25-0357 33010020.001 Residential Repair RUSTIC VALLEY PROPERTIES LLC 446 E WALNUT ST $328.50 $4.50  PENDING PAYMENT 05/21/2025 05/22/2025
$1,189.10 $22.50   

Mechanical : Residential

Permit Parcel Work Desc Applicant Work Location Permit
Fee UCC Status App. Date Issue Date

12 25-0332 33013010-003 Residential Repair HORIZON SERVICES-CHRISTINE TASKER 503 NOB HILL DR $139.50 $4.50  ACTIVE 04/29/2025 05/02/2025
13 25-0337 33005122 Residential Repair ORTEP OF PA DBA PETRO 218 S FIFTH ST $139.50 $4.50  OPEN 05/05/2025 05/07/2025
14 25-0340 33006164 Residential Repair MOYER & SON 610 N SEVENTH ST $139.50 $4.50  APPROVED 05/07/2025 05/08/2025
15 25-0345 33010042 Residential Repair SHANNON DYER @ WELLS & SONS

CHIMNEY
107 N THIRD ST $139.50 $4.50  APPROVED 05/09/2025 05/12/2025

16 25-0348 33010129 Residential Repair MOYER & SON 124 S MAIN ST $139.50 $4.50  APPROVED 05/13/2025 05/14/2025
17 25-0349 33007041-001 Residential Repair MOYER & SON 504 HIGHLAND DR $139.50 $4.50  APPROVED 05/13/2025 05/14/2025
18 25-0350 33006195 Residential Repair MOYER & SON 609 N SEVENTH ST $139.50 $4.50  APPROVED 05/13/2025 05/14/2025

$976.50 $31.50   
Plumbing : Residential

  Permit Parcel Work Desc Applicant Work Location Permit
Fee UCC Status App. Date Issue Date

19 25-0343 33010224 Residential Repair JAMES BADLER 389 KENT LA $139.50 $4.50  APPROVED 05/08/2025 05/09/2025
$139.50 $4.50   

Zoning : Residential

Permit Parcel Work Desc Applicant Work Location Permit
Fee UCC Status App. Date Issue Date



20 25-0306 33011018-003 Residential Patio Only TREVOR & KRISTIN STRUNK 366 N MAIN ST $100.00 APPROVED 04/07/2025 05/05/2025
21 25-0307 33009115 Residential Patio Only MUNZ CONSTRUCTION 335 HAMPTON CIR $0.00 APPROVED 04/07/2025 05/02/2025
22 25-0312 33005275-001 Residential Sign - Permanent NORRIS HILL (REED SIGN COMPANY) 607 W CHESTNUT

ST
$200.00 APPROVED 04/09/2025 05/05/2025

23 25-0333 33009005-116 Residential Patio Only STRECKFUSS, ERIC C & FAITHE E 157 ARBOR BLVD $100.00 OPEN 04/30/2025 05/22/2025
24 25-0334 33006072 Residential Shed JAMES & JEANNE SCHLOTTER 532 CALLOWHILL

ST
$100.00 APPROVED 04/30/2025 05/29/2025

25 25-0347 33013012-013 Residential Shed LISA & CHRIS MAHONEY 518 LOMBARD ST $100.00 COMPLETED 05/09/2025 05/29/2025
              $600.00      

         
    Total Permit Fees: $4,048.72  

    Total State UCC: $85.50  











BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: Andrea L. Coaxum, Borough Manager 

FROM: Linda Reid, Assistant Borough Manager 

DATE: June 2025 

SUBJECT: Recommendation of the Perkasie Planning Commission regarding potential amendments to 
the Ordinance regulating the Keeping of Chickens & Roadside Stands 

Perkasie Borough has noted an increase in the number of households keeping chickens – part of a national 
trend that started during the Covid-19 pandemic. While our ordinance permits the keeping of “fowl” as a 
Use by right in all residential districts, it does require ¼ acre for every 2 birds meaning that many if not 
all of these households are out of compliance with our zoning ordinance.   

We are also aware of several roadside stands used by residents to sell homegrown produce; these stands 
are out of compliance with our current ordinance, which permits Roadside Stands only by Special 
Exception and requires the provision of off-street parking. The ordinance does not currently permit the 
sale of eggs.  

Accordingly, we prepared a packet for discussion by Perkasie’s Planning Commission. The Commission 
met in April and May and created recommendations to amend both ordinances. The draft ordinances are 
attached to this memo, and the recommendations of the Planning Commission are summarized below:   

Keeping of Chickens 

The purpose of the proposed amendment is to provide standards for the keeping of domesticated chickens. 
It is intended to enable residents of the Borough to keep a small number of female chickens on a 
noncommercial basis while limiting the potential adverse impacts on the surrounding neighborhood.  

The recommendation of the Planning Commission would: 
 create a definition for “chickens” and prohibit the keeping of roosters and guinea hens
 allow the keeping of chickens accessory to a Residential Use across all zoning districts where

Residential Use is the Primary Use on a parcel. The Keeping of Chickens accessory to a
commercial Use would continue to be regulated by 186-86 A(1) Farming.

 replace the “2 birds per ¼ acre” area restriction with a requirement that coops & pens be installed
at least 10’ away from neighboring residential properties, and otherwise subject to all other



dimensional & setback requirements for Accessory Uses in the underlying zoning district (the lot 
area restriction remains in place for all other “fowl”) 

 set a limit on the number of chickens that may be kept Accessory to a Residential Use: a minimum 
of 2 and a maximum of 6 

 continue the prohibition on commercial sales of chicken and add a prohibition on commercial or 
public slaughtering 

 set some general standards for the proper and sanitary keeping of chickens, based on guidance 
from the Penn State Extension Service 

 require a Zoning Permit  
 allow only one Zoning Permit per parcel and require that tenants have the written permission of 

the property owner to keep chickens.  
 
 
 
Roadside Stands 
 
The recommendation of the Planning Commission would bring most of the known Roadside Stands into 
compliance by: 

 allowing Roadside Stands as a Use by right where they are Accessory to a Residential Use, 
 removing the requirement for off-street parking where there is adjacent legal street parking, 
 replacing the requirement that a Roadside Stand is 80’ away from any intersection with the 

requirement that a Roadside Stand does not affect sight lines at any intersection 
 
Roadside Stands Accessory to a Residential Use would require a Zoning Permit.  
Roadside Stands Accessory to any Commercial Use would continue to be permitted by Special Exception 
in all zoning districts.   
 



PERKASIE BOROUGH EXISTING ORDINANCE:  

Chapter 186 Art IV Use Regulations and Restrictions. 186-18 Principal and accessory use 
regulations H (7) Keeping of animals: 

(a) Keeping of pets: The keeping of dogs, cats, or other small animals as pets accessory to a 
residential use. 

[1] No more than four customary household pets or domestic animals (e.g., dogs, 
cats, etc.) ordinarily kept in the home shall be kept under the permanent care of the 
occupants. 

[2] Five or more adult dogs or cats shall meet the requirements of § 186-18A(1). 

[3] Commercial breeding or use of these pets shall not be permitted under this use. 

[4] A zoning permit shall not be required for this use. 

 

(b) Keeping of large animals and fowl: The keeping of large animals (such as cattle, horses, 
llamas, sheep, goats, and pigs) and fowl (such as chickens and turkeys) as accessory to a 
residential use, not as a farming use. 

[1] Large animals (such as cattle, horses, llamas, sheep, goats, and pigs) and fowl 
(such as chickens and turkeys) shall be stabled or housed in buildings at least 100 
feet from any lot line. 

[2] No more than one livestock unit shall be permitted for every 1 1/2 acres of lot 
area. Livestock units are as follows: 

[a] One horse, llama, or cow: two livestock units. 

[b] Two sheep or goats: one livestock unit. 

[c] One pig: one livestock unit. 

[3] Fowl shall require a minimum lot area of 1/4 acre for two birds and additional 1/4 
acre for every two birds thereafter. Roosters and guinea fowl are not permitted. 

[4] Commercial breeding or use of large animals and fowl shall not be permitted 
under this use. 

[5] A zoning permit shall be required for large animals. 



Proposed Ordinance Amendment:  

 

H(7) (b) The keeping of large animals (such as cattle, horses, llamas, sheep, goats and pigs) 
and fowl as accessory to a residential use. The keeping of animals as a commercial or 
agricultural use should follow the standards set out in 186-18 A. (1) Farming. 

(1) Large animals (such as cattle, horses, llamas, sheep, goats, pigs) and fowl (such as 
ducks and turkeys) shall be stabled or housed in buildings at least 100 feet from any 
lot line.  

(2) No more than one livestock until shall be permitted for every 1 ½ acres of lot area. 
Livestock units are as follows:  

a. One horse, llama or cow: two livestock units  
b. Two sheep or goats: one livestock unit 
c. One pig: one livestock unit 

(3) Fowl, with the exception of chickens as defined in 186-18 H. (9) Keeping of 
Chickens, shall require a minimum lot area of ¼ acre for two birds and an additional 
¼ acre for every two birds thereafter.  

New section:  

H(9) Keeping of Chickens as accessory to a residential use.  

(1) "Chickens": Domesticated fowl of the species Gallus gallus domesticus, raised for 
the purpose of producing eggs, meat, or as pets. This definition excludes roosters 
and guinea fowl.  

(2) The purpose of this section is to provide standards for the keeping of domesticated 
chickens. It is intended to enable residents of the Borough to keep a small number 
of female chickens on a noncommercial basis while limiting the potential adverse 
impacts on the surrounding neighborhood.  

(3) Permit required. A Zoning Permit is required for the keeping of any domesticated 
chickens in the Borough. Any tenant must have written permission from his or her 
landlord to keep and maintain chickens.  

(4) No more than one Zoning Permit will be approved for the keeping of chickens on any 
parcel in the Borough.  

(5) Number and type of chickens allowed: the minimum number of chickens allowed is 
2, the maximum number of chickens allowed is 6. Only female chickens are 
allowed. Roosters and guinea fowl are not allowed.  

(6) Commercial and/or public slaughtering is not permitted.  
(7) The sale of chickens for commercial purposes is not permitted.  



(8) General requirements:
a. chickens must be kept in an enclosure or chicken run, which is a secure

fenced area at all times. Chickens running at large are considered a public
nuisance.

b. Residents keeping chickens shall also provide a henhouse, which shall be
located on the rear of the property, no closer than 10 feet to the property line
of any adjacent residential property, and otherwise subject to the same bulk
and area requirements of the Borough’s Zoning Ordinance relating to
accessory structures.

c. Chicken runs, enclosures and henhouses must be constructed using
uniform materials for each element of the structure (ie all walls made of the
same material) and designed to avoid weathering.

d. Henhouses must be kept clean, dry, and odor-free, kept in a neat and
sanitary condition at all times, and in a manner that will not disturb the use
or enjoyment of neighboring lots due to noise, odors or other adverse impact.

e. Chicken feed must be stored in a metal container with a metal lid that cannot
be penetrated or removed by vermin.

(9) The sale of eggs must comply with state and federal laws and regulations, and with
the Borough’s zoning ordinance regulations for residential Roadside Stands H(6).



PERKASIE BOROUGH EXISTING ORDINANCE:  

Chapter 186 Art IV Use Regulations and Restrictions. 186-18 Principal and accessory use 
regulations   

H(6) Roadside stand: Roadside stand for the sale of farm nursery or greenhouse products 
produced on the premises where oƯered for sale. 

(a) The stand may be in the front yard but shall not be in the street lines. 

(b) The location shall not be within 80 feet of any intersection center line. 

(c) Parking for vehicles shall be provided oƯ the street cartway and in compliance 
with the provisions of Article VIII, OƯ-street Parking and Loading. 

 



Proposed Ordinance amendment:  

H(6) Roadside Stand: roadside stand for the sale of farm nursery, greenhouse produce or 
eggs produced on the premises here oƯered for sale.  

1. A Roadside Stand may be in the front yard but shall not be in the street lines.  
 

2. Roadside Stands accessory to a non-residential Use shall  
 not be within 80 feet of any intersection center line 
 provide oƯ-street Parking for vehicles, and in compliance with the provisions of 

Article VIII, OƯ-Street Parking and Loading.  
 be permitted by Special Exception 

 

3. Roadside Stands accessory to a residential Use shall 
 Be located so as not to interfere with traƯic sight lines. Proper sight lines shall be 

maintained at all street intersections in accordance with § 164-20E through G. 
 Provide oƯ-street parking for one vehicle where legal street parking is not 

present adjacent to the Roadside Stand 
 Be permitted By Right in all zoning districts where the primary Use on the parcel 

is Residential 
 Require a Zoning Permit. Any tenant must have written permission from his or 

her landlord to erect and maintain a Roadside Stand. No more than one Zoning 
Permit will be approved for a Roadside Stand on any parcel in the Borough.  

 





PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT 
May 2025 

RECREATION 

 Third Annual Pickleball Day was on 5/10.  Had a
handful of new interested pickleball players come for 
the Open House to learn about the sport and try it 
out.  Afterwards had a competition event with 24 
pickleball players to determine this year’s winner. 

 Annual spring Multi Sport Sundays started May 4th in
Lenape Park and runs through June.  All registration 
numbers were above the previous years. 

 Monthly pickleball lesson starts mid-May.  Lessons
include beginner classes, skills clinics, and three-week 
programs.  Lessons run monthly into September. 

 Started work putting together calendar of programs and coordinating with different departments and local
business to host free community programs during July’s Park and Recreation Month. 

PARK INFORMATION 

 Continued work with Public Works, Electric, Borough engineers, and contractors on the Kulp Park baseball field
improvement project.

 Continued work with Park and Recreation Board and members of the Skate Park Committee and contractor on
2025 ramp replacement project.

 Discussions with staff and other park professionals about public safety in the park system.

MENLO AQUATIC CENTER 

 Opening Day was Saturday, May 24th, cool temperatures but perfect for the 1st Annual Opening Day
"Penguin Plunge".  Over 40 members and guests participated.

 Pre-season staff training consisted of two days of training on May 17th and 18th.  Next In-service for staff will be
Saturday, June 14th.

 Membership Payment Plans are currently being converted
to seasonal memberships.  A record 174 memberships
were paid through payment plans in 2025 as opposed to 31
in 2024.

 Thank you to Perkasie Lion Club for sponsoring Kulp
Wading Pool for 2025.

 Thank you to our Menlo After Dark sponsors Joe Davis
Auto, Covered Bridge Car Wash, and The Gutter Guys.

 16 Menlo and Kulp birthday parties have been booked this
season using our new online registration system.

 Thank you to Craig Phillips, owner of Philly Pretzel/Rita's
Water Ice for returning to operate our Menlo Snack Stand this season.

 A new staff clock in/out system is now in place for employee time keeping eliminating the need for the old
manual paper system.

 New filter pumps and motors are installed and operational for Leisure and Toddler pools.  2024 saw the
replacement of the Competition pump and motor.



 Session 1 Swim Lessons began Tuesday, June 9th after a rainy start to 
the lesson season.  There are 5 two week sessions of lessons this 
season. 

 Our new AM Tot Splash program is getting great reviews.  Member 
families with children age 6 and under can take advantage of quality 
early morning time with their little ones in the Toddler pool prior to 
nap and public swim times.  It also serves member swim lesson moms 
with little ones while brother and sister take swim lessons.  The 
program is free to members and nonmembers may drop in for a daily 
$10 fee.  The program is offered Monday-Thursday, 9am-
11:30am.  Participants may register by the week or purchase online 
daily drop-in passes. 

 Our first year of online daily pass sales is off to a great start. 
Nonmembers create an account, sign their waivers, and purchase their 
daily pass, all online.  When done they save the admission barcode to 
their phone and scan the barcode at the front desk for pool admission. 
Saves staff time and long check-in lines. 

 Now that the season has started a new promotion is launching to 
allow visitors to convert their same day daily passes to seasonal memberships.  Individuals with the receipt of 
their Menlo visit may use that receipt to receive credit toward their membership conversion equal to daily pass 
fee paid. 

 Coming events include our first "Carnival Day" on June 28th 1-4:30pm during open swim time.  Menlo After Dark 
launches on Friday, July 11th with an "Oldies Dance Party" with a live band.  Two more Menlo After Dark events 
are scheduled along with themed "Christmas in July" and Menlo "Beach Days".  In addition, member theme 
coincide with these major events. 

 Member days (includes guests of members and residents) are slated on June 14th, July19th, and August 16th. 
 The Pool complex will close at 4pm for PAC Home Swim Meets June 19th, June 26th, July 8th, and July 10th. 

MEETINGS 

 Menlo pre-season meetings throughout the month  
 Attended Park Security Webinar – 5/8 
 Met with Complete Payroll – 5/9 
 Memorial Day Parade planning meeting – 5/16 

ADMINISTRATION 

 Continued work on newsletter mail routes and options to expand newsletter mailing to ensure all residents 
receive the mailing in the future. 

 Organized and sent weekly informational newsletter email blasts focusing on summer offerings through Park 
and Recreation.  This communication is through MyRec Constant Contact and includes almost 7,000 active email 
accounts. 

 Continued expanded marketing efforts for Park and Recreation programming through both Facebook and 
Instagram including using reels, my story, and additions of music, link, and hashtags to grow social media 
following. 

 Submitted content to the Perkasie Connection summer newsletter in early May.  Newsletter contains 
information for July through September and is scheduled to be mailed late June. 













 BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  June 12, 2025 

TO: Borough Council 
Mayor Hollenbach 
Andrea Coaxum 

FROM: Rebecca Deemer, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Time-clock policy 

Included in your packet is the proposed Perkasie Borough time clock policy.  As part of our ongoing efforts to 
modernize our timekeeping and payroll processes, the Borough has implemented a time clock system for non-
exempt hourly employees at Menlo Aquatics Center. While the system is in use, the absence of a formally 
adopted policy limits our ability to enforce consistent practices and expectations related to timekeeping. 

The purpose of this policy is to accurately track employee hours worked, promote accountability, and ensure 
compliance with labor laws and payroll accuracy.  The policy clearly defines responsibilities for the employees 
and supervisors as well. In response to the Solicitor’s comments an employee is aware of the changes in their 
job duties throughout the course of the workday based on their pre-determined and agreed upon schedule. 

I am requesting that Council approve the proposed Time Clock Policy. Upon approval, the policy will be 
distributed, and the employees will be required to sign an acknowledgment form indicating they have received, 
read, and understood the policy. 

. 



 

 

Perkasie Borough Policy for Time Clock procedures 

 

PURPOSE: 

This work policy is intended to set forth the proper and required use of the time clock 
system. This system will allow for electronic documentation and recordkeeping, utilizing 
less staƯ time and enabling the Borough to provide better service to its employees, and to 
ensure compliance with State and Federal law. 

APPLICABILITY: 

All non-exempt employees 

POLICY: 

All non-exempt employees will be required to punch in and out for work utilizing the keypad 
on the time clock. 

PROCEDURE: 

At the beginning of the shift or established time to begin work, the employee will punch in 
by entering the last 4 digits of their Social Security Number (SS#). At the end of the shift or 
established time to end work, the employee will punch out entering the last 4 digits of their 
SS#.   

Job duties may change based on the pre-determined and agreed upon schedule between 
the employee and their Department Head/Supervisor.  As such, employees will be required 
to punch in and out as their job duties change throughout the course of the day, to ensure 
they are getting paid the correct rate applicable to each position.  If an employee is unsure 
of any changes in their job duties, they should speak to their immediate supervisor or 
department head. 

Employees are prohibited from punching in early and punching out late unless authorized 
by their immediate supervisor.  Employees are permitted to clock in or out within 10 
minutes of their scheduled start time and end times. This time window is provided for 
flexibility in accessing time clocks, however, pay will begin and end at the employee’s 
scheduled start and end time, not the time of early clock-in or late clock-out.  

Non-exempt employees who arrive after their scheduled starting time will not be paid for 
the missed time.  Although time will not be docked beyond time missed, generally, the pay 
will be rounded to the nearest quarter hour. (e.g. both 8 minutes and 23 minutes after the 
hour would be rounded to ¼ hour and both 24 minutes and 37 minutes after the hour would 
be rounded to ½ hour). 



 

 

Excessive instances of punching in too early, punching in too late, failures to punch in or 
out, or any other similar time clock violation will be subject to discipline including 
warnings, suspension and termination. 

Employees are prohibited from punching in other employees’ SS#.  

Employees who punch in or out the SS# of other employees, and employees who knowingly 
permit other employees to punch their SS# in or out, at any time are defrauding the 
Borough and will be subject to discipline including suspension and termination. 

EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY: 

Employees are responsible for punching in and out per policy. Employees are to report any 
malfunction of the device to their immediate supervisor/department head. Employees 
should address any discrepancies, upon receipt of their payroll stub, to their immediate 
supervisor/department head. 

EMPLOYER RESPONSIBILITY: 

Perkasie Borough, through its managers, department heads and finance department, will 
tally, collect, collate, formulate, organize and maintain the time-worked records of each of 
the employees. 

The Department Manager or their designee will review the time-worked information for 
all non-exempt employees working in the department for accuracy at the end of the pay 
period with regards to hours worked.  

The Finance Director or their designee will review all time-worked records before 
approving them for payment from our payroll company. 

The Finance Director or their designee will send approved information on to our payroll 
company for processing. 

CONSEQUENCES OF POLICY VIOLATION: 

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including, termination 
of employment. Disciplinary actions are handled in accordance with the Borough of 
Perkasie Employee Handbook and will be applied based on the severity of the infraction, 
and the employee’s disciplinary history. 







Date: 05/21/2025 Check Register #22 – May 23, 2025 User: HEATHE 

Time:  3:25:26PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

0000000475 A. J. Dembrosky Co., Inc. 
VC-00061973 6134 Repair Constitution Quad Bathroom 01.454.371 05/23/2025 285.00 

0000000475 A. J. Dembrosky Co., Inc. Vendor Total: 285.00 

0000000014 AFLAC 
VC-00061969 106250 Monthly Premium Remittance 01.223.000 05/23/2025 294.04 

0000000014 AFLAC Vendor Total: 294.04 

0000000065 Airgas USA, LLC 
VC-00061972 9160982401 PW Oxygen 01.438.230 05/23/2025 53.33 

0000000065 Airgas USA, LLC Vendor Total: 53.33 

0000003408 Anixter Inc 
VC-00061854 6377189-00 Electric Small Tools 07.442.260 05/23/2025 2,940.40 

0000003408 Anixter Inc Vendor Total: 2,940.40 

0000003707 AT&T Mobility 
VC-00061853 28728995613505082025 2 FirstNet Mobile Air Cards 07.442.450 05/23/2025 81.78 

0000003707 AT&T Mobility Vendor Total: 81.78 

0000005198 Auto Zone, Inc. 
VC-00061883 02071284096 PW Auto Parts 01.438.230 05/23/2025 33.59 

0000005198 Auto Zone, Inc. Vendor Total: 33.59 

0000005399 BARRY ISETT & associates Inc. 
VC-00061919 0199887 Code Enforcement Services April 2025 01.413.310 05/23/2025 11,524.55 

0000005399 BARRY ISETT & associates Inc. Vendor Total: 11,524.55 

0000000289 Basement Graphics 
VC-00061877 4/24/25 MAC Shirts 04.452.238 05/23/2025 927.50 

0000000289 Basement Graphics Vendor Total: 927.50 

0000005625 Brian Beattie 
VC-00061891 05852007.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 05/23/2025 198.34 

0000005625 Brian Beattie Vendor Total: 198.34 

0000004084 Britton Industries 
VC-00061873 1265731-IN Yard Waste 40 Yd Roll Off & Tipping Fees 05.428.368 05/23/2025 575.35 
VC-00061874 1268970-IN Yard Waste 40 Yd Roll Off & Tipping Fee 05.428.368 05/23/2025 702.29 
VC-00061928 1273080-IN Yard Waste 40 Yd Roll Off & Tipping Fees 05.428.368 05/23/2025 785.81 

0000004084 Britton Industries Vendor Total: 2,063.45 

0000000135 Clemens Uniform 
VC-00061855 S1701843 Electric First Aid Kit Supplies 07.442.450 05/23/2025 265.50 
VC-00061923 1703613 Police Mat Rentals 01.410.450 05/23/2025 30.88 
VC-00061882 1703614 PW Uniforms 01.438.238 05/23/2025 195.70 



 Date: 05/21/2025 Check Register #22 – May 23, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  3:25:26PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000000135 Clemens Uniform Vendor Total: 492.08 

 
 0000000069 Comcast 
 VC-00061872 53456 PW Voice/Internet/Phone 5/7-6/6 01.438.480 05/23/2025 313.42 X 

 VC-00061856 53282 Electric Substation 5/12-6/11/25 07.442.450 05/23/2025 313.42 X 

 VC-00061878 164824 MAC Internet & Voice 5/9-6/8/25 04.452.321 05/23/2025 208.42 X 

 VC-00061927 48464 Voice/Internet/Wifi 5/11-6/10/25 01.405.450 05/23/2025 437.77 X 

 0000000069 Comcast Vendor Total: 1,273.03 

 
 0000002414 De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 
 VC-00061924 590232059 Police Copier Contract 01.410.252 05/23/2025 162.07 
 0000002414 De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. Vendor Total: 162.07 

 
 0000000325 Deep Run Aquatic Services, Inc. 
 VC-00061880 250509-15 MAC Filters, Pumps, Covers 04.452.374 05/23/2025 1,475.00 
 VC-00061880 250509-15 MAC Filters, Pumps, Covers 30.452.700 05/23/2025 20,750.00 
 0000000325 Deep Run Aquatic Services, Inc. Vendor Total: 22,225.00 

 
 0000005629 Eric Williams 
 VC-00061887 06620010.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 05/23/2025 58.33 
 0000005629 Eric Williams Vendor Total: 58.33 

 
 0000004833 FP Finance Program 
 VC-00061885 39208804 Postage Meter Lease 01.405.450 05/23/2025 155.00 
 0000004833 FP Finance Program Vendor Total: 155.00 

 
 0000000050 General Code 
 VC-00061974 GC00129969 eCode360 Annual Maintenance 01.405.342 05/20/2025 1,195.00 
 0000000050 General Code Vendor Total: 1,195.00 

 
 0000000294 Gerhart Plumbing, Inc. 
 VC-00061876 17040 Install Water Bottle Filling Station MAC 04.491.100 05/23/2025 1,350.00 
 VC-00061876 17040 Install Water Bottle Filling Station MAC 04.452.250 05/23/2025 164.55 
 0000000294 Gerhart Plumbing, Inc. Vendor Total: 1,514.55 

 
 0000001996 Gilmore & Associates, Inc. 
 VC-00061912 PS-INV2505436 Economic Development Plan Update 30.451.708 05/23/2025 5,053.79 
 VC-00061896 PS-INV2505420 Perkasie Zoning Services 01.414.451 05/23/2025 346.00 
 VC-00061895 PS-INV2505419 Green Ridge East Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 784.29 
 VC-00061894 PS-INV2505418 Kay Builders Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 513.04 
 VC-00061908 PS-INV2505432 2025 Paving Program 15.408.310 05/23/2025 3,983.50 
 VC-00061893 PS-INV2505417 Perkasie MS-4 thru 4/30/25 30.440.710 05/23/2025 967.00 
 VC-00061904 PS-INV2505428 N 5th St. Sewer System 30.408.310 05/23/2025 136.50 
 VC-00061910 PS-INV2505434 2025 Bituminous Seal Coat Program 15.408.310 05/23/2025 4,985.22 
 VC-00061909 PS-INV2505433 135 S. Main St. Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 300.30 
 VC-00061898 PS-INV2505422 306 N. 5th St. Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 691.00 



 Date: 05/21/2025 Check Register #22 – May 23, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  3:25:26PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 VC-00061903 PS-INV2505427 Kulp Park Engineering thru 4/30/25 30.451.701 05/23/2025 6,419.75 
 VC-00061902 PS-INV2505426 Kulp Park Planning thru 4/30/25 30.451.702 05/23/2025 329.50 
 VC-00061897 PS-INV2505421 Perry Mill Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 2,796.63 
 VC-00061905 PS-INV2505429 2024 Perkasie Paving Project 15.440.705 05/23/2025 15,921.05 
 VC-00061901 PS-INV2505425 W. Park Ave Improvements 30.451.702 05/23/2025 553.00 
 VC-00061914 PS-INV2505439 General Services thru 4/30/25 01.408.310 05/23/2025 3,566.20 
 VC-00061929 PS-INV2505438 Perkasie Community Garden 30.451.707 05/23/2025 1,824.95 
 VC-00061913 PS-INV2505437 Grandview Avenue Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 1,136.50 
 VC-00061915 PS-INV2505440 Planning Services thru 4/30/25 01.414.450 05/23/2025 1,318.49 
 VC-00061911 PS-INV2505435 9 Fairview Ave Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 312.00 
 VC-00061900 PS-INV2505424 Perkasie Covered Bridge thru 4/30/25 30.451.705 05/23/2025 967.00 
 VC-00061899 PS-INV2505423 Green Ridge West Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 1,193.50 
 VC-00061906 PS-INV2505430 532 W. Callowhill Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 1,223.90 
 VC-00061907 PS-INV2505431 650 Shadywood Dr. Reimbursable 01.250.200 05/23/2025 147.70 
 0000001996 Gilmore & Associates, Inc. Vendor Total: 55,470.81 

 
 0000005626 Giovanne Million 
 VC-00061890 14411001.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 05/23/2025 72.89 
 0000005626 Giovanne Million Vendor Total: 72.89 

 
 0000001531 Grainger 
 VC-00061963 9508600450 PW Rain Suit 01.438.238 05/23/2025 137.73 
 VC-00061881 9502909741 US Flag x 3 01.409.250 05/23/2025 249.81 
 VC-00061869 9494761662 US Flag 01.451.500 05/23/2025 61.91 
 0000001531 Grainger Vendor Total: 449.45 

 
 0000000259 Grandview Service Centre 
 VC-00061920 418221 2021 Durango Oil Change & Repairs 01.410.451 05/23/2025 281.91 
 VC-00061921 418200 Unit#56-4 Inspection & Repairs 01.410.451 05/23/2025 1,363.72 
 VC-00061922 418179 Unit#56-7 Inspection & Repairs 01.410.451 05/23/2025 998.87 
 0000000259 Grandview Service Centre Vendor Total: 2,644.50 

 
 0000002247 GreatAmerica Financial Services 
 VC-00061884 39177691 Police Datto S4B2 Backup Appliance 01.410.452 05/23/2025 98.33 
 0000002247 GreatAmerica Financial Services Vendor Total: 98.33 

 
 0000000205 Grim, Biehn & Thatcher 
 VC-00061860 232992 ZHB Perkasie Fire Co 25-001 01.414.314 05/23/2025 101.66 
 0000000205 Grim, Biehn & Thatcher Vendor Total: 101.66 

 
 0000000021 GTR Welding Co., Inc. 
 VC-00061971 25-137 PW Fix Shaft for Mower Bracket 01.454.370 05/23/2025 250.00 
 0000000021 GTR Welding Co., Inc. Vendor Total: 250.00 

 
 0000000937 J.P. Mascaro & Sons 
 VC-00061871 566030 Single Stream Recycling 4/16,4/23 & 4/29 05.426.367 05/23/2025 1,231.00 
 VC-00061961 566870 Commingled Recycling 05.426.367 05/23/2025 450.00 



 Date: 05/21/2025 Check Register #22 – May 23, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  3:25:26PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 VC-00061962 53199 Single Stream Recycling 5/1-5/8 05.426.367 05/23/2025 680.00 
 0000000937 J.P. Mascaro & Sons Vendor Total: 2,361.00 

 
 0000005619 Janet High 
 VC-00061918 03592009.00 Electric Overpayment Refund Final Bill 07.200.100 05/23/2025 25.35 
 0000005619 Janet High Vendor Total: 25.35 

 
 0000005429 JRF Tree LLC 
 VC-00061967 1051 Linework w/Elec 4/9/25 07.442.452 05/09/2025 800.00 
 0000005429 JRF Tree LLC Vendor Total: 800.00 

 
 0000003307 Keystone Fire & Security 
 VC-00061892 6393409 Perkasie Carousel Fire Alarm Inspection 01.409.450 05/23/2025 296.26 
 0000003307 Keystone Fire & Security Vendor Total: 296.26 

 
 0000000043 Labelcraft Press, Inc. 
 VC-00061861 25209 Police Letterhead & Envelopes 01.410.342 05/23/2025 293.00 
 0000000043 Labelcraft Press, Inc. Vendor Total: 293.00 

 
 0000005627 Madison Leonard & Brandon Savona 
 VC-00061889 14410001.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 05/23/2025 272.85 
 0000005627 Madison Leonard & Brandon Savona Vendor Total: 272.85 

 
 0000005298 Matt's Heavy Duty Mobile Diagnostics 
 VC-00061964 1015336 PW Tk#16 Repair 05.427.250 05/23/2025 1,235.22 
 0000005298 Matt's Heavy Duty Mobile Diagnostics Vendor Total: 1,235.22 

 
 0000000041 McCormick Brothers 
 VC-00061966 01C613 Police Unform Cleaning 01.410.239 05/23/2025 436.55 
 0000000041 McCormick Brothers Vendor Total: 436.55 

 
 0000005628 Megan Kaczinski 
 VC-00061888 06828008.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 05/23/2025 205.59 
 0000005628 Megan Kaczinski Vendor Total: 205.59 

 
 0000000341 NYCO Corporation 
 VC-00061868 250696 Skid Steer Parts 01.438.370 05/23/2025 41.52 
 0000000341 NYCO Corporation Vendor Total: 41.52 

 
 0000002433 Primo Brands 
 VC-00061857 25D0438789398 Electric Bottled Water 07.442.450 05/23/2025 43.99 
 VC-00061879 15D6700047156 MAC Water Cooler Rental 04.452.450 05/23/2025 3.99 
 VC-00061870 25D0438910135 PW Bottled Water 01.438.480 05/23/2025 23.99 
 0000002433 Primo Brands Vendor Total: 71.97 

 
 0000004116 Rebecca Delany 



 Date: 05/21/2025 Check Register #22 – May 23, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  3:25:26PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 VC-00061886 11556003.05 Refund Final Trash Bill 05.200.100 05/23/2025 40.38 
 0000004116 Rebecca Delany Vendor Total: 40.38 

 
 0000003376 Robert E. Little, Inc. 
 VC-00061875 05-1181912 Lopper Handle & Pin 01.454.370 05/23/2025 113.79 
 VC-00061917 05-1182162 PW Cutting Wheel & Parts 01.438.260 05/23/2025 313.72 
 VC-00061867 05-1181498 JDC Bearing Cone 01.454.370 05/23/2025 16.16 
 0000003376 Robert E. Little, Inc. Vendor Total: 443.67 

 
 0000000983 Shane Huey 
 VC-00061936 Reimb PMEA Conference Meal Reimb 4/10 & 4/1 07.442.460 05/23/2025 18.90 
 0000000983 Shane Huey Vendor Total: 18.90 

 
 0000000130 Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Auth 
 VC-00061926 145581 8th & Market Parking Lease 01.445.380 05/23/2025 769.00 
 0000000130 Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Auth Vendor Total: 769.00 

 
 0000004126 Stratix Systems, Inc. 
 VC-00061965 685288 Monthly IT Police 01.410.452 05/23/2025 871.00 
 0000004126 Stratix Systems, Inc. Vendor Total: 871.00 

 
 0000005624 Sunbelt Rentals, Inc. 
 VC-00061916 168289614-0002 Sales Tax Credit Memo 01.454.260 05/23/2025 -5.95 
 VC-00061866 168289614-0001 Community Garden Rotary Tiller Rental 01.454.260 05/23/2025 104.97 
 0000005624 Sunbelt Rentals, Inc. Vendor Total: 99.02 

 
 0000000071 Towne Answering Service, Inc. 
 VC-00061858 289405122025 Answering Service 4/14-5/11/25 07.442.321 05/23/2025 144.45 
 0000000071 Towne Answering Service, Inc. Vendor Total: 144.45 

 
 0000002241 Triad Truck Equipment, Inc. 
 VC-00061970 XA291001043:01 PW Truck Parts 01.438.370 05/23/2025 305.10 
 0000002241 Triad Truck Equipment, Inc. Vendor Total: 305.10 

 
 0000000101 Tri-State Elevator Co. Inc. 
 VC-00061925 153837 Elevator Maintenance May 01.409.374 05/23/2025 146.97 
 0000000101 Tri-State Elevator Co. Inc. Vendor Total: 146.97 

 
 0000003938 Turtle & Hughes, Inc 
 VC-00061968 6814652-00 Electric Hardware & Parts 07.442.253 05/23/2025 2,876.95 
 0000003938 Turtle & Hughes, Inc Vendor Total: 2,876.95 

 
 0000000732 UniFirst Corporation 
 VC-00061859 1290235979 Electric Uniforms 07.442.238 05/23/2025 207.62 
 0000000732 UniFirst Corporation Vendor Total: 207.62 

 



 Date: 05/21/2025 Check Register #22 – May 23, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  3:25:26PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000005050 WageWorks, Inc. 
 VC-00061976 INV7761245 HRA Admin Fees 01.405.450 05/23/2025 192.00 X 

 VC-00061977 INV7787234 FSA Monthly Admin Fee 01.405.450 05/30/2025 75.00 X 

 VC-00061975 INV7794434 Employee HRA & Flex Reimbursements 90.200.200 05/06/2025 95.00 X 

 VC-00061975 INV7794434 Employee HRA & Flex Reimbursements 90.200.300 05/06/2025 91.92 X 

 0000005050 WageWorks, Inc. Vendor Total: 453.92 

 
 0000002468 Wells Fargo 
 VC-00061978 2006 DVRFA 2006 DVRFA Loan Interest 30.472.000 05/27/2025 374.25 X 

 VC-00061979 2007 DVRFA 2007 DVRFA Loan Interest 30.472.000 05/27/2025 1,005.35 X 

 0000002468 Wells Fargo Vendor Total: 1,379.60 

 
 0000005537 Wood Research and Development 
 VC-00061980 WRD25-591 Covered Bridge Inspection & Design 30.451.705 05/23/2025 20,026.75 
 0000005537 Wood Research and Development Vendor Total: 20,026.75 

 
 Report Total: 138,387.32 
 Unpaid Report Total: 138,387.32 
 Paid Report Total: 0.00 

 



 Date: 05/30/2025 Check Register #23 – May 30, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  7:24:23AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000004771 American Legion Post #280 
 VC-00062022 2025 Memorial Day 2025 Memorial Day Parade Sponsorship 01.451.501 05/30/2025 850.00 
 0000004771 American Legion Post #280 Vendor Total: 850.00 

 
 0000004084 Britton Industries 
 VC-00062029 1276889-IN Yard Waste 40 Yd Roll Off 05.428.368 05/30/2025 984.73 
 0000004084 Britton Industries Vendor Total: 984.73 

 
 0000000135 Clemens Uniform 
 VC-00062016 1704897 MAC Mat Rental 04.452.450 05/30/2025 101.44 
 VC-00062025 1706152 PW Uniforms 01.438.238 05/30/2025 199.31 
 VC-00061931 1704891 PW Uniforms 01.438.238 05/30/2025 202.44 
 0000000135 Clemens Uniform Vendor Total: 503.19 

 
 0000000069 Comcast 
 VC-00062015 241378503 Ethernet 5/15-6/14/25 01.410.450 05/30/2025 259.15 X 

 VC-00062015 241378503 Ethernet 5/15-6/14/25 01.438.480 05/30/2025 259.15 X 

 VC-00062015 241378503 Ethernet 5/15-6/14/25 07.442.450 05/30/2025 259.16 X 

 VC-00061930 40784 Police Cable 5/22-6/21/25 01.410.321 05/30/2025 35.87 X 

 VC-00062015 241378503 Ethernet 5/15-6/14/25 01.405.450 05/30/2025 259.15 X 

 0000000069 Comcast Vendor Total: 1,072.48 

 
 0000002038 Commonwealth of PA 
 VC-00062032 71074710600BO Registration 2013 Ford 01.410.451 05/30/2025 100.00 
 0000002038 Commonwealth of PA Vendor Total: 100.00 

 
 0000000100 Delaware Valley Health Trust 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.438.199 05/30/2025 889.96 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.451.199 05/30/2025 197.96 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.410.199 05/30/2025 3,111.81 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.402.199 05/30/2025 344.25 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.390.300 05/30/2025 -5,140.35 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.402.196 05/30/2025 2,486.26 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 07.390.300 05/30/2025 -571.15 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 04.452.196 05/30/2025 309.97 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 07.442.199 05/30/2025 984.40 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.401.196 05/30/2025 4,020.75 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.410.196 05/30/2025 64,658.97 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 05.427.196 05/30/2025 8,181.60 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.222.000 05/30/2025 10,063.83 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.401.199 05/30/2025 301.22 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.438.196 05/30/2025 14,545.08 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 04.452.199 05/30/2025 189.33 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.451.196 05/30/2025 3,364.10 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.414.199 05/30/2025 172.13 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 07.442.196 05/30/2025 12,786.06 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.405.196 05/30/2025 2,430.71 



 Date: 05/30/2025 Check Register #23 – May 30, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  7:24:23AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.414.196 05/30/2025 3,099.67 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 05.427.199 05/30/2025 500.58 
 VC-00062031 29169 June Medical/Rx/Dental Premiums 01.405.199 05/30/2025 172.13 
 0000000100 Delaware Valley Health Trust Vendor Total: 127,099.27 

 
 0000001443 Eagle Truck Equipment, Inc. 
 VC-00062026 26299 Refuse Pivot Pen Weld 05.427.250 05/30/2025 858.96 
 0000001443 Eagle Truck Equipment, Inc. Vendor Total: 858.96 

 
 0000000259 Grandview Service Centre 
 VC-00062014 418261 Unit#56-10 Repairs 01.410.451 05/30/2025 1,062.96 
 0000000259 Grandview Service Centre Vendor Total: 1,062.96 

 
 0000005630 HG Properties 85 LP 
 VC-00062011 14526000.00 Final Electric Bill Overpayment Refund 07.200.100 05/30/2025 45.42 
 0000005630 HG Properties 85 LP Vendor Total: 45.42 

 
 0000000937 J.P. Mascaro & Sons 
 VC-00062027 568192 Open Top Single Stream Recycling 05.426.367 05/30/2025 420.00 
 VC-00062028 53263 Single Stream Recyling 5/13 & 5/15 05.426.367 05/30/2025 532.00 
 0000000937 J.P. Mascaro & Sons Vendor Total: 952.00 

 
 0000004868 Jack R. Scott 
 VC-00062017 6/7/25 Farmers Mkt Performer "Last Chance" 01.451.501 06/07/2025 80.00 
 0000004868 Jack R. Scott Vendor Total: 80.00 

 
 0000004431 L/B Water Service, Inc. 
 VC-00061933 3927538 Freezeless Hydrant & Elbow 01.454.371 05/30/2025 218.70 
 0000004431 L/B Water Service, Inc. Vendor Total: 218.70 

 
 0000000043 Labelcraft Press, Inc. 
 VC-00062018 25225 Memorial Day Posters Lot Closed 01.451.501 05/30/2025 230.00 
 VC-00062019 25224 Posters ADA 01.451.501 05/30/2025 150.00 
 VC-00061932 25223 Refuse OOPS Label 05.427.342 05/30/2025 86.00 
 0000000043 Labelcraft Press, Inc. Vendor Total: 466.00 

 
 0000005530 McDonald Uniform Co., Inc. 
 VC-00062012 244838 Police Uniforms 01.410.238 05/30/2025 272.67 
 0000005530 McDonald Uniform Co., Inc. Vendor Total: 272.67 

 
 0000000042 Postmaster 
 VC-00062003 #116 Replenish Postage Permit #116 07.442.215 05/30/2025 1,800.00 
 0000000042 Postmaster Vendor Total: 1,800.00 

 
 0000007645 Richard L. Shockley 
 VC-00062005 Refund Refund  Zoning Application Withdrawal 01.361.330 05/30/2025 125.00 



 Date: 05/30/2025 Check Register #23 – May 30, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  7:24:23AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000007645 Richard L. Shockley Vendor Total: 125.00 

 
 0000000019 Richter Drafting & Office Supply Co., Inc. 
 VC-00061935 WO-6659-1 Copy Paper 01.410.210 05/30/2025 83.98 
 VC-00062020 WO-6993-1 Admin Office Supplies 01.405.210 05/30/2025 177.24 
 0000000019 Richter Drafting & Office Supply Co., Inc. Vendor Total: 261.22 

 
 0000000929 St. Luke's Penn Foundation EAP 
 VC-00062004 11767 EAP Qtrly Billing June, July & August 202 01.405.450 06/01/2025 341.25 
 0000000929 St. Luke's Penn Foundation EAP Vendor Total: 341.25 

 
 0000003836 Uniform Gear Inc 
 VC-00062024 5639-3 Police Uniforms 01.410.238 05/30/2025 399.00 
 VC-00062023 5638-3 Police Uniforms 01.410.238 05/30/2025 1,777.00 
 0000003836 Uniform Gear Inc Vendor Total: 2,176.00 

 
 0000000154 Verizon Wireless 
 VC-00062006 6113498037 Wireless Phones 5/15-6/14/25 01.451.324 05/30/2025 127.71 
 VC-00062006 6113498037 Wireless Phones 5/15-6/14/25 01.410.324 05/30/2025 295.43 
 VC-00062006 6113498037 Wireless Phones 5/15-6/14/25 01.438.324 05/30/2025 85.14 
 VC-00062006 6113498037 Wireless Phones 5/15-6/14/25 07.442.324 05/30/2025 85.14 
 0000000154 Verizon Wireless Vendor Total: 593.42 

 
 0000001181 Verizon Wireless 
 VC-00062007 6113498036 Police Mobile Data Terminals 5/15-6/14/25 01.410.325 05/30/2025 525.27 
 VC-00062008 6113498036 Electric AMI Meter Readers 5/15-6/14/25 07.442.321 05/30/2025 120.03 
 0000001181 Verizon Wireless Vendor Total: 645.30 

 
 0000000087 Verizon 
 VC-00062013 156951933000198 Police Centrex Lines 5/17-6/16 01.410.321 05/30/2025 44.07 
 0000000087 Verizon Vendor Total: 44.07 

 
 0000000002 Waste Management 
 VC-00062030 0015657-1062-9 Municipal Solid Waste Disposal 5/1-5/15/2 05.427.367 05/30/2025 10,812.75 
 0000000002 Waste Management Vendor Total: 10,812.75 

 
 0000000355 Wehrung's Lumber & Home Center 
 VC-00062021 240418 Rail Car Mural Treated Lumber 30.357.020 05/30/2025 243.90 
 0000000355 Wehrung's Lumber & Home Center Vendor Total: 243.90 

 
 0000004332 WhenToWork, LLC 
 VC-00061937 75190108-100-12PRO25 MAC Online Scheduling Program 04.452.450 05/30/2025 660.00 
 0000004332 WhenToWork, LLC Vendor Total: 660.00 

 
 0000005537 Wood Research and Development 
 VC-00062010 WRD25-581 Replace Check Lost in Mail 30.451.705 05/30/2025 25,000.00 



 Date: 05/30/2025 Check Register #23 – May 30, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  7:24:23AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000005537 Wood Research and Development Vendor Total: 25,000.00 

 
 Report Total: 177,269.29 
 Unpaid Report Total: 177,269.29 
 Paid Report Total: 0.00 

 



 Date: 06/03/2025 EFT Register #6 – May 31, 2025 User: HEATHE 

 Page: 1 
 Time: 12:37:37PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000002467 AMP Inc. 
 VC-00062002 1011806 Power Purchases April 2025 07.442.362 737.64 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00198 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $737.64. 
 VC-00062002 1011806 Power Purchases April 2025 07.442.361 310,563.86 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00198 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $310,563.86. 
 0000002467 AMP Inc. Vendor Total: 311,301.50 

 
 0000002274 Elan Financial Services 
 VC-00061951 7928 Refuse Repair & Maintenance Services 05.427.250 11.64 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # RC/E00002 on 05/07/2025 for amount of $11.64. 
 VC-00061948 7928 Park Bldg Repairs & Maintenance 04.452.370 37.51 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PO/E00031 on 05/09/2025 for amount of $37.51. 
 VC-00061953 7928 CC Rewards 01.491.391 -575.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00321 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $-575.00. 
 VC-00061952 7928 Building Maintenance Return 01.409.250 -0.74 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00321 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $-0.74. 
 VC-00061947 7928 PW Repairs & Maintenance Services 01.438.370 91.88 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00321 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $91.88. 
 VC-00061946 7928 Covered Bridge Fence Rental 30.451.705 445.70 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00321 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $445.70. 
 VC-00061945 7928 PW Small Tools & Equip 01.438.260 62.94 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00321 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $62.94. 
 VC-00061944 7928 PW Home Depot Disputed Charge 01.438.260 150.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00321 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $150.00. 
 VC-00061950 7928 PW Hardware & Supplies 01.438.230 86.83 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00321 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $86.83. 
 VC-00061949 7928 Park Repair & Maintenance Supplies 01.454.250 192.20 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00321 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $192.20. 
 0000002274 Elan Financial Services Vendor Total: 502.96 

 
 0000004568 Elan Financial Services 
 VC-00061955 7554 CC Rewards 01.491.391 -25.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00322 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $-25.00. 
 VC-00061954 7554 GFOA Hotel - R Deemer 01.402.460 573.82 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00322 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $573.82. 
 0000004568 Elan Financial Services Vendor Total: 548.82 

 
 0000004569 Elan Financial Services 
 VC-00061992 8550 Electric Operating Supplies 07.442.245 97.20 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $97.20. 
 VC-00062000 8550 CC Rewards Redemption 07.442.390 -175.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $-175.00. 
 VC-00061999 8550 US Flags & Poles 01.451.500 1,949.93 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $1,949.93. 
 VC-00061998 8550 Electric Repair & Maintenance Supplies 07.442.250 84.70 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $84.70. 
 VC-00061997 8550 Electric Maintenance & Testing Substation 07.442.400 425.51 Pd. X 



 Date: 06/03/2025 EFT Register #6 – May 31, 2025 User: HEATHE 

 Page: 1 
 Time: 12:37:37PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $425.51. 
 VC-00061996 8550 Electric Training 07.442.460 873.02 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $873.02. 
 VC-00061995 8550 Electric Fuel 07.442.231 92.95 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $92.95. 
 VC-00061994 8550 Electric Safety Testing 07.442.317 185.35 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $185.35. 
 VC-00061993 8550 Electric Dues Subscriptions & Membershi 07.442.420 84.42 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # EC/E00199 on 05/28/2025 for amount of $84.42. 
 0000004569 Elan Financial Services Vendor Total: 3,618.08 

 
 0000004572 Elan Financial Services 
 VC-00061985 7645 Police Dues, Subscriptions & Membership 01.410.420 130.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $130.00. 
 VC-00061984 7645 Police Office Supplies 01.410.210 93.14 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $93.14. 
 VC-00061983 7645 Police Patrol Supplies 01.410.240 228.99 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $228.99. 
 VC-00061982 7645 Police Repair of Vehicles 01.410.451 32.99 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $32.99. 
 VC-00061981 7645 Police Bldg Repairs 01.410.373 37.04 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $37.04. 
 VC-00061960 7645 Police Uniforms 01.410.238 485.10 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $485.10. 
 VC-00061959 7645 Police Adobe Monthly Sub 01.410.452 19.99 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $19.99. 
 VC-00061958 7645 Police Training 01.410.421 95.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $95.00. 
 VC-00061957 7645 Police Crime Prevention Supplies 01.410.247 64.80 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $64.80. 
 VC-00061956 7645 Police Evidence Computer 01.410.243 1,597.47 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00323 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $1,597.47. 
 0000004572 Elan Financial Services Vendor Total: 2,784.52 

 
 0000004602 Elan Financial Services 
 VC-00061938 8182 MAC Building Repairs 04.452.370 589.48 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PO/E00032 on 05/09/2025 for amount of $589.48. 
 VC-00061934 8182 MAC Meeting & Conferences 04.452.460 37.44 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PO/E00032 on 05/09/2025 for amount of $37.44. 
 VC-00061939 8182 MAC Equipment Repairs 04.452.374 133.98 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PO/E00032 on 05/09/2025 for amount of $133.98. 
 VC-00061941 8182 Park & Rec Meetings & Conferences 01.451.460 50.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00324 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $50.00. 
 VC-00061943 8182 CC Rewards Applied 04.452.390 -275.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00324 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $-275.00. 
 VC-00061942 8182 MAC Advertising ValPak + Clipp 04.452.341 1,305.97 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PO/E00032 on 05/09/2025 for amount of $1,305.97. 



 Date: 06/03/2025 EFT Register #6 – May 31, 2025 User: HEATHE 

 Page: 1 
 Time: 12:37:37PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 VC-00061940 8182 Park & Rec Program Costs 01.451.247 105.50 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00324 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $105.50. 
 0000004602 Elan Financial Services Vendor Total: 1,947.37 

 
 0000004969 Elan Financial Services 
 VC-00061989 7648 Ipads for MAC Time Clocks 04.453.260 851.98 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PO/E00033 on 05/09/2025 for amount of $851.98. 
 VC-00061990 7648 Admin 01.405.460 200.25 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00325 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $200.25. 
 VC-00061991 7648 CC Rewards Redemption 01.491.391 -175.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00325 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $-175.00. 
 VC-00061988 7648 Fire Code ISub 01.414.420 8.50 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00325 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $8.50. 
 VC-00061987 7648 Admin Printing & Publications 01.405.342 162.59 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00325 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $162.59. 
 VC-00061986 7648 Admin Office Supplies 01.405.210 48.97 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00325 on 05/10/2025 for amount of $48.97. 
 0000004969 Elan Financial Services Vendor Total: 1,097.29 

 
 0000005050 WageWorks, Inc. 
 VC-00062001 INV7841409 HRA & Flex Employee Reimbursements 90.200.200 241.67 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PR/E00119 on 05/20/2025 for amount of $241.67. 
 VC-00062001 INV7841409 HRA & Flex Employee Reimbursements 90.200.300 224.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PR/E00119 on 05/20/2025 for amount of $224.00. 
 VC-00061975 INV7794434 Employee HRA & Flex Reimbursements 90.200.200 95.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PR/E00118 on 05/06/2025 for amount of $95.00. 
 VC-00061975 INV7794434 Employee HRA & Flex Reimbursements 90.200.300 91.92 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PR/E00118 on 05/06/2025 for amount of $91.92. 
 VC-00061977 INV7787234 FSA Monthly Admin Fee 01.405.450 75.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00327 on 05/30/2025 for amount of $75.00. 
 VC-00061976 INV7761245 HRA Admin Fees 01.405.450 192.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # GC/E00326 on 05/23/2025 for amount of $192.00. 
 VC-00061975 INV7872838 Employee HRA & Flex Reimbursements 90.200.200 95.00 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PR/E00118 on 05/06/2025 for amount of $95.00. 
 VC-00061975 INV7872838 Employee HRA & Flex Reimbursements 90.200.300 213.42 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # PR/E00118 on 05/06/2025 for amount of $213.42. 
0000005050 WageWorks, Inc. Vendor Total: 1,228.01 

 
 0000002468 Wells Fargo 
 VC-00061979 2007 DVRFA 2007 DVRFA Loan Interest 30.472.000 1,005.35 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # CC/E00119 on 05/27/2025 for amount of $1,005.35. 
 VC-00061978 2006 DVRFA 2006 DVRFA Loan Interest 30.472.000 374.25 Pd. X 

 Paid with Check # CC/E00119 on 05/27/2025 for amount of $374.25. 
 0000002468 Wells Fargo Vendor Total: 1,379.60 

 
 Report Total: 324,408.15 
 Unpaid Report Total: 0.00 



 Date: 06/03/2025 EFT Register #6 – May 31, 2025 User: HEATHE 

 Page: 1 
 Time: 12:37:37PM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 Paid Report Total: 324,408.15 

 



Date: 06/02/2025 Check Regiser #24 – June 02, 2025 User: HEATHE 

Page: 1 
Time:  8:20:39AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

0000005631 Bucks County Board of Assessment 
VC-00062033 Com Garden Application Real Estate Exemption 30.451.707 06/02/2025 250.00 

0000005631 Bucks County Board of Assessment Vendor Total: 250.00 

Report Total: 250.00 
Unpaid Report Total: 250.00 

Paid Report Total: 0.00 



 Date: 06/03/2025 Check Register #25 – June 6, 2025 User: HEATHE 

 Page: 1 
 Time:  8:04:16AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000001221 AFSCME Council 13 
 VC-00062047 May 2025 May Due Remittance 01.218.000 06/06/2025 1,948.92 
 0000001221 AFSCME Council 13 Vendor Total: 1,948.92 

 
 0000003408 Anixter Inc 
 VC-00062046 6377189-01 Electric Hardware & Parts 07.442.253 06/06/2025 82.50 
 0000003408 Anixter Inc Vendor Total: 82.50 

 
 0000005198 Auto Zone, Inc. 
 VC-00062076 02071292540 PW Auto Parts 01.438.370 06/06/2025 5.56 
 VC-00062075 02071291705 PW Auto Parts 01.438.370 06/06/2025 36.85 
 0000005198 Auto Zone, Inc. Vendor Total: 42.41 

 
 0000002913 Central Bucks Chamber of Commerce Inc. 
 VC-00062072 05534 2025 Annual Membership Dues 01.405.420 06/02/2025 195.00 
 0000002913 Central Bucks Chamber of Commerce Inc. Vendor Total: 195.00 

 
 0000004547 Chadwick Service Company 
 VC-00062063 102324 HVAC Qtrly Maintenance Contract 1 of 4 01.409.450 06/06/2025 1,280.00 
 0000004547 Chadwick Service Company Vendor Total: 1,280.00 

 
 0000005634 Christina Fischer & Matthew Torman 
 VC-00062043 03568006.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/06/2025 188.16 
 0000005634 Christina Fischer & Matthew Torman Vendor Total: 188.16 

 
 0000000135 Clemens Uniform 
 VC-00062048 1704897 MAC Floor Mat Rentals 04.452.450 06/06/2025 101.44 
 0000000135 Clemens Uniform Vendor Total: 101.44 

 
 0000000069 Comcast 
 VC-00062049 41402 Electric Cable 5/30-6/29/25 07.442.450 06/06/2025 88.00 X 

 VC-00062050 167496 Electric Voice/Internet/Wifi 5/19-6/18/25 07.442.450 06/06/2025 328.02 X 

 VC-00062051 63083 Police Voice/Internet/Wifi 5/20-6/19/25 01.410.321 06/06/2025 336.81 X 

 VC-00062073 168403 Amphitheater 5/28-6/27/25 01.451.450 06/06/2025 216.44 X 

 0000000069 Comcast Vendor Total: 969.27 

 
 0000005386 David W. Antonio 
 VC-00062052 6/14/25 Farmers Market Performer 01.451.501 06/06/2025 80.00 
 0000005386 David W. Antonio Vendor Total: 80.00 

 
 0000002414 De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 
 VC-00062074 590353123 Boro Hall Copier Contracts 01.405.450 06/06/2025 608.56 
 0000002414 De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. Vendor Total: 608.56 

 
 0000000501 GoreCon, Inc. 
 VC-00062081 2024-01 2024 Road Program #3 Final & Change Or 15.440.705 06/06/2025 204,269.88 



 Date: 06/03/2025 Check Register #25 – June 6, 2025 User: HEATHE 

 Page: 1 
 Time:  8:04:16AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000000501 GoreCon, Inc. Vendor Total: 204,269.88 

 
0000001531 Grainger 
 VC-00062077 9522988238 Vapor Steam Cleaner 01.409.250 06/06/2025 147.18 
 0000001531 Grainger Vendor Total: 147.18 

 
 0000002253 Hartford Life - The Hartford 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 01.451.198 06/06/2025 58.49 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 01.402.198 06/06/2025 100.12 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 01.227.000 06/06/2025 190.81 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 01.438.198 06/06/2025 414.51 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 07.442.198 06/06/2025 476.99 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 01.405.198 06/06/2025 41.46 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 01.401.198 06/06/2025 115.53 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 01.414.198 06/06/2025 15.96 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 04.452.198 06/06/2025 38.42 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 01.410.198 06/06/2025 1,589.44 
 VC-00062034 675017830572 June Life/AD&D/LTD/Sup Life Premiums 05.427.198 06/06/2025 233.15 
 0000002253 Hartford Life - The Hartford Vendor Total: 3,274.88 

 
 0000003611 Katlynn Harris 
 VC-00062037 04604006.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/02/2025 185.38 
 0000003611 Katlynn Harris Vendor Total: 185.38 

 
 0000000747 Kiefer Aquatics The Lifeguard Store 
 VC-00062054 INV001514986 MAC Uniforms 04.452.238 06/06/2025 202.00 
 0000000747 Kiefer Aquatics The Lifeguard Store Vendor Total: 202.00 

 
 0000000043 Labelcraft Press, Inc. 
 VC-00062055 25228 Kelly Myers Business Cards 01.451.342 06/06/2025 45.00 
 0000000043 Labelcraft Press, Inc. Vendor Total: 45.00 

 
 0000004765 Lauren Moll 
 VC-00062056 Refund Pickleball Day Competition Winner Gift Ca 01.451.247 06/06/2025 10.00 
 0000004765 Lauren Moll Vendor Total: 10.00 

 
 0000005636 Lois Conrad 
 VC-00062041 04608006.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/06/2025 141.93 
 0000005636 Lois Conrad Vendor Total: 141.93 

 
 0000005530 McDonald Uniform Co., Inc. 
 VC-00062057 245779 Police Uniforms 01.410.238 06/06/2025 185.36 
 0000005530 McDonald Uniform Co., Inc. Vendor Total: 185.36 

 
 0000005640 Metropolitan Development Group 
 VC-00062059 Refund Refund Cash Bond Litigation Escrow Res 01.250.200 06/06/2025 5,000.00 



 Date: 06/03/2025 Check Register #25 – June 6, 2025 User: HEATHE 

 Page: 1 
 Time:  8:04:16AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 VC-00062060 Perkasie Woods Close Perkasie Woods Prof Svcs Escrow 01.250.200 06/06/2025 4,718.40 
 0000005640 Metropolitan Development Group Vendor Total: 9,718.40 

 
 0000000503 Moyer Indoor/Outdoor 
 VC-00062079 E 138406 Quarterly Pest Control Police 01.410.373 06/06/2025 395.00 
 0000000503 Moyer Indoor/Outdoor Vendor Total: 395.00 

 
 0000005639 Nadia Titus 
 VC-00062039 12140005.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/06/2025 147.37 
 0000005639 Nadia Titus Vendor Total: 147.37 

 
 0000005638 Patrick Bense 
 VC-00062040 1117004.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/06/2025 30.05 
 0000005638 Patrick Bense Vendor Total: 30.05 

 
 0000000042 Postmaster 
 VC-00062058 #116 Replenish Refuse Postage Permit 05.427.215 06/06/2025 1,300.85 
 0000000042 Postmaster Vendor Total: 1,300.85 

 
 0000003126 Premier Technology Solutions, LLC 
 VC-00062080 11497 May IT Services 01.405.452 06/06/2025 2,386.91 
 0000003126 Premier Technology Solutions, LLC Vendor Total: 2,386.91 

 
 0000005637 Renay Landis 
 VC-00062038 12264010.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/06/2025 291.94 
 0000005637 Renay Landis Vendor Total: 291.94 

 
 0000003376 Robert E. Little, Inc. 
 VC-00062061 05-1182593 Repair Power Washer Tire 04.452.250 06/06/2025 36.85 
 0000003376 Robert E. Little, Inc. Vendor Total: 36.85 

 
 0000005635 Robert Goodwin 
 VC-00062042 03792004.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/06/2025 147.74 
 0000005635 Robert Goodwin Vendor Total: 147.74 

 
 0000005633 Ronald Kale 
 VC-00062044 03180011.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/06/2025 116.09 
 0000005633 Ronald Kale Vendor Total: 116.09 

 
 0000004297 SERVPRO 
 VC-00062065 2510 Police Vehicle Decontamination 01.410.451 06/06/2025 530.00 
 0000004297 SERVPRO Vendor Total: 530.00 

 
 0000003971 Shawn Eby 
 VC-00062064 2025 Boot 2025 Work Boot Reimbursement 07.442.238 06/06/2025 409.50 
 0000003971 Shawn Eby Vendor Total: 409.50 



 Date: 06/03/2025 Check Register #25 – June 6, 2025 User: HEATHE 

 Page: 1 
 Time:  8:04:16AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 
 0000004082 Staples 
 VC-00062035 6033295070 Janitorial Supplies 01.438.230 06/06/2025 165.05 
 VC-00062036 6033295072 Janitorial Supplies 01.438.230 06/06/2025 495.68 
 0000004082 Staples Vendor Total: 660.73 

 
 0000003438 The Fulcrum Guy LLC 
 VC-00062053 5002 MAC Annual PMCS & Safety Inspections 04.452.250 06/06/2025 410.00 
 0000003438 The Fulcrum Guy LLC Vendor Total: 410.00 

 
 0000005582 The Southern Company 
 VC-00062062 48076 MAC 3 Medium Tables 04.452.260 06/06/2025 689.94 
 0000005582 The Southern Company Vendor Total: 689.94 

 
 0000005632 Tricia Thomas 
 VC-00062045 03072017.00 Electric Final Bill Deposit Refund 07.200.100 06/06/2025 156.62 
 0000005632 Tricia Thomas Vendor Total: 156.62 

 
 0000000732 UniFirst Corporation 
 VC-00062068 1290237291 Electric Uniforms 07.442.238 06/06/2025 212.22 
 VC-00062067 1290239742 Electric Uniforms 07.442.238 06/06/2025 225.83 
 VC-00062069 1290238388 Electric Uniforms 07.442.238 06/06/2025 209.30 
 0000000732 UniFirst Corporation Vendor Total: 647.35 

 
 0000003836 Uniform Gear Inc 
 VC-00062070 5649-3 Police Uniforms 01.410.238 06/06/2025 74.95 
 0000003836 Uniform Gear Inc Vendor Total: 74.95 

 
 0000005430 UUS 
 VC-00062071 11744848 Electric Hardware & Parts 07.442.253 06/06/2025 1,417.50 
 0000005430 UUS Vendor Total: 1,417.50 

 
 0000000662 Verizon Wireless 
 VC-00062066 6113730267 Electric Centrex Lines 4/18-5/17/25 07.442.450 06/06/2025 88.48 
 0000000662 Verizon Wireless Vendor Total: 88.48 

 
 0000005513 William Sturtevant 
 VC-00062078 2025 Boot/Clothing 2025 Boot/Clothing Reimbursement 01.438.238 06/06/2025 20.98 
 0000005513 William Sturtevant Vendor Total: 20.98 

 
 Report Total: 233,635.12 
 Unpaid Report Total: 233,635.12 
 Paid Report Total: 0.00 

 



 Date: 06/10/2025 Check Register # 26 -June 13, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  8:02:51AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 0000000055 Allegheny Electric Cooperative Inc. 
 VC-00062121 PER100 May 2025 Monthly Electric Sales May 2025 07.442.361 06/13/2025 8,795.81 
 0000000055 Allegheny Electric Cooperative Inc. Vendor Total: 8,795.81 

 
 0000000018 B.R. Scholl Sales & Service, Inc. 
 VC-00062089 118346 Check Engine Light 01.438.370 06/13/2025 183.38 
 0000000018 B.R. Scholl Sales & Service, Inc. Vendor Total: 183.38 

 
 0000001474 Begley, Carlin & Mandio, LLP 
 VC-00062092 1977373363 General & Police Legal thru 5/31/25 01.410.314 06/13/2025 80.00 
 VC-00062097 1977373365 WP/Starbucks Reimbursable 01.250.200 06/13/2025 192.00 
 VC-00062094 1977373441 Green Ridge East Reimbursable 01.250.200 06/13/2025 272.00 
 VC-00062096 1977373362 429 Juliana Way Reimbursable 01.250.200 06/13/2025 96.00 
 VC-00062095 1977373364 Green Ridge Estates West 01.250.200 06/13/2025 450.75 
 VC-00062098 1977373442 THP Cedar Ridge Reimbursable 01.250.200 06/13/2025 64.00 
 VC-00062093 1977373438 Pennridge Airport 01.250.200 06/13/2025 64.00 
 VC-00062092 1977373363 General & Police Legal thru 5/31/25 01.404.310 06/13/2025 5,344.00 
 0000001474 Begley, Carlin & Mandio, LLP Vendor Total: 6,562.75 

 
 0000004084 Britton Industries 
 VC-00062138 1281916-IN Yard Waste 40 yd roll off 05.428.368 06/13/2025 135.00 
 VC-00062084 1280663-IN Yard Waste Brush/Tipping Fees 05.428.368 06/13/2025 695.69 
 VC-00062135 1283467-IN Yard Waste 40 Yd Roll Off & Tipping Fees 05.428.368 06/13/2025 594.04 
 0000004084 Britton Industries Vendor Total: 1,424.73 

 
 0000005642 Celebration Fireworks, Inc. 
 VC-00062120 6640 Deposit Fireworks Pennridge Community  01.451.501 06/13/2025 7,000.00 
 0000005642 Celebration Fireworks, Inc. Vendor Total: 7,000.00 

 
 0000004547 Chadwick Service Company 
 VC-00062143 102325 Police HVAC Billing Contract #1 of 4 01.410.373 06/13/2025 1,071.00 
 0000004547 Chadwick Service Company Vendor Total: 1,071.00 

 
 0000000135 Clemens Uniform 
 VC-00062099 1707483 Boro Floor Mat Rental 01.409.450 06/13/2025 48.86 
 VC-00062144 1707480 Police Floor Mat Rentals 01.410.373 06/13/2025 30.88 
 VC-00062090 1707481 PW Uniforms 01.438.238 06/13/2025 199.31 
 0000000135 Clemens Uniform Vendor Total: 279.05 

 
 0000000017 Davis Feed of Bucks County 
 VC-00062091 114018 Park Supplies 01.454.250 06/13/2025 213.20 
 0000000017 Davis Feed of Bucks County Vendor Total: 213.20 

 
 0000000325 Deep Run Aquatic Services, Inc. 
 VC-00062148 250602-41 MAC Start up All Pools 04.452.450 06/13/2025 5,000.00 
 VC-00062147 250603-9 MAC Valve Repairs 04.452.250 06/13/2025 470.00 



 Date: 06/10/2025 Check Register # 26 -June 13, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  8:02:51AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 VC-00062149 250602-7 Skimmer Baskets 04.452.260 06/13/2025 101.61 
 VC-00062146 250602-44 Reset Mat in Baby Pool 04.452.250 06/13/2025 250.00 
 0000000325 Deep Run Aquatic Services, Inc. Vendor Total: 5,821.61 

 
 0000000553 Gannett Pennsylvania LocaliQ 
 VC-00062108 0007111086 Speed Limit, Ordinance & Public Safety M 01.405.341 06/13/2025 873.82 
 VC-00062110 0007111086 2025-03 2025 Concrete Program Advertis 15.440.704 06/13/2025 975.58 
 VC-00062111 0007111086 ZHB Advertising 01.414.341 06/13/2025 307.66 
 VC-00062109 0007111086 2025-02 Road Program Advertisement 15.440.705 06/13/2025 968.32 
 VC-00062107 0007111086 Acctng & Permit Clerk Employment Advert 01.405.341 06/13/2025 430.00 
 0000000553 Gannett Pennsylvania LocaliQ Vendor Total: 3,555.38 

 
 0000001232 GDS Associates, Inc. 
 VC-00062101 0239853 Electric General Consulting 3/29-4/25/25 07.442.450 06/13/2025 435.00 
 VC-00062102 0239854 Power Supply Planning 3/29-4/25/25 07.442.450 06/13/2025 3,620.43 
 0000001232 GDS Associates, Inc. Vendor Total: 4,055.43 

 
 0000000198 Grand View Hospital 
 VC-00062155 51 PW CDL Drug/Alcohol Screen 01.438.480 06/13/2025 57.00 
 0000000198 Grand View Hospital Vendor Total: 57.00 

 
 0000000259 Grandview Service Centre 
 VC-00062100 418228 2021 Dodge Fuel Pump Module 01.410.451 06/13/2025 1,224.11 
 VC-00062141 418320 Unit#56-9 Tire Installation 01.410.451 06/13/2025 57.36 
 VC-00062140 418321 Unit#56-2 Oil Change & Repairs 01.410.451 06/13/2025 494.42 
 0000000259 Grandview Service Centre Vendor Total: 1,775.89 

 
 0000000205 Grim, Biehn & Thatcher 
 VC-00062132 233657 ZHB 25-02 Starbucks/WP Perkasie LLC 01.414.314 06/13/2025 717.50 
 0000000205 Grim, Biehn & Thatcher Vendor Total: 717.50 

 
 0000002517 H&K Materials 
 VC-00062134 47746 1.11 Ton Green Patch 01.438.245 06/13/2025 166.50 
 0000002517 H&K Materials Vendor Total: 166.50 

 
 0000002566 Irby Electrical Distributor 
 VC-00062103 S014270627.001 Safety Testing 07.442.317 06/13/2025 1,718.21 
 0000002566 Irby Electrical Distributor Vendor Total: 1,718.21 

 
 0000000937 J.P. Mascaro & Sons 
 VC-00062159 53367 Single Stream Recycling 5/27 & 5/29/25 05.426.367 06/13/2025 487.00 
 VC-00062088 53313 Single Stream Recycling 5/20 & 5/22 05.426.367 06/13/2025 555.00 
 VC-00062157 568395 Open Top Single Stream Recycling 05.426.367 06/13/2025 842.00 
 0000000937 J.P. Mascaro & Sons Vendor Total: 1,884.00 

 
 0000005197 James Foster 



 Date: 06/10/2025 Check Register # 26 -June 13, 2025 User: HEATHE 

  
 Time:  8:02:51AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
 TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

 VC-00062151 Refundq MAC Chemicals Paid with personal CC 04.452.247 06/13/2025 54.07 
 VC-00062151 Refundq MAC Chemicals Paid with personal CC 04.452.222 06/13/2025 198.10 
 0000005197 James Foster Vendor Total: 252.17 

 
 0000005512 Jennifer Ann Brown 
 VC-00062150 09252031 Zumba Instructor 01.451.247 06/13/2025 117.60 
 0000005512 Jennifer Ann Brown Vendor Total: 117.60 

 
 0000003307 Keystone Fire & Security 
 VC-00062137 6528244 Carousel Fire Sprinkler Inspection 01.409.450 06/13/2025 561.95 
 0000003307 Keystone Fire & Security Vendor Total: 561.95 

 
 0000000043 Labelcraft Press, Inc. 
 VC-00062123 25245 X-Stamper 01.405.210 06/13/2025 35.00 
 0000000043 Labelcraft Press, Inc. Vendor Total: 35.00 

 
 0000000230 Landis Supermarket- Telford 
 VC-00062104 10020 Police Crime Meeting Refreshments 01.410.210 06/13/2025 16.81 
 0000000230 Landis Supermarket- Telford Vendor Total: 16.81 

 
 0000000136 Lapp's Landscape Products 
 VC-00062136 6972 Wood Chips 01.454.246 06/13/2025 448.00 
 0000000136 Lapp's Landscape Products Vendor Total: 448.00 

 
 0000005641 Laura Patterson 
 VC-00062105 Refund Farmers Market Vendor Cancellation Refu 01.451.501 06/13/2025 30.00 
 0000005641 Laura Patterson Vendor Total: 30.00 

 
 0000001696 Link Performance HVAC 
 VC-00062106 5355 Adjust HVAC Vents for Summer 01.409.450 06/13/2025 200.00 
 0000001696 Link Performance HVAC Vendor Total: 200.00 

 
 0000000004 M & S Oil Co. 
 VC-00062112 72-1 May 2025 May Gas & Diesel Usage 01.410.231 06/13/2025 2,374.81 
 VC-00062112 72-1 May 2025 May Gas & Diesel Usage 01.405.231 06/13/2025 -0.78 
 VC-00062112 72-1 May 2025 May Gas & Diesel Usage 05.427.231 06/13/2025 1,809.35 
 VC-00062112 72-1 May 2025 May Gas & Diesel Usage 01.438.362 06/13/2025 1,410.96 
 VC-00062112 72-1 May 2025 May Gas & Diesel Usage 01.454.362 06/13/2025 314.01 
 VC-00062112 72-1 May 2025 May Gas & Diesel Usage 07.442.231 06/13/2025 451.07 
 0000000004 M & S Oil Co. Vendor Total: 6,359.42 

 
 0000000026 NAPA Auto Parts 
 VC-00062113 527749 LED Bulbs 01.454.370 06/13/2025 27.78 
 0000000026 NAPA Auto Parts Vendor Total: 27.78 

 
 0000005320 North Montco Technical Career Center 



Date: 06/10/2025 Check Register # 26 -June 13, 2025 User: HEATHE 

Time:  8:02:51AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

VC-00062083 04/29/25 V Parkhomchuk CDL Training & Exam 01.438.465 06/13/2025 6,300.00 
0000005320 North Montco Technical Career Center Vendor Total: 6,300.00 

0000005643 Paymentus Corporation 
VC-00062122 INV-15-163743 Transaction Fees April 2025 05.427.390 06/13/2025 41.95 

0000005643 Paymentus Corporation Vendor Total: 41.95 

0000004298 Penn's Grant Realty Corp. 
VC-00062118 2nd Qtr Com 2nd Qtr Commission Edward Jones 01.406.450 06/13/2025 171.90 
VC-00062117 2nd Qtr Com 2nd Qtr Commission Perkasie Dental Loft 01.406.450 06/13/2025 298.08 

0000004298 Penn's Grant Realty Corp. Vendor Total: 469.98 

0000000096 Pennsylvania One Call  System, Inc. 
VC-00062163 0001107066 Monthly Activity May 07.442.450 06/13/2025 37.44 

0000000096 Pennsylvania One Call  System, Inc. Vendor Total: 37.44 

0000000070 Perkasie Regional Authority 
VC-00062115 3348 6" Fire Hydrants 01.411.366 06/13/2025 3,537.19 
VC-00062114 3349 4" Fire Hydrants 01.411.366 06/13/2025 118.13 
VC-00062116 0592 Electric Water & Sewer 2/24-5/22/25 07.442.366 06/13/2025 159.30 
VC-00062116 0592 Electric Water & Sewer 2/24-5/22/25 07.442.364 06/13/2025 155.40 

0000000070 Perkasie Regional Authority Vendor Total: 3,970.02 

0000002433 Primo Brands 
VC-00062152 15F0438789356 Boro Hall Bottled Water 01.409.450 06/13/2025 32.98 
VC-00062162 15F0438789398 Electric Water Delivery 07.442.450 06/13/2025 53.99 
VC-00062158 15F0438910135 PW Water Delivery 01.438.480 06/13/2025 65.97 

0000002433 Primo Brands Vendor Total: 152.94 

0000005094 Richard P. Laughlin 
VC-00062119 6/21/25 Farmers Mkt Performer "Nightbirds Callin'" 01.451.501 06/13/2025 80.00 

0000005094 Richard P. Laughlin Vendor Total: 80.00 

0000000019 Richter Drafting & Office Supply Co., Inc. 
VC-00062133 WO-7605-1 Admin Office Supplies 01.405.210 06/13/2025 100.86 

0000000019 Richter Drafting & Office Supply Co., Inc. Vendor Total: 100.86 

0000003376 Robert E. Little, Inc. 
VC-00062085 05-1186260 JDC Filter Element 01.454.370 06/13/2025 70.42 
VC-00062086 05-1186277 Park Maintenance 01.454.370 06/13/2025 183.30 
VC-00062087 05-1312136 Gator Repairs 01.454.370 06/13/2025 2,379.45 
VC-00062145 05-1188770 PW JDC Bearing Cone & Yolk 01.454.370 06/13/2025 348.96 

0000003376 Robert E. Little, Inc. Vendor Total: 2,982.13 

0000005109 Rockhill Car Wash, LLC 
VC-00062142 306 Police May Car Washes 01.410.451 06/13/2025 35.00 



Date: 06/10/2025 Check Register # 26 -June 13, 2025 User: HEATHE 

Time:  8:02:51AM BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 

VENDOR NO VENDOR NAME 
TRANS. NO INVOICE NO INVOICE DESC. ACCOUNT NO DUE DATE VOUCHER AMOUNT PAID EFT DP 

0000005109 Rockhill Car Wash, LLC Vendor Total: 35.00 

0000004126 Stratix Systems, Inc. 
VC-00062139 685878 Police IT Remote Svcs 5/16-5/23 01.410.452 06/13/2025 720.00 

0000004126 Stratix Systems, Inc. Vendor Total: 720.00 

0000003409 The Free Press LLC 
VC-00062154 9669 Farmers Market Small Banner Ad 01.451.501 06/13/2025 95.00 

0000003409 The Free Press LLC Vendor Total: 95.00 

0000000071 Towne Answering Service, Inc. 
VC-00062161 289406092025 Answering Svc 6/9-7/6/25 07.442.450 06/13/2025 135.00 

0000000071 Towne Answering Service, Inc. Vendor Total: 135.00 

0000003938 Turtle & Hughes, Inc 
VC-00062166 6724008-00 Electric Hardware & Parts 07.442.253 06/13/2025 2,152.50 
VC-00062165 6814678-00 Electric Hardware & Parts 07.442.253 06/13/2025 2,931.25 

0000003938 Turtle & Hughes, Inc Vendor Total: 5,083.75 

0000000155 UGI Utilities, Inc. 
VC-00062156 411001210953 Gas Service Boro Hall 5/1-5/30/25 01.409.362 06/13/2025 30.86 

0000000155 UGI Utilities, Inc. Vendor Total: 30.86 

0000000732 UniFirst Corporation 
VC-00062164 1290240688 Electric Uniforms 07.442.238 06/13/2025 207.62 

0000000732 UniFirst Corporation Vendor Total: 207.62 

0000005050 WageWorks, Inc. 
VC-00062153 INV7917784 Employee HRA & Flex Reimbursements 90.200.300 06/13/2025 509.94 X 

VC-00062153 INV7917784 Employee HRA & Flex Reimbursements 90.200.200 06/13/2025 166.79 X 

0000005050 WageWorks, Inc. Vendor Total: 676.73 

0000000002 Waste Management 
VC-00062160 0015686-1062-8 Municipal Solid Waste Disposal 5/16-5/31 05.427.367 06/13/2025 9,418.26 

0000000002 Waste Management Vendor Total: 9,418.26 

Report Total: 83,867.71 
Unpaid Report Total: 83,867.71 

Paid Report Total: 0.00 



BOROUGH OF PERKASIE
MEMORANDUM 

Date: June 3, 2025 

To: Borough Council 

From: Harold Stone, Electric Superintendent 

Subject: Engineering and Technical Assistance Needed for Substation 

It has been seven years since we hired an engineering firm to assess the Borough Substation. We have 
allocated $20,000 in the 2025 budget for engineering and technical assistance, which is needed for work 
at the substation. We propose to retain Utility Engineers to support the replacement and installation of 
critical measurement instruments used to monitor energy consumption. Additionally, have Utility 
Engineers, assess the protection relays installed in 2014, to help better plan for future budgeting.  

Over the last 15-20 years, we have worked with two engineering firms: Kupper, now owned by Asplundh 
Engineering Services, and Utility Engineering, which has also merged but continues to operate under the 
Utility Engineering name.  

Utility Engineering has a greater familiarity with our substation, and their hourly rates are significantly 
more cost-effective compared to Asplundh Engineering Services. I have included the hourly rate 
schedules for both firms for 2025. I recommend hiring Utility Engineers for this project, with the total 
cost not to exceed the $20,000 already budgeted. 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 







 BOROUGH OF PERKASIE

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: June 9, 2025 

TO: Andrea Coaxum, Borough Manager 
Council Members 
Mayor Hollenbach 
Rebecca Deemer, Finance Director 

FROM: Jeffrey Tulone, Public Works 
Jeffrey Tulone 

RE: Toter Purchase 

At this time, I would like to request that Council authorize the Public Works Department to purchase an 
additional 300 toters for a cost of $18,955. 

Due to changes to the refuse program, and the additional changes to the bulky waste program, the toter 
program is growing faster than anticipated.  We had 107 toters on hand for 2025, but per the attached 
delivery chart, you will note that as of June 5th, 80 toters have been added to the program, leaving only 
27 toters for the remainder of the year.  

We did not put this purchase into the 2025 budget, since we thought we would have enough toters to 
last us through the year.  We would like to use the $5,034 in savings from trash bag purchases toward the 
cost of the toters.  Since the implementation of the changes to the trash program in April, we have 
already seen a reduction of 30.39 tons in trash disposal, which will result in savings of $3,006 in disposal 
costs.  In addition, we have collected $700 in revenue from bulk trash item pick-ups.  These early results 
are promising, and we are hopeful that continued reductions in tonnage and additional bulk item 
revenues will help further offset the additional $13,921 in cost of this purchase. 

Thank you for your consideration. 









COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT – June 10th, 2025 

Economic Development Plan Update 

• Steering Committee members confirmed. First Steering Committee meeting scheduled for 8:30am on

Wednesday June 11th.

• Received report and summary of first public meeting held on 4/8/25, which identified common

perspectives on strengths, weaknesses, opportunities & threats to economic development in the Borough.

Report available on Borough’s website: https://perkasieborough.org/departments/economic-community-

development/

• This project is partly funded with a DCED Keystone Communities Planning Grant of $25,000.

Economic News 

• WP Perkasie LLC was granted a variance related to the configuration of the drive-thru vehicle stacking at

the Zoning Hearing Board on May 27th. Awaiting final land development plans.

• RJs Essentials received a Use & Occupancy permit to retail soaps and skincare in the front section of

Dragonflies Salon on Callowhill.

• Construction work continues at the “Glassworks” campus, owned by Kingdom Partners LLC.  The campus

will house a thrift store and office space.

• The “Pacaz” parcel – the vacant area adjacent to the Landis Shopping Center and Mavis Tire is under

agreement of sale. Sketch plans received from potential developer, Zoning Determination sent in response.

• Waiting on final inspections before issuing a Use & Occupancy permit for the main floor of the Methodist

Church on 5th St.

• Helping a number  local business owners in their search for commercial premises in the Borough.

• Maintaining inventory of commercial space available for lease/sale in the Borough.

ZONING / CODE:  

• Planning Commission met on 5/28 to review potential amendments to Borough ordinances related to the

keeping of chickens and roadside stands. The Council packet includes their recommendation.

• Provided list of other potential zoning amendments and research packet to the Chair of the Planning &

Zoning Committee of Council.

• Responded to Zoning, Property Maintenance and Land Development & Subdivision applications and

questions as necessary.  Permit applications are listed in the Permits Report in Council’s packet.

• Perkiomen Mapping and Flood Mitigation Study – participating as a stakeholder in the master plan project.

• Stormwater & BMP MS4 Reporting: new web page constructed. Letter sent to all property owners with

BMP/Stormwater Management on their parcel outlining the process and timings for compliance with PA

DEP reporting requirements. Planning a Farmers Market event this season to meet the requirement for

public education.

• NEXLEVEL Service Request Report in Council packet this month - tracks calls & complaints received through

to closeout. Permits, Code issues and other property file matters all logged on NexLevel.

• PERMIT CLOSEOUT: Years-old “legendary” permit backlog being closed out.

• CODE ENFORCEMENT: focusing on Spring property maintenance and transition to new Bulk Trash schedule.

PERKASIE BOROUGH COMMUNITY EVENTS 

• Farmers Market Outdoor Season 2025: market opened on Saturday June 7th. Great turnout. Happy vendors

and customers. Additional event security protocols in place. Pride at the Market scheduled for 6/28/25.

• Summer Concert Series: Schedule and performers complete and on website/calendar.



• Under the Stars Car Show: Planning underway. Seeking volunteers.   

• Fall Festival: Planning underway    

• America’s Oldest Tree Lighting:  Initial planning for 2025.  

• Memorial Day Parade & Service (Saturday May 24th): Held review meeting and noted changes for the next 

event.  Next Memorial Day Parade & Service will be in Perkasie in May 2027.  

• Working with PD on Public Safety plan and measures for all Borough and 3rd party community events.  

• Indoor Farmers Market: Closed for the season.  

• Celtic Festival: no action.     

• Community Day & Fireworks: Saturday June 28th from noon.  

• Perkasie’s 150th anniversary celebration in May 2029. No action this month.  

  

COMMUNITY EVENTS / 3RD PARTY  

• First Friday: took place on W. Walnut St on Friday June 6th. Next event will be on Friday August 1st.  

• The Indian Valley Soap Box Association held their race day on June 7th.  

• The Craftery Market is penciled in for 11/15/25 

 

RESIDENT COMMUNICATION  

• Organized events and staff luncheon to celebrate National Public Works Week.  

• Managing resident issues through resolution as necessary.   

• Continuing regular social media posts and updating alerts on Borough website.   

• Managing increased marketing and advertising for Parks & Recreation programming.  

  

OTHER PROJECTS  

• SEPTA FREIGHT CAR: Artist cleaned and base coated car, and delivered mural pieces on June 5th. Public 

Works will install mural in early June.  Planning a ribbon cutting.  The mural project is funded in part by a 

$13,500 Visit Bucks County Tourism Grant award. Perkasie Borough developed the grant application which 

was submitted by the PTIA.  

 

• PARK AVENUE PROJECT:  

o Planning Transportation Alternative Set Aside (TASA) grant application for funding of pedestrian and 

bicycle components of the larger project.  

o Received executed contracts from HUD for the $2.1million in Congressionally Directed Funding. 

o Environmental Review indicated potential presence of Bog Turtle. Waiting on US Fish & Wildlife 

clearance to be able to submit the ER to HUD.  

o Waiting on Green Light Go grant application for $425,240 (total project cost $531,550) and LSA grant 

application ($1million) to make up project funding.  

o Webpage on Borough website describing the project and anticipated funding sources.  

o Letter sent to Park Ave & Parkridge Dr residents updating them on the project. 

• CYBERSECURITY:  

o No updates on RMUC prize program delays. Waiting to hear if Perkasie will be awarded $100,000 and 80 

hours of Technical Assistance. 

o Staff committee is reviewing recommendations for staff training and new Cybersecurity policies from 

Borough’s Cybersecurity consultant.  

o Drafting project needs & budget for 2026.  



• BULK TRASH: continuing to monitor Bulk Trash with Public Works. Public education continuing.

• FIRE SERVICES: planning a meeting with the PA Governor’s Center for Local Government Services (GCLGS)

regarding fire services study. Invite will go to municipal and FD leaders in municipalities where Perkasie FD

provide coverate. The GCLGS – through the PA DCED – offer Technical Assistance for Fire & Emergency

Services projects.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT / CONFERENCES  / MEETINGS: 

Webinar: “Telling Our Own Story: Becoming a Resource for the Media” hosted by the Association of Professional 
Recyclers of Pennsylvania.  


	2025_06_16 Agenda
	Agenda Item 4 - Proclamation
	Agenda Item 5 - Audit Presentation
	Agenda Item 8A - May 19 Minutes
	Agenda Item 8B - June 2 Minutes
	Agenda Item 9B - Taxes Collected as of 5/31/25
	Agenda Item 9C - Budget Status as of 5/31/25
	Agenda Item 9D - Engineer's Report as of June 1, 2025
	Agenda Item 9F - ZHB Report
	Agenda Item 9G - Police Report - May 2025
	Agenda Item 9H - Fire Dept Reports - May 2025
	Agenda Item 9I - PRA Report
	Agenda Item 9I - PRA Financial Statements
	Agenda Item 9J - PWTA Report 
	Agenda Item 11A1 - Pub Wks Superintendent Rpt - May 2025
	Agenda Item 11A2 - Consider Res 2025-33 - HC Spot for 250 N 3rd
	Agenda Item 11B1 - Elec Dept Superintendent Rpt - May 2025
	Agenda Item 11B2 - Installed Capacity Article
	Agenda Item 11C1 - Code Enf Admin Report - May 2025
	Agenda Item 11C2 - Discuss PC Recommendations for Potential Ordinance Amendments
	Agenda Item 11C3 - Constitution Square Update
	Agenda Item 11D1 - Park & Rec Dir Report - May 2025
	Agenda Item 11D2 - Park Event Appl - Grow a Pair 5K
	Agenda Item 11E6 - Consider New Timeclock Policy
	Agenda Item 11F1 - Bills List
	Agenda Item 11F2 - Consider Hiring of Firm for Engin & Tech Assis w/Substation
	Agenda Item 11F3 - Consider Purchase of Add'l Toters
	Agenda Item 11G1 - Comm & Econ Dev Rpt - June 10, 2025



